
 
 

   

Commission Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, September 26, 2019, 2 p.m. 

Chair: Richard Valle, Supervisor Alameda County District 2 Executive Director: Arthur L. Dao 
Vice Chair: Pauline Cutter, Mayor City of San Leandro Clerk of the 

Commission: 
Vanessa Lee 

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance   

2. Roll Call   

3. Public Comment   

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report  

5. Executive Director Report  

6. Consent Calendar Page/Action 

Alameda CTC standing committees approved all action items on the  
consent calendar, except Item 6.1 & 6.10.  

6.1. Approve July 25, 2019 Commission Minutes 1 A 

6.2. I-580 Express Lanes: Approve Amendment No. 1 to Cooperative 
Agreement with the Bay Area Toll Authority for Regional Customer 
Service Center Services for the I-580 Express Lanes 

7 A 

6.3. I-580 Express Lanes Toll System Upgrade: Approve Cooperative 
Agreement with Caltrans 

13 A 

6.4. I-580 Express Lanes (PN 1373.002): Monthly Operations Update 15 I 

6.5. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda 
CTC’s Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and 
General Plan Amendments 

25 I 

6.6. I-580 Design Alternatives Assessment Update 31 I 

6.7. Approve the 2019 Congestion Management Program and 2019 
Conformity Findings 

37 A 

6.8. Approve legislative positions and receive an update on federal, state, 
and local legislative activities 

51 A/I 

6.9. Approve Cooperative Agreement with the Port of Oakland for the 
GoPort- Freight Intelligent Transportation System Project construction 
phase for a not-to-exceed amount of $2.4 million 

97 A 

6.10. Approve Community Advisory Committee Appointments 105 A 

mailto:vlee@alamedactc.org
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.1_COMM_Commission_Meeting_Minutes_20190725v.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.2_COMM_I-580_PC_BATA_RCSCAgmt-Amend_1_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.2_COMM_I-580_PC_BATA_RCSCAgmt-Amend_1_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.2_COMM_I-580_PC_BATA_RCSCAgmt-Amend_1_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.3_COMM_I-580_PC_Caltrans_Coop_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.3_COMM_I-580_PC_Caltrans_Coop_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.4_COMM_I-580_PC_EL_Ops_Update_JuneJuly2019Stats_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.5_COMM_EnvironmentalDocReview_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.5_COMM_EnvironmentalDocReview_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.5_COMM_EnvironmentalDocReview_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.6_COMM_I-580_DAA_Update_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.7_COMM_2019_CMP_and_Conformity_Findings_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.7_COMM_2019_CMP_and_Conformity_Findings_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.8_COMM_Sept2019_LegislativeUpdate_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.8_COMM_Sept2019_LegislativeUpdate_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.9_COMM_FITS_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.9_COMM_FITS_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.9_COMM_FITS_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/6.10_COMM_Community_Advisory_Appointments_20190926.pdf


7. Community Advisory Committee Reports (3-minute time limit)  

7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee – Matthew Turner, Chair 111 I 

7.2. Independent Watchdog Committee – Steve Jones, Chair  I 

7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee – Sylvia Stadmire, Chair  I 

8. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items  

The Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee approved the following action items, 
unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

8.1. Approve the Vision and Goals for the 2020 Countywide Transportation 
Plan 

117 A 

9. Member Reports  

10. Adjournment  

Next Meeting: October 24, 2019 

 

Notes:  
• All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the Commission. 
• To comment on an item not on the agenda (3-minute limit), submit a speaker card to the clerk. 
• Call 510.208.7450 (Voice) or 1.800.855.7100 (TTY) five days in advance to request a sign-language interpreter. 
• If information is needed in another language, contact 510.208.7400. Hard copies available only by request. 
• Call 510.208.7400 48 hours in advance to request accommodation or assistance at this meeting. 
• Meeting agendas and staff reports are available on the website calendar. 
• Alameda CTC is located near 12th St. Oakland City Center BART station and AC Transit bus lines.  

Directions and parking information are available online. 

https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/7.1_COMM_BPAC_Minutes_20190926.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/8.1_COMM_CTP_Vision_and_Goals_final.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/8.1_COMM_CTP_Vision_and_Goals_final.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/month/now
https://www.alamedactc.org/about-us-committees/contact-us/


 

 

Alameda CTC Schedule of Upcoming Meetings for 

October 2019 through December 2019 

Commission and Committee Meetings 

Time Description Date 

9:00 a.m. Finance and Administration 

Committee (FAC) 

October 14, 2019 

November 18, 2019 

9:30 a.m. I-680 Sunol Smart Carpool Lane 

Joint Powers Authority (I-680 JPA) 

October 14, 2019 

 

10:00 a.m. I-580 Express Lane Policy 

Committee (I-580 PC) 

10:30 a.m. Planning, Policy and Legislation 

Committee (PPLC) 

12:00 p.m. Programs and Projects Committee 

(PPC) 

2:00 p.m. Alameda CTC Commission Meeting October 24, 2019 

December 5, 2019 

Advisory Committee Meetings 

1:30 p.m. Alameda County Technical 

Advisory Committee (ACTAC) 

October 10, 2019 

November 7, 2019 

5:30 p.m. Independent Watchdog 

Committee (IWC) 

November 18, 2019 

5:30 p.m. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 

Committee (BPAC) 

November 21, 2019 

1:30 p.m. Paratransit Advisory and Planning 

Committee (PAPCO) 

November 25, 2019 

 

All meetings are held at Alameda CTC offices located at 1111 Broadway, 

Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607. Meeting materials, directions and parking 

information are all available on the Alameda CTC website. 

Commission Chair 

Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 

 

Commission Vice Chair 

Mayor Pauline Cutter, 

City of San Leandro 

 

AC Transit 

Board Vice President Elsa Ortiz 

 

Alameda County 

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 

Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 

Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 

Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 

 

BART 

Vice President Rebecca Saltzman 

 

City of Alameda 

Mayor Marilyn Ezzy Ashcraft 

 

City of Albany 

Mayor Rochelle Nason 

 

City of Berkeley 

Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

City of Dublin 

Mayor David Haubert 

 

City of Emeryville 

Councilmember John Bauters 

 

City of Fremont 

Mayor Lily Mei 

 

City of Hayward 

Mayor Barbara Halliday 

 

City of Livermore 

Mayor John Marchand 

 

City of Newark 

Councilmember Luis Freitas 

 

City of Oakland 

Councilmember At-Large  

Rebecca Kaplan 

Councilmember Sheng Thao 

 

City of Piedmont 

Mayor Robert McBain 

 

City of Pleasanton 

Mayor Jerry Thorne  

 

City of Union City 

Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 

 

 

Executive Director 

Arthur L. Dao 
 

https://www.alamedactc.org/get-involved/upcoming-meetings/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 



 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, July 25, 2019, 2 p.m. 6.1 

 
     
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Roll Call 

A roll call was conducted. All members were present with the exception of Commissioner 
Arreguin, Commissioner McBain, Commissioner Miley, and Commissioner Thorne. 
 
Commissioner Cox was present as an alternate for Commissioner Chan. Commissioner 
Knox White was present as an alternate for Commissioner Ezzy Ashcraft.  
 
Subsequent to the roll call: 
Commissioner Miley arrived during Item 9.1. Commissioner Saltzman, Commissioner 
Haggerty, Commissioner Nason and Commissioner Dutra-Vernaci left after the vote on SB 
664.  
 

3. Public Comment 
A public comment was made by Ken Bukowski regarding the significance of regional 
governance.  

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report 
Vice Chair Cutter noted that Alameda CTC’s “AAA” rating of its Series 2014 sales tax 
revenue bonds has been reaffirmed by S&P Global Ratings. She noted that this allows 
Alameda CTC to deliver critical voter-approved transportation infrastructure 
improvement projects. Vice Chair Cutter also noted that Alameda CTC has been issued 
the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting by the Government 
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) for its 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. She concluded the report by stating that 
Alameda CTC will be hosting two projects briefings in the fall for the San Pablo Corridor 
and the East 14th Mission and Fremont Boulevard Projects. 
 

5. Executive Director Report 
Art Dao provided a brief status update on the Seventh Street Grade Separation Projects 
at the Port of Oakland and a suit of projects along the I-680 Corridor. He mentioned that 
staff would be following the development of the Faster Bay Area initiative and would 
keep the Commission apprised as further details are developed. Mr. Dao concluded his 
report by giving the Commission an update on leadership changes at BART, the Port of 
Oakland, and the California State Transportation Agency.   

6. Consent Calendar 
6.1. Approve June 17, 2019 Commission Minutes 
6.2. I-580 Express Lanes (PN 1373.002): Monthly Operations Update 
6.3. Approve Professional Services Agreement A19-0009 and Approval of Amendment 

No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement A17-0001 with Kapsch TrafficCom USA, Inc. 

Page 1



for I-580 Toll System Upgrade Project (PN 1486.002, State Route 84 Widening and 
State Route 84/Interstate 680 Interchange Improvements Project (PN 1386.000), I-680 
Express Lanes Project (PN 1369.000), I-580 Express Lane Operations (1373.002), and I-
680 Express Lane Operations (1408.000) 

6.4. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda CTC’s Review 
and Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments 

6.5. Approve 2020 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Programming 
Principles and Schedule 

6.6. Approve Contract Amendment No. 9 to Professional Services Agreement No. A10-
013 with Michael Baker Consulting for I-880 Operational and Safety Improvements at 
23rd and 29th Avenues Project (PN 1367000) 

6.7. Authorize release of Request for Proposals (RFP) for Construction Management 
Professional Services, and authorize negotiations with top ranked firms for 7th Street 
Grade Separation East Project (East) (GoPort – PN 1442.001) 

6.8. Approve necessary actions to initiate and complete the preparation of Plans, 
Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) and Construction Contract Documents for I-680 
Southbound Express Lane from SR 84 to Alcosta Boulevard Project (PN: 1490.001)  

6.9. Approve Community Advisory Committee Appointments 
 
Commissioner Cutter moved to approve the Consent Calendar. Commissioner 
Kaplan seconded the motion. The motion passed with the following votes:   
 
Yes: Bauters, Carson, Cox, Cutter, Dutra-Vernaci, Freitas, Haggerty, Halliday, 

Haubert, Kaplan, Knox White, Marchand, Mei, Nason, Ortiz, Saltzman, 
Thao, Valle 

No: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Arreguin, McBain, Miley, Thorne 
 

7. Community Advisory Committee Reports 
7.1 Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) 

There was no one present from BPAC. 

7.2. Independent Watchdog Committee (IWC) 
 There was no one present from IWC.  
 
7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee (PAPCO) 

There was no one present from IWC.  

8. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items  
8.1. Summary of 2019 Commission Retreat and 2020 Countywide Transportation  

Plan Approach 
Carolyn Clevenger and Kristen Villanueva presented a summary of the 2019 
Commission Retreat and the 2020 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP). In regards 
to the Commission retreat, Ms. Clevenger stated that partnerships, safety, commute 
options, quality bicycle and pedestrian facilities, affordability and housing jobs 
imbalance were key themes that came out of the retreat and are carried over in 
the 2020 CTP. She provided the Commission with an update on the CTP specifically 
the purpose, last major efforts in 2012 and 2016 and the coordination with the 

Page 2



Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) Regional Plan. Ms. Clevenger 
concluded by discussing the 2020 CTP outreach. Ms. Villanueva reviewed the 2020 
CTP approach, specifically the 2050 horizon and its consistency with the 2050 Plan 
Bay Area. She reviewed the initiatives that will be addressed in a 10-year horizon, 
such as vision and goals, needs assessment and strategy papers, project submittals, 
gaps analysis and project screening, and ongoing engagement with stakeholders. 
 
Commissioner Saltzman requested an addition to goal number 2 to state “including 
reducing reliance on single occupancy vehicles.”  
 
Commissioner Marchand noted that East County is not connected to the rest of the 
County and placed an emphasis on the importance of the Valley Link Rail Project. 
 
Commissioner Know White suggested being cautious regarding using the phrase 
multi-modal and suggested that Goal #3 be better vetted to ensure that the 
community plays a role in shaping transportation throughout the County. 
 
This item was for information only.  
 

8.2 Approve legislative positions and receive an update on federal, state, and local 
legislative activities 
Ms. Lengyel provided a brief update on federal, state and local legislative initiatives. 
She noted that the Legislator went into recess and will be back August 12, 2019. Ms. 
Lengyel provided a status of bills that the Commission has taken a position on and 
she directed the Commission to a handout provided by Commissioner Arreguin 
detailing the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) vote and proposed 
amendments to AB 1487.   
 
Ms. Lengyel then recommended that the Commission take the following Bill 
positions: 
 
• SB 664 (Allen) - Support Position recommended from the PPLC committee with a 
request for the Commission to consider issues raised by Commissioner Bauters 
regarding privacy and sale of personally identifiable data.  
Ms. Lengyel reviewed PPLC’s comments and discussion on the Bill and stated that 
the bill has moved into the Assembly Committee on Privacy and Protections with 
amendments. Ms. Lengyel reviewed amendments to SB 664 that were made since 
the last discussion by the PPLC members.     
 
Commissioners Bauters noted that he will vote to oppose the bill because it is 
retroactive and will nullify past litigation. He stated that the Bill does not provide 
minimum standards for data storage and access to consultants and he provided 
comments on issues related to skip tracing.   
 
Commissioner Halliday asked if collection agencies have the authority to share 
information under this bill. Ms. Lengyel stated that it is against the law.  
 
Commissioner Kaplan moved to Support the Bill and seek amendments that include 
the removal of language regarding retroactivity in the remaining sections of the bill 

Page 3



and to remove skip tracing as a second step in notification. Commissioner Ortiz 
seconded the motion.  A substitute motion was made by Commissioner Haggerty to 
support staff’s recommendation on the bill. Commissioner Halliday seconded the 
motion. The motion passed with the following roll call vote:   
 
Yes: Ortiz, Haggerty, Cox, Nason, Halliday, Marchand, Kaplan, Dutra-

Vernaci  
No: Bauters, Ezzy Ashcraft, Miley, Knox White, Haubert, Mei, Valle, Cutter   
Abstain: None 
Absent: Arreguin, Carson, Freitas, Thao, McBain, Thorne, Saltzman 
 
• AB 1487 (Chui)- Ms. Lengyel directed the Commission to a handout provided by 
Commissioner Arreguin detailing the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) 
vote and proposed amendments to AB 1487 
Ms. Lengyel reviewed PPLC’s comments and discussion on AB 1487 stating that 
direction from PPLC was to allow the regional entities to work with the author on 
amendments to the Bill. She noted that AB 1487 was amended after the discussion 
at PPLC and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) as well as ABAG’s 
executive committee worked to develop and provide amendments, which 
incorporated Alameda CTC’s suggested amendments. The recommendation is to 
support AB 1487 if amendment, with specific amendments listed in the handout from 
ABAG’s Executive Board.  
 
Several Commissioners raised concerns about Item 1 in the handout, which states 
that direct allocation will be provided to the 3 biggest cities. There was a consensus 
among the Commission to not include that item in the motion.    
 
There was a public comment on this item heard by Ken Bukowski encouraging equal 
funding split between all jurisdictions.   
 
Commissioner Kaplan moved to approve staff’s recommended position of support if 
amendment, with the inclusion of amendment Items #2 and # 3 as listed in the 
handout from ABAG’s Executive Board. Commissioner Halliday seconded the 
motion. The motion passed with the following roll call vote: 
 
Yes: Bauters, Cox, Cutter, Halliday, Haubert, Kaplan, Knox White, Marchand, 

Mei,  Ortiz, Valle 
No: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Arreguin, Carson, Freitas, Thao, McBain, Thorne, Saltzman, Haggerty, 

Nason, Dutra-Vernaci 
 

9. Programs and Projects Committee Action Items 
9.1. Metropolitan Transportation Commission I-880 Express Lane Update 

(This item was heard after Item 7) 
Lisa Klein and Barbara Laurenson from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
presented an update on the I-880 Express Lane Project.  
 

Page 4



Commissioner Cutter wanted to know if tolling on the express lane is an 
inconvenience on low income families and wanted information back on how many 
users of the lane have three or more people in the vehicle.  
 
Commissioner Cox asked if older clean air vehicles would be eligible to use the lane. 
Ms. Laurenson stated that only newer clean air vehicles would be eligible. 
 
Commissioner Kaplan noted that the toll tags should be more accessible and 
suggested having the tags available at car dealerships and/or have them onsite to 
purchase during outreach events. 
 
Commissioner Kaplan wanted information on who will manage the revenue from the 
lane. Ms. Klein stated that MTC is cautiously approaching spending net revenue from 
the lane.  
 
Commissioner Miley wanted to know if there has been outreach done to the County 
Board of Supervisors and if the unincorporated areas of the County were included in 
outreach efforts. Ms. Laurenson detailed outreach efforts.  
 
Commissioner Halliday requested that MTC craft and distribute print messages that 
could be distributed to constituents as the lanes are opened. Ms. Laurenson noted 
that there will be four video meetings available on the website and she stated that 
staff is working with Public information officers throughout the County to get the 
message out.  
 
There was a public comment on this item made by Ken Bukowski regarding the 
revenue for the lane as well as low income riders.    
 
 This item was for information only.  
 

10. Member Reports 
There were no member reports.  
 

11. Adjournment 
The next meeting is Thursday, September 26, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 

Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 6Page 6



 
 

Memorandum  6.2 

AA 

 DATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Liz Rutman, Director of Express Lanes Implementation and Operations 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes (PN 1373.002): Approve Amendment No. 1 to 

Cooperative Agreement with the Bay Area Toll Authority for Regional 

Customer Service Center Services for the I-580 Express Lanes 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve and authorize the Executive Director to 

execute Amendment No. 1 to Cooperative Agreement I-580-EL-BAT-FY15-16 with the Bay 

Area Toll Authority for Regional Customer Service Center Services for the I-580 Express Lanes 

to extend the term of the Agreement until March 30, 2022 and amend the terms of 

reimbursable costs. 

Summary 

Alameda CTC entered into a cooperative agreement with the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) 

for toll collection and customer services necessary to operate the I-580 Express Lanes in 2015. 

The current Agreement will expire on November 30, 2019. BATA requests that the Agreement 

be extended until March 30, 2022.  

In addition, BATA is requesting modifications to several terms of the Agreement related to 

specific reimbursable costs. Because BATA provides Customer Service Center (CSC) 

services for all of the Bay Area Express Lanes, staff has negotiated these terms with BATA 

in coordination with the other Bay Area express lane operating agencies. This ensures 

equitability and consistency of sharing of joint costs and cost adjustments are 

automatically applied as additional express lane facilities begin operations. A summary of 

the amendment items is included in Table A. 

The overall impact of these changes to the FY 2019-2020 operating costs of the I-580 Express 

Lanes associated with BATA CSC Services is estimated to be $100,000, a 7% increase over the 

FY 2018-19 actual expenditures under this Agreement. However, these additional costs will 

decrease over time as new express lane facilities begin revenue operations and decrease 

the proportional share borne by the I-580 Express Lanes. 

  

Page 7Page 7



 

Background 

The Alameda CTC operates and maintains the I-580 Express Lanes. Tolls for solo drivers are 

collected through an All Electronic Toll (AET) collection method by the use of FasTrak® 

transponders; motorists without transponders are assessed a toll via the vehicle’s license 

plate. Prior to the opening of the facility to traffic in February 2016, the Alameda CTC entered 

into a cooperative agreement with the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) for toll collection and 

customer services necessary to operate the I-580 Express Lanes as an AET facility. BATA is the 

only agency in the Bay Area that is set up to distribute FasTrak® / FasTrak flex®  transponders 

(a.k.a. toll tags), maintain accounts, collect tolls, process violation penalties, and provide 

related customer services for the Bay Area. BATA, therefore, provides these back office 

services for all of the Bay Area toll facilities. The current Agreement will expire on November 

30, 2019. BATA requests that the Agreement be extended until March 30, 2022.  

In addition, BATA is requesting modifications to several terms of the Agreement related to 

specific reimbursement costs as outlined below. Because BATA provides back office 

services for all of the Bay Area Express Lanes, staff has negotiated these terms with BATA 

in coordination with the other Bay Area express lane operating agencies to ensure 

equitability and consistency of cost sharing of joint costs and cost adjustments 

automatically applied as additional express lane facilities begin operations. A summary of 

the amendment items is included in Table A. 

I-580 Toll System Upgrade Project System Testing: 

Toll collection relies on electronic transfer of files between the I -580 Express Lanes toll 

system and the BATA CSC system implemented by BATA’s consultant. When the I-580 

Express Lanes were first, this Agreement included payment to BATA to have their 

consultant participate in the testing of this electronic transfer of files. Subsequently, 

anytime there is a change in consultant on either side of the exchange, testing of the 

electronic file transfers between the new consultants must be performed. In July 2019, the 

Commission selected Kapsch TrafficCom Transportation NA, Inc. (Kapsch) as the TSI for 

the I-580 Toll System Upgrade. Staff recommends amending the existing Agreement to 

include necessary testing of the new toll system’s file exchange interface and ensure 

continued operation of the Express Lane facility throughout and after the upgrade 

project completion. 

Clean Air Vehicle Enrollment Costs: 

Alameda CTC’s current business rules permit vehicles with two or more persons (HOV2+) to 

travel toll free in the I-580 Express Lanes. Under California law, clean air vehicles (CAVs) with 

eligible decals issued by the Department of Motor Vehicle must be allowed to access the 

Express Lanes regardless of vehicle occupancy; such access may be allowed free of charge 

or at a reduced rate. Eligibility is determined by California Air Quality Resources Board. The 

current Ordinance for Administration of Tolls and Enforcement of Toll Violations for the I-580 

Express Lanes authorizes CAVs to travel toll-free in the I-580 Express Lanes if the vehicle is 

displaying a qualifying DMV decal and the vehicles is carrying a valid FasTrak® Flex® 

transponder in the HOV2 or HOV3+ position. The latter requirement is necessary in order for 

the toll system to identify the vehicle as eligible for toll-free travel since the DMV decal is not 

electronically detectable. Use of the HOV setting makes it more difficult for CHP to enforce 

the express lanes as they now must look for a DMV decal as well as occupancy when 

assessing the status of a CAV. 

Page 8Page 8



 

To better facilitate enforcement of the Express Lanes, as well as support agencies throughout 

the state that intend to shift from toll-free to reduced-rate toll CAV policies, BATA is 

developing an enrollment program to allow CAV owners to register their CAV with their 

FasTrak account and obtain a new “CAV transponder” that will indicated to all toll systems 

within the state that the vehicle is a documented CAV. In conjunction with a recent state-

mandated update, the I-580 Express Lanes toll system was modified to identify these new 

transponders to ensure such vehicles are assessed toll amounts in accordance with the I-580 

Express Lanes business rules. At this time, staff is not recommending that Alameda CTC 

modify the I-580 Express Lanes business rules with respect to CAVs. Prior to any potential 

change to Alameda CTC’s business rules regarding CAVs, the Commission would need to 

adopt a revised Ordinance for Administration of Tolls and Enforcement of Toll Violations for 

the I-580 Express Lanes. However, staff recommends approval of the requested amendment 

to include reimbursement to BATA for I-580 Express Lanes’ calculated share of costs 

associated with BATA CSC staff and material costs for CAV toll tag enrollment and swap-out 

mailing for replacement tags for an existing account holder who is trading in an existing 

FasTrak tag for a new “CAV” tag.  Alameda CTC’s monthly share of additional startup costs 

shall be calculated based on the Alameda CTC proportion of Bay Area Express Lane 

transactions processed by the BATA CSC. 

Transaction Processing Costs: 

The I-580 Express Lanes toll system creates a trip record, or transaction, each time a vehicle 

uses the express lane. The current Cooperative Agreement includes fixed cost per 

transaction for each transponder-based transaction, each license plate image-based 

transaction, and each violation notice. These costs are incurred only for the first handling of 

the transaction, including the first violation notice generated by the BATA CSC and does not 

apply to subsequent handling of the transaction necessary for full transaction processing. The 

Agreement allows for review of the unit cost on an annual basis. BATA is now requesting that 

the Cooperative Agreement be amended to stipulate that these unit costs will be escalated 

beginning October 2019 according to the then current California Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

for San Francisco CMSA as published by the California Department of Finance, and annually 

thereafter, consistent with the BATA CSC contract costs. 

BATA CSC Operation and Maintenance Costs: 

The current Agreement includes reimbursement to BATA for Alameda CTC’s share of 

operational and maintenance of software and hardware, and licensing fee associated with 

BATA CSC’s services specifically related to the I-580 Express Lanes. Alameda CTC’s current 

share is calculated as 13% of the total actual operations and maintenance cost. With this 

amendment, staff is recommending that Alameda CTC’s monthly share of additional startup 

costs be calculated based on the Alameda CTC proportion of Bay Area Express Lane 

transactions processed by the BATA CSC.  

BATA CSC Accounting Specialist Cost: 

BATA is requesting that express lane operators reimburse BATA for the monthly cost 

associated with BATA CSC’s accounting specialist support staff needs specifically related to 

the express lanes. The Agreement amendment would include that Alameda CTC reimburse 

BATA for its share of this monthly cost, with the cost share based on the Alameda CTC 

proportion of Bay Area Express Lane transactions processed by the BATA CSC. 

Page 9Page 9



 

BATA Direct Costs: 

The current Agreement includes reimbursement of BATA for direct staff costs, including 

overhead, expended by BATA for ongoing management and support of the Express Lanes. 

The Agreement allows for review of the unit cost on an annual basis. BATA is now requesting 

that the Cooperative Agreement be amended to increase this amount from $5,500 per 

month to $5,670 per month to account for increases in those costs since the Agreement was 

initially executed. 

 

  

TABLE A: Summary of Amendment Impacts to Cooperative Agreement I-580-El-BATA-FY15-16 

Agreement Item Current Terms Proposed Revised Terms 

Expiration Date November 30, 2019 March 30, 2022 

Testing Related to I-580 

Toll System Upgrade 

Project 

N/A Not to exceed $30,000 

CAV Program Costs: N/A  

CAV Application 

Validation 

 Calculated share $6.350 each based on monthly 

express lane transaction share 

CAV Tag Kit Assembly 

(replacement tags only) 

 Calculated share of $3.099 each based on 

monthly express lane transaction share 

CAV Tag Kit Postage 

(replacement tags only) 

 Calculated share of actual cost based on 

monthly express lane transaction share 

Transaction Processing 

Costs: 

 Transaction costs, License Plate Image Based 

costs and Violation Notice costs will be 

escalated beginning October 2019 according to 

the then current California Consumer Price Index 

(CPI) for San Francisco CMSA as published by 

the California Department of Finance, and 

annually thereafter, consistent with the BATA 

CSC contract costs. 

Transponder-Based 

Transactions 

$0.161 each                                                            

License Plate Image-

Based Transactions 

$0.161 each                                                            

Violation Notice Costs $0.880 each 

BATA CSC Operation 

and Maintenance 

Costs 

13% of Total Actual 

O&M Cost related 

to Express Lanes 

Calculated share of (estimated $19,287) Total 

Actual O&M Costs related to Express Lanes 

based on monthly express lane transaction share  

BATA CSC Accounting 

Specialist Cost 

N/A Calculated share of (estimated $6,309) per 

month cost based on monthly express lane 

transaction share 

BATA Direct Costs $5,500 per month $5,670 per month 

TOTAL ESTIMATED ADDITIONAL COST FOR      

FY 2019-2020  

$100,000 

Page 10Page 10



 

Cost Share Formula: 

𝐴𝑙𝑎𝑚𝑒𝑑𝑎 𝐶𝑇𝐶 𝐶𝑜𝑠𝑡 𝑆ℎ𝑎𝑟𝑒 =  
𝐴𝑙𝑎𝑚𝑒𝑎𝑑 𝐶𝑇𝐶 𝑀𝑜𝑛𝑡ℎ𝑙𝑦 𝑛𝑢𝑚𝑏𝑒𝑟 𝑜𝑓 𝑇𝑟𝑎𝑛𝑠𝑎𝑐𝑡𝑖𝑜𝑛𝑠

𝑇𝑜𝑡𝑎𝑙 𝑀𝑜𝑛𝑡ℎ𝑙𝑦 𝑛𝑢𝑚𝑏𝑒𝑟 𝑜𝑓 𝐵𝑎𝑦 𝐴𝑟𝑒𝑎 𝐸𝑥𝑝𝑟𝑒𝑠𝑠 𝐿𝑎𝑛𝑒 𝑇𝑟𝑎𝑛𝑠𝑎𝑐𝑡𝑖𝑜𝑛𝑠 𝑓𝑜𝑟
𝐴𝑙𝑎𝑚𝑒𝑑𝑎 𝐶𝑇𝐶

𝐵𝑎𝑦 𝐴𝑟𝑒𝑎 𝐼𝑛𝑓𝑟𝑎𝑠𝑡𝑟𝑢𝑐𝑡𝑢𝑟𝑒 𝐹𝑖𝑛𝑎𝑛𝑐𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝐴𝑢𝑡ℎ𝑜𝑟𝑖𝑡𝑦
𝑆𝑎𝑛 𝑀𝑎𝑡𝑒𝑜 𝐸𝑥𝑝𝑟𝑒𝑠𝑠 𝐿𝑎𝑛𝑒𝑠 𝐽𝑜𝑖𝑛𝑡 𝑃𝑜𝑤𝑒𝑟𝑠 𝐴𝑢𝑡ℎ𝑜𝑟𝑖𝑡𝑦

𝑆𝑎𝑛𝑡𝑎 𝐶𝑙𝑎𝑟𝑎 𝑉𝑎𝑙𝑙𝑒𝑦 𝑇𝑟𝑎𝑛𝑠𝑝𝑜𝑟𝑡𝑎𝑡𝑖𝑜𝑛 𝐴𝑢𝑡ℎ𝑜𝑟𝑖𝑡𝑦
𝐼 − 680 𝑆𝑢𝑛𝑜𝑙 𝑆𝑚𝑎𝑟𝑡 𝐶𝑎𝑟𝑝𝑜𝑜𝑙 𝐿𝑎𝑛𝑒 𝐽𝑜𝑖𝑛𝑡 𝑃𝑜𝑤𝑒𝑟𝑠 𝐴𝑢𝑡ℎ𝑜𝑟𝑖𝑡𝑦

  

 

Fiscal Impact: Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement will encumber I-580 Toll 

Revenue funds for subsequent expenditure from September 1, 2019 through March 30, 

2022 subject to the approval of the FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 operating budgets. 

Page 11Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 12Page 12



 
 

Memorandum  6.3 

AA 

 ApDATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Liz Rutman, Director of Express Lanes Implementation and Operations 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes Upgrade Project (PN 1486.000): Approve 

Cooperative Agreement with the Caltrans 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve and authorize the Executive Director to 

execute a Cooperative Agreement with the California Department of Transportation 

(Caltrans) for the I-580 Express Lanes Toll System Upgrade Project. 

Summary 

The Alameda CTC operates and maintains the I-580 Express Lanes and is implementing the I-

580 Toll System Upgrade Project (Project). The Project will replace and/or upgrade most of 

the tolling equipment to improve enforcement and toll operations and make minor 

modifications to the associated toll signage. The Project is funded by I-580 Toll Revenues.  

Since this work will be performed within the State Right-of-Way, a Cooperative Agreement is 

required to delineate the roles and responsibilities between Alameda CTC and Caltrans for 

the design and construction phases of the project, obtain necessary project approvals from 

Caltrans, and obtain the encroachment permit necessary for the Toll System Integrator to 

install the new toll equipment. The total cost of this Cooperative Agreement has a not-to-

exceed budget of $185,000. 

Background 

The I-580 Express Lanes, extending from Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road in the eastbound 

direction and from Greenville Road to the I-580/I-680 Interchange in the westbound 

direction, were opened to traffic in February 2016. Motorists using the I-580 Express Lanes 

facility benefit from travel time savings and travel reliability compared to those in the general 

purpose lanes. An All Electronic Toll (AET) collection method has been employed to  

collect tolls. 

The I-580 Express Lanes toll system, which was competitively procured in 2009 and put into 

revenue service in February 2016, now lacks technological advances in vehicle detection 

Page 13Page 13



 

and identification that would improve enforcement and increase toll revenues. In July 

2019, the Commission selected Kapsch TrafficCom Transportation NA, Inc. (Kapsch) as the 

Toll System Integrator (TSI) for the I-580 Toll System Upgrade. The Project includes 

development of a new toll host system and replacement of some of the lane equipment 

to improve vehicle capture and association, thereby improving enforcement and 

increasing revenues. 

As owner/operator of the state highway system (SHS), Caltrans must provide 

owner/operator approvals for the portions of the Project being deployed within the 

existing SHS right-of-way. The estimated cost of the Project elements within the SHS is $4.8 

million, which exceeds the limits for a pure encroachment permit. Through negotiations 

with Caltrans, the project has been granted an expedited process for project delivery but 

still requires a Cooperative Agreement for reimbursed oversight. Caltrans has proposed a 

not-to-exceed budget for this oversight work totaling $185,000. 

Staff recommend that the Commission approve and authorize the Executive Director to 

execute a Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans for the I-580 Express Lanes Toll System 

Upgrade Project with a not-to-exceed budget of $185,000. 

Fiscal Impact: Approval of the Cooperative Agreement will encumber $185,000 of I-580 

Toll Revenue funds for subsequent expenditure. This budget is included in the I-580 Express 

Lanes Toll System Upgrade project funding plan and has been included in the Alameda 

CTC Adopted FY 2019-2020 Operating and Capital Program Budget. 

Page 14Page 14



 
 

Memorandum  6.4 

AA 

 DATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Ashley Tam, Associate Transportation Engineer 

Liz Rutman, Director of Express Lanes Implementation and Operations 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes (PN 1373.002): Monthly Operation Update 

 

Recommendation 

This item is to provide the Commission with an update on the operation of the I-580 Express 

Lanes. This item is for information only. 

Summary 

The Alameda CTC is the project sponsor of the I-580 Express Lanes, located in the Tri-

Valley corridor through the cities of Dublin, Pleasanton, and Livermore, which opened to 

traffic on February 19th and 22nd of 2016. See Attachment A for express lane  

operation limits. 

The June/July 2019 operations report indicates that the express lane facility continues to 

provide travel time savings and travel reliability throughout the day. Express lane users 

typically experienced higher speeds and lesser average lane densities than the general 

purpose lanes, resulting in a more comfortable drive and travel time savings for express 

lane users. 

Background 

The I-580 Express Lanes, extending from Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road in the 

eastbound direction and from Greenville Road to the I-680 Interchange in the westbound 

direction, were opened to traffic on February 19 th and 22nd of 2016 in the eastbound and 

westbound directions, respectively.  Motorists using the I -580 Express Lanes facility benefit 

from travel time savings and travel reliability as the express lanes optimize the corridor 

capacity by providing a new choice to drivers. Single occupancy vehicles (SOVs) may 

choose to pay a toll and travel within the express lanes, while carpools, clean-air vehicles, 

motorcycles, and transit vehicles enjoy the benefits of toll-free travel in the express lanes.  

An All Electronic Toll (AET) collection method has been employed to collect tolls. Toll rates 

are calculated based on real-time traffic conditions (speed and volume) in express and 

Page 15Page 15



 

general purpose lanes and can change as frequently as every three minutes.  California 

Highway Patrol (CHP) officers provide enforcement services and the California 

Department of Transportation (Caltrans) provides roadway maintenance services through 

reimbursable service agreements. 

June/July 2019 Operations Update: 

Approximately 696,000 and 749,000 express lane trips were recorded during operational 

hours in June and July, respectively, which is an average of approximately 34,400 daily 

trips. Table 1 presents the breakdown of trips based on toll classification and direction of 

travel. Pursuant to the Commission-adopted “Ordinance for Administration of Tolls and 

Enforcement of Toll Violations for the I-580 Express Lanes,” if a vehicle uses the express 

lanes without a valid FasTrak® toll tag then the license plate read by the Electronic Tolling 

System is used to assess a toll either by means of an existing FasTrak account to which the 

license plate is registered or by issuing a notice of toll evasion violation to the registered 

vehicle owner. Approximately 75 percent of all trips by users without a toll tag are 

assessed tolls via FasTrak account. 

Table 1. Express Lane Trips by Type and Direction 

Trip Classification 
Percent of Trips1 

April/May 

By Type 

HOV-eligible with FasTrak flex tag 47% 

SOV with FasTrak standard or flex tag 33% 

No valid toll tag in vehicle 20% 

By Direction 
Westbound 44% 

Eastbound 56% 

1. Excludes “trips” by users that had no toll tag and either no license plate or one that could not 

be read by the Electronic Tolling System with sufficient accuracy that a toll could be assessed.  

 

Express lane users typically experience higher speeds and lesser lane densities than the 

general purpose lanes. Lane density is measured by the number of vehicles per mile per 

lane and reported as Level of Service (LOS). LOS is a measure of freeway performance 

based on vehicle maneuverability and driver comfort levels, graded on a scale of A 

(best) through F (worst). 

Attachment B presents the speed and density heat maps for the I-580 corridor during 

revenue hours for the six-month period from January 2019 through June 2019. These heat 

maps are a graphical representation of the overall condition of the corridor, showing the 

average speeds and densities along the express lane corridor and throughout the day for 

both the express and general purpose lanes, and are used to evaluate whether the 

express lanes are meeting both federal and state performance standards. During these six 

months, the average speeds at each traffic sensor location in the westbound express 

lane ranged from 50 to over 70 mph during the morning commute hours (5 am to 11 am) 

with the lower speeds occurring between Isabel Avenue and Santa Rita Road. The 

Page 16Page 16



 

express lane operated at LOS C or better at most times, with a short period of LOS D 

experienced near Fallon Road in the morning commute. By comparison, the general 

purpose lanes experienced average speeds as low as 45 mph and LOS D throughout 

longer sections of the corridor for longer periods of time. During this six-month period, the 

evening westbound reverse-commute congestion between Hacienda Road and San 

Ramon Road improved such that, outside of the commute hours, westbound express lane 

users experience average speeds of 65 mph or higher and average LOS A. 

In the eastbound direction, average express lane speeds from January 2019 through June 

2019 ranged from 20 to 70 mph during the evening commute hours (2 pm – 7 pm) with the 

lowest speeds occurring at the eastern terminus of the express lanes, between Vasco 

Road and Greenville Road. Average express lane speeds throughout the rest of the day 

exceeded 65 mph. Most of the express lane corridor operates at LOS C or better during 

the evening commute hours, with limited sections of degraded LOS at the western end of 

the express lanes between 3 pm and 6 pm and at the eastern terminus between 3 pm 

and 7 pm. The express lanes averaged LOS B or better throughout the rest of the day in all 

locations. By comparison, the general purpose lanes experienced lower speeds and 

degraded levels of services for longer periods of time than the express lanes during the 

evening commute hours.  

Table 2 presents the maximum posted toll rates to travel the entire corridor in each 

direction in June and July 2019, along with the average toll assessed to toll-paying users. 

Table 2. Toll Rate Data 

Month Direction 
Maximum Posted Toll 

(Travel Entire Corridor) 

Average Assessed1 

Toll (All Toll Trips) 

June/July 
Westbound $13.00 (3 of 42 days) $2.71 

Eastbound $12.00 (30 of 42 days) $3.74 

1 Assessed toll is the toll rate applied to non-toll-free trips and reflects potential revenue generated 

by the trip. Not all potential revenue results in actual revenue received.  

 

In Fiscal Year 2018-19, the I-580 Express Lanes recorded over 8.4 million total trips. Total 

gross revenues received include $13.4 million in toll revenues and $2.7 million in violation 

fees and penalties. Gross toll revenues in July 2019 include $1.1 million of toll revenues and 

$250,000 in violation fees and penalties. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with the requested action. 

Attachments: 

A. I-580 Express Lanes Location Map 

B. I-580 Corridor Express Lanes Heat Maps January 2019 – June 2019 

Page 17Page 17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 18Page 18



I-580 Policy Committee

I-580 Express Lanes

Location Map
6.4A

Page 19Page 19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 20Page 20



Greenville Rd

Vasco Rd

N. First St

N. Livermore Ave

Isabel Ave

Airway Blvd

Fallon Rd

Santa Rita Rd

Hacienda Rd

Hopyard Rd

I-6805 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

3 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

5 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

3 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

Westbound I-580 Corridor Speed Heat Maps
Monday-Friday, January 2019 – June 2019

Express Lane General Purpose

Di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 Tr
av

el

Mile

0

12

3

6

9

<30 mph 30 - 44 45 - 54 55 - 64 ≥65 mph

6.4B

Page 21Page 21



Greenville Rd

Vasco Rd

N. First St

N. Livermore Ave

Isabel Ave

Airway Blvd

Fallon Rd

Santa Rita Rd

Hacienda Rd

Hopyard Rd

I-6805 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

3 
PM

5 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

3 
PM

Westbound I-580 Corridor Density Heat Maps
Monday-Friday, January 2019 – June 2019

Express Lane General Purpose

LOS A LOS B LOS C LOS D LOS E LOS F

Di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 Tr
av

el

0

12

3

6

9

Mile

Page 22Page 22



Greenville Rd

Vasco Rd

N. First St

N. Livermore Ave

Isabel Ave

Airway Blvd

Fallon Rd

Santa Rita Rd

Hacienda Rd 7 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

1 
PM

2 
PM

3 
PM

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

6 
A

M

5 
A

M

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

1 
PM

2 
PM

3 
PM

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

6 
A

M

5 
A

M

Eastbound I-580 Corridor Speed Heat Maps
Monday-Friday, January 2019 – June 2019

Express Lane General Purpose

Di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 Tr
av

el

Mile
0

2

4

6

8

10

<30 mph 30 - 44 45 - 54 55 - 64 ≥65 mph

Page 23Page 23



Greenville Rd

Vasco Rd

N. First St

N. Livermore Ave

Isabel Ave

Airway Blvd

Fallon Rd

Santa Rita Rd

Hacienda Rd 3 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

5 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

3 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

5 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

Eastbound I-580 Corridor Density Heat Maps
Monday-Friday, January 2019 – June 2019

Express Lane

LOS A LOS B LOS C LOS D LOS E LOS F

Di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 Tr
av

el

Mile
0

2

4

6

8

10

General Purpose

Page 24Page 24



 
 
 

Memorandum 6.5 

 

DATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Saravana Suthanthira, Principal Transportation Planner 

Chris G. Marks, Associate Transportation Planner 

SUBJECT: Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda 

CTC’s Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and 

General Plan Amendments 

 

Recommendation 

This item updates the Commission with a summary of Alameda CTC’s review and comments 

on Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments. This item is for  

information only. 

Summary 

This item fulfills one of the requirements under the Land Use Analysis Program (LUAP) element 

of the Congestion Management Program. As part of the LUAP, Alameda CTC reviews 

Notices of Preparations (NOPs), General Plan Amendments (GPAs), and Environmental 

Impact Reports (EIRs) prepared by local jurisdictions and comments on the potential impact 

of proposed land development on the regional transportation system.  

Since the last update on July 8, 2019, the Alameda CTC reviewed one NOP and one Draft 

Supplemental EIR. Responses were submitted and are included as Attachments A and B.  

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 

Attachments: 

A. Response to the Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) 

for the Adeline Corridor Specific Plan in the City of Berkeley 

B. Response to the Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) 

for the Union City 2040 General Plan Update 

Page 25Page 25



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 26Page 26



6.5A

Page 27Page 27



Page 28Page 28



August 9, 2019 

Carmela Campbell 

Planning Manager 

City of Union City 

Planning Division, Economic and Community Development 

34009 Alvarado-Niles Road 

Union City, CA 94587 

SUBJECT: Response to the Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for 

the Union City 2040 General Plan Update 

Dear Ms. Campbell, 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the 

Union City 2040 General Plan Update. The plan covers 19.4 square miles encompassing the entire City 

of Union City including the Union City BART station. The proposed Plan provides a comprehensive vision 

for the Plan Area along with goals, policies, strategies and development regulations that will guide future 

growth. The DEIR estimates that full buildout of the proposed Plan would include 4,330 new housing 

units and 8,069,113 square feet of new commercial space. The proposed Plan would create more than 100 

new PM-peak trips and is subject to review under Alameda CTC’s Congestion Management Program 

(CMP), Land Use Analysis Program. 

The Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) respectfully submits the following 

comments: 

 Alameda CTC acknowledges the proposed improvements documented in the DEIR under Impact

T-1 would be consistent with the adopted 2012 Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan adopted by the

City of Union City in 2012 and Plan Bay Area 2040, however the DEIR does not address

consistency with other applicable plans, including Alameda CTC’s Countywide Active

Transportation Plan. Additionally, consistency with the Union City Pedestrian and Bicycle Master

Plan would likely improve bicycle connectivity within the plan area but the DEIR does not

consider potential safety impacts to people walking and biking in the plan area as a result of

increases in traffic throughput.

 Under Impact T-5 the DEIR identifies potential impact to auto LOS on a number of roadways due

to increases in traffic, however the DEIR does not consider potential impacts to transit service

provided on these roadways as well. The DEIR should consider potential impacts to transit service

so potential mitigations to improve transit service can be identified.

6.5B

Page 29Page 29



Ms. Campbell 

Friday, August 09, 2019 

Page 2 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this DEIR. Please contact me at (510) 208-7426 or Chris 

G. Marks, Associate Transportation Planner at (510) 208-7453, if you have any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Carolyn Clevenger 

Director of Planning 

Page 30Page 30



 
 

Memorandum  6.6  

 

DATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: 
Tess Lengyel, Deputy Executive Director Planning and Policy 

Saravana Suthanthira, Principal Transportation Planner 

SUBJECT: I-580 Design Alternatives Assessment Update 

 

Recommendation 

This item is to provide the Commission with an update on the I-580 Design Alternatives 

Assessment between I-238 and the Bay Bridge Toll Plaza, which is jointly developed by the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and Alameda CTC. This item is for  

information only. 

 

Summary 

The I-580 corridor a key travel corridor in Alameda County connecting central and northern 

portions of the county to San Francisco, the Tri-Valley, and beyond. To address the persistent 

congestion on this corridor, particularly in the northern section in the commute direction, MTC 

and Alameda CTC partnered in early 2018 to conduct a Design Alternatives Assessment 

(DAA), a focused technical study identifying potential multimodal improvements. The study 

corridor limits were between I-238 and Bay Bridge Toll Plaza. In working with all stakeholder 

agencies, including Caltrans, the project team has identified a package of multimodal 

improvements to move forward over various timelines for project development and delivery 

as described below: 

 HOV extension from the current terminus east of the Bay Bridge Toll Plaza to east of I-

980/SR 24 interchange (immediate near term) 

 Conversion of General Purpose Lanes to Express Lanes (mid-term – in conjunction with 

implementation of outcomes from other DAAs) 

 Arterial transit improvements including Express Bus Pilots and Park and Ride lots 

(immediate near term) 

As next steps, MTC and Alameda CTC will discuss their respective roles, identify the available 

process and funding options, and move forward with appropriate agency approval to 

advance implementation of these improvements. 

  

Page 31Page 31



Background  

I-580 is one of Alameda County’s key transportation routes, carrying over 200,000 vehicles per 

day in its most heavily used segments and serving as a primary feeder to the Transbay/Bay 

Bridge corridor. Given the worsening congestion associated with Bay Bridge traffic and 

constrained right-of-way, MTC has identified the segment of I-580 from SR-238 in Castro Valley 

to I-80 in Oakland within Alameda County (shown in Figure 1) as a candidate for managed 

lanes as part of its Managed Lanes Implementation Plan effort. To evaluate this corridor 

further for identifying potential improvements, MTC and Alameda CTC jointly conducted a 

Design Alternative Assessment (DAA) for this segment. In recent years, MTC has initiated 

similar arrangements with several other County Transportation Agencies, including Contra 

Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) for I-680 and jointly with the Congestion Management 

Agencies of Solano, Sonoma, Napa, and Marin counties (STA, SCTA, NVTA, and TAM) for 

State Route 37. The DAA evaluated traffic and throughput needs for this segment of I-580 

and identified a list of feasible, near- and mid-term project concepts that can be advanced 

to project development. Alameda CTC intends to conduct similar DAAs to identify an 

appropriate set of improvement projects for the rest of the I-580 corridor, excluding the 

Express Lanes section, in the near future for a holistic approach to improve the entire corridor.  

Figure 1 - DAA Study Limits: I-580 between Bay Bridge Toll Plaza and SR-238  

 

The purpose of the DAA is as follows: 

 

 Improve local and regional multimodal mobility for people 

 Focus on increasing person throughput, improving travel time reliability, and offering 

travel time savings and to support bus and high occupancy vehicle use 

 Identify a set of near-term (<5 years) operational projects that can quickly advance 

into project development and delivery 

 Identify mid-term capital projects that may be further explored independently 

Page 32Page 32



The project team worked with a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) with members of all 

relevant jurisdictions and transit agencies and Caltrans. Participants included representatives 

from: 

 City of Emeryville 

 City of Oakland 

 City of San Leandro 

 Alameda County 

 AC Transit 

 Caltrans 

In addition to the TAC meetings, the project team met several times with key stakeholders 

such as the City of Oakland, AC Transit, and San Leandro during the DAA development to 

share discuss the progress and issues more relevant to them.   

Key Findings 

Based on the existing conditions analysis, including origin and destination data analysis, 

the following key findings were identified: 

 

 Persistent congestion is experienced in the peak direction in the northern portion of 

the study corridor as follows: 

o In the westbound direction, the section between the Toll Plaza and I-980/SR 

24 experiences congestion from 5 to 11 am in the morning, while the section 

between the Toll Plaza and Golf Links Road near the Oakland Zoo 

experiences congestion from 7 am to 10 am. 

o Eastbound in the afternoon between the Toll Plaza and east of SR 13 

experiences congestion from 3 pm to until 7 pm.  

 A majority of the westbound trips (56%) in the morning are going to destinations in 

downtown Oakland. Of the total trips on the corridor, about 20% of them originate 

in San Leandro and Castro Valley and over 15% are coming from the Tri Valley, 

primarily from Dublin/Pleasanton. 

 

Alternatives Considered and Identified for Moving Forward 

 

In support of the multimodal and increased person throughput goals, several mainline 

improvement options and a package of support strategies were studied. Based on the 

traffic analysis, design and operation and maintenance challenges, the project team 

narrowed down two mainline alternatives for consideration to move forward.  

 

Mainline Alternatives Considered For Project Development Advancement: 

 Westbound HOV lane extension – extending the westbound High Occupancy Vehicle 

(HOV) lane from its current terminus west of the Toll Plaza to east of I-980/SR24 

interchange (1.2 miles). (Attachment A) 

 Conversion of GP lanes into Express Lanes from east of I -980/SR 24 interchange to west 

of I-238 (12 miles) (Attachment A) 

 

  

Page 33Page 33



Mainline Alternatives Considered but Not Recommended for Advancement: 

 Conversion of general purpose (GP) lanes into HOV Lanes from east of I-980/SR 24 

interchange to west of I-238 (12 miles) 

 Contraflow HOV or Express Lanes between east of I-980/SR 24 interchange and west of 

Golf Links Road by adding/converting a lane from the reverse commute direction for 6 

to 6.5 miles  

 Bus on shoulder -  between east of I-980/SR 24 interchange and Edwards Avenue in 

the eastbound direction (6.0 miles) and between west of 150 th Avenue to east of  I-

980/SR 24 interchange in the westbound direction (11.3 miles)  

 

Supporting Strategies: 

 Arterial improvements for transit  

 Express Bus Service – Transbay and Oakland-bound 

 Park and Ride lots 

 

The City of Oakland is currently advancing an arterial improvement for transit parallel to I -

580, the MacArthur Blvd Smart Corridor Project, which is a $13.4 million, 13-mile corridor 

project between Lakeshore Blvd and approximately 98th Ave. This project was funded by 

Alameda CTC ($11 million) in the 2020 Comprehensive Investment Program for 

implementation by the City of Oakland in coordination with AC Transit. The project 

proposes to implement communication infrastructure with fiber interconnect all along the 

corridor, as well as traffic signal and operational improvements and queue jumps that 

support transit performance and pedestrian safety. This project is scheduled to move into 

the design phase later this year and start construction in the spring of 2021.  

Next Steps 

The project team will complete the DAA report in the fall. MTC, Alameda CTC and partner 

TAC agencies will discuss and identify ways to advance implementation of the I-580 mainline 

alternatives considered for project development advancement and the supporting 

strategies listed above.   

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with the requested action.   

Attachment: 

A. Westbound HOV lane extension and Conversion of GP lanes into Express Lanes from 

east of I-980/SR 24 interchange to west of I-238  

Page 34Page 34



Westbound HOV Lane Extension (Alternative 1A)

1

6.6A

Page 35Page 35



GP Lane Conversion to Express Lane – Alternative 1C 

2Page 36Page 36



 
 

Memorandum  6.7 

DATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Saravana Suthanthira, Principal Transportation Planner 

Chris G. Marks, Asssociate Transportation Planner 

SUBJECT: Approve the 2019 Congestion Management Program (CMP) and 2019 

CMP Conformity Findings 

 

Recommendation  

 

It is recommended that the Commission approve the 2019 Congestion Management 

Program (CMP) and adopt the 2019 CMP Conformity Findings. Upon approval, the 2019 CMP 

report will be sent to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as required.   

Summary 

State legislation requires Alameda CTC, as the congestion management agency (CMA) 

for Alameda County, to update its Congestion Management Program (CMP) every two 

years. There are five required elements in the CMP: (1) level of service monitoring, (2) a 

multimodal performance element, (3) a travel demand management element, (4) a land 

use analysis program, and (5) a capital improvement program. The last update to the CMP 

was completed in December 2017. The 2019 update is a focused update to the Alameda 

County Congestion Management Program (CMP). In conformance with legislative 

requirements, the CMP describes strategies and procedures to: (1) monitor the 

performance of the county’s multimodal transportation system, (2) address roadway 

congestion and improve the performance of a multimodal system, and (3) integrate 

transportation and land use planning. There will likely be upcoming changes to the CMP 

legislation, streamlining it to align with the current practices of supporting greenhouse gas 

reduction and multimodal performance improvements. Alameda CTC is actively 

monitoring any changes to CMP legislation. Once any changes are finalized, Alameda 

CTC will develop an updated approach to ensure continued compliance. The Executive 

Summary for the 2019 CMP is included as Attachment A and the full CMP text can be 

found as Attachment B. 

CMP legislation requires Alameda CTC to evaluate each jurisdiction’s conformance with 

four elements of the CMP for the continued release of gas tax subventions. Those 

elements are: the Level of Service (LOS) Monitoring, Land Use Analysis Program, Travel 

Page 37Page 37



Demand Management implementation, and Payment of membership fees. All 

jurisdictions are in conformance with all the required provisions of the latest  

approved CMP.  

Background 

State CMP legislation requires biennial updates to the CMP. Alameda CTC develops and 

updates a CMP for Alameda County during odd-number years. The CMP is used to monitor 

the performance of the county’s transportation system, develop strategies to address 

congestion and improve the performance of a multimodal system, and strengthen the 

integration of transportation and land use planning.  

Over the years, Alameda County’s CMP has evolved from a program focused on meeting 

the legislative requirements to a robust effort that uses the legislative mandate as an 

opportunity to develop an integrated and multimodal transportation system for all users of 

the Alameda County transportation network integrating land use and transportation and 

reducing greenhouse gas emissions from transportation. However, existing CMP legislation 

specifically requires CMAs to use a delay-based metric such as LOS for roadway 

performance monitoring and for the traffic impact analysis in the Land Use Analysis Program. 

This is in direct conflict with a more recent amendment to the CEQA legislation pursuant to 

the implementation of Senate Bill 743(SB 743) which requires the significance metric for traffic 

impact assessment to be Vehicle Miles Traveled. Alameda CTC anticipates amendments to 

the existing CMP legislation which could substantially change the CMP and its requirements 

in the near future to align with the current industry standards and trend. Because of this, the 

2019 CMP update is a focused update reporting on progress on the implementation of 

various CMP elements that occurred in the last two years, consistent with the approach used 

for the 2017 CMP update. As guidance on future CMPs emerges from state and regional 

authorities, Alameda CTC anticipates a more comprehensive update to the CMP in the 

near future. 

2019 Congestion Management Program Update 

The following are the legislatively required elements of the CMP: 

• Roadway Performance Monitoring: Monitor congestion levels against the LOS 

standards established for the county’s designated CMP roadway system. If roadway 

LOS standards are not maintained in the CMP roadway system, a deficiency plan is 

required that defines how improvements will be implemented to bring the LOS to an 

acceptable standard. As noted above, this is in conflict with newer legislation 

requiring the use of VMT. Future legislation is expected from the state to correct this 

inconsistency between two state laws. 

• Multimodal Performance Measurement: Evaluate the county’s multimodal 

transportation system against adopted performance measures. 

• Travel Demand Management: Promote alternative transportation strategies with a 

travel demand management element. 

Page 38Page 38



• Land Use Impact Analysis: Analyze the effects of local land use decisions on the 

regional transportation system. Develop and maintain a travel demand model to 

assess the land use impact. 

• Capital Improvement Program: Prepare a capital improvement program that 

maintains or improves the performance of the countywide multimodal  

transportation system. 

2019 CMP Conformity Findings 

Each fiscal year, local jurisdictions must comply with four elements of the CMP to be 

found in compliance. Non-conformance with the CMP requirements means that 

respective local jurisdictions are at a risk of losing Proposition 111 gas tax subventions. The 

four required elements are: 

1. LOS Monitoring Element: Prepare Deficiency Plans and Deficiency Plan Progress 

Reports, as applicable; 

2. Travel Demand Management Element: Complete the TDM Site Design Checklist; 

3. Land Use Analysis Element: Jurisdictions must submit to Alameda CTC all Notices of 

Preparations, Environmental Impact Reports, and General Plan Amendments and 

review the allocation of Association of Bay Area Governments’ land use projections 

to Alameda CTC’s traffic analysis zones; and 

4. Pay annual fees. 

In July 2019, Alameda CTC contacted all Alameda County jurisdictions for the necessary 

documentation to determine 2019 CMP conformity. All jurisdictions have complied with the 

TDM, Land Use Analysis Program, Deficiency Plan, and fee requirements. Attachment C 

summarizes the status of conformance documentation by jurisdiction.  

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 

Attachments: 

A. 2019 Congestion Management Program Executive Summary 

B. 2019 Congestion Management Program (Hyperlinked to website) 

C. FY 2018-19 CMP Conformity Findings 

Page 39Page 39

https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/2019_Alameda_County_CMP.pdf.


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 40Page 40



ALAMEDA CTC  ●  CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019  |  1 

ES Executive Summary 

The 2019 Alameda County Congestion Management 

Program (CMP) describes strategies and procedures to: 

(1) measure the performance of the county’s multimodal

transportation system, (2) address roadway congestion 

and improve the performance of a multimodal system, 

and (3) connect transportation and land use planning.  

The 2019 update to the CMP meets a state legislative 

mandate, established in 1991, which requires Congestion 

Management Agencies (CMAs) to update their CMP 

every two years. However, current CMP legislation is in 

conflict with other regulations like Senate Bill 743 (SB 743), 

the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and 

Complete Streets legislation, as well as current industry 

best practices. To resolve this conflict, existing CMP 

legislation must be amended to align with other more 

recent regulations. 

The metric used to measure performance is at the heart 

of this conflict. CMP legislation requires use of a delay-

based metric, Level of Service (LOS), for measuring 

roadway performance. However, recently amended 

CEQA guidelines by State based on SB 743 require 

vehicle miles-traveled (VMT) as the primary metric for 

traffic impacts. This move away from LOS to VMT supports 

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reduction goals, multimodal 

performance measurement, and is in line with the 

Complete Streets practice. 

Until this conflict is resolved through amended legislation, 

Alameda CTC will not produce a major update to the 

CMP. Instead, Alameda CTC made focused changes 

during this 2019 update to report on the work performed 

by Alameda CTC and progress made to implement the 

major CMP elements since the last update in 2017.  

California’s current CMP legislation defers considerable 

authority to the CMAs to develop and update each 

CMP but requires CMAs incorporate five key elements: 

(1) level of service monitoring of a designated roadway

network (see chapters 2 and 3); (2) a multimodal 

performance element (chapter 4); (3) a travel demand 

management element (chapter 5); (4) a land use 

analysis program (chapter 6); and (5) a capital 

improvement program (chapter 8).  

For all CMP updates, Alameda CTC coordinates with the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), transit 

agencies, local governments, the California Department 

of Transportation (Caltrans), and the Bay Area Air Quality 

Management District (BAAQMD). Following the adoption 

of the 2019 CMP by the Alameda CTC Commission, 

Alameda CTC will submit the CMP to MTC. As the 

regional transportation planning agency in the San 

Francisco Bay Area, MTC is required to evaluate the 

CMP’s consistency with MTC’s Regional Transportation 

Plan (RTP) and with the CMPs of the other counties in the 

Bay Area. If the Alameda County CMP is found to be 

consistent with the RTP, MTC will incorporate the projects 

6.7A

Page 41Page 41



 

 

2  | ALAMEDA CTC  ●  CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019 

Alameda CTC | Congestion Management Program 

 

listed in the CMP’s Capital Improvement Program into 

MTC’s Regional Transportation Improvement Program. 

Alameda CTC’s CMP is designed to meet and exceed 

the legal requirements and address many of the county’s 

multimodal transportation challenges in doing so.  

Senate Bill 743 

The Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR)  

was tasked with implementing SB 743 and identified the 

new metric to be vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and has 

also developed guidance for implementing the new 

metric, working with stakeholders across the state. 

Alameda CTC actively participated in this process by 

leading the Bay Area Working Group in 2015 and 2016 to 

coordinate with the OPR. Based on the outcome of 

OPR’s efforts, the CEQA Guidelines regarding 

transportation impact assessment was amended to use 

VMT as the new metric in December 2018. It becomes 

mandatory on July 1, 2020.   

Alameda CTC, as the CMA and Sales Tax Agency for 

Alameda County, is currently engaged in developing 

consistent countywide guidelines to implement the VMT 

metric for land use and transportation projects for CEQA 

purposes for use by all member agencies as well as for 

Alameda CTC.  

. 

 

Figure ES1—CMP and Five Major Elements 

 

  

Page 42Page 42



 

ALAMEDA CTC  ●  CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019  |  3 

Chapter ES | Executive Summary 

. 

The Transportation System 

Alameda CTC must define and identify components of 

the transportation system that are being monitored and 

improved. For the purposes of the CMP, two different 

systems are used: the designated CMP roadway 

network, last updated in 2017 (Chapter 2, “Designated 

CMP Roadway Network”) and the broader and older 

Metropolitan Transportation System (MTS). The CMP 

roadway network is generally a subset of the MTS.14 

Alameda CTC monitors performance in the CMP 

roadway network in relation to established level of 

service standards. Alameda CTC also uses the MTS in the 

Land Use Analysis Program (Chapter 6). 

Designated CMP Roadway Network 

The designated CMP roadway network was initially 

developed in 1991 and includes freeways, state 

highways, and principal arterials that meet criteria 

defined in the CMP. These roadways are significant for 

regional trips and connect major activity centers to the 

regional transportation system.  

In 2011, recognizing the need to expand the CMP 

network to reflect the changes in land use patterns over 

the years, the Alameda CTC Commission adopted  

a two-tier approach for the CMP network in Alameda 

County. The first tier (Tier 1) is the original CMP network 

including freeways, highways, and principal arterials. The 

second tier (Tier 2) includes additional arterial roadways 

of countywide significance. Alameda CTC monitors the 

Tier 1 network for informational purposes only and is not 

used in the conformity findings process.  

In 2017, Alameda CTC expanded the Tier 2 CMP 

network and adding another 220 miles of arterial 

roadways based on the outcome of the three 

 

 

14 With the expansion to the CMP network in the 2017 Update, the 

CMP network now extends beyond the MTS in many parts of the 

county. 

countywide modal plans, the Countywide Multimodal 

Arterial Plan, Countywide Transit Plan, and Countywide 

Goods Movement Plan. Additionally, Alameda CTC 

identified 146 miles of roadways on major transit 

corridors to be included in a new transit performance 

monitoring network. 

MTS System 

A regionally designated system, MTS typically includes 

the entire CMP network, as well as major arterials, transit 

services, rail, maritime ports, airports, and transfer hubs 

critical to the region’s movement of people and 

freight.15 MTS roadways were originally developed in 

1991 and updated in 2005 and include roadways 

recognized as “regionally significant” and all interstate 

highways, state routes, and portions of the street and 

road system operated and maintained by local 

jurisdictions. 

LOS Monitoring 

As previously mentioned, current CMP legislation 

requires level of service standards be established to 

monitor performance on the CMP roadway network. 

Legislation requires a delay-based matric, but does 

leave the specific measurement methodology to each 

CMA so long as that methodology is compliant with the 

most recent version of the Transportation Research 

Board’s Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) or another 

uniform methodology adopted by the CMA.  Under the 

HCM methodology, LOS is represented with letter 

designations, ranging from A to F. LOS-A represents free-

flow conditions, and LOS-F represents congested 

conditions. The CMP legislation requires a standard of 

LOS-E for all CMP roads that are subject to CMP 

conformance16. 

15 In Alameda County, with the addition and subsequent expansion of 

Tier 2 routes, in the 2017 CMP Update, the CMP network is in many 

locations outside of MTS roadways. 
16 Tier 1 roadways at the PM-peak period only 

Page 43Page 43



 

 

4  | ALAMEDA CTC  ●  CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019 

Alameda CTC | Congestion Management Program 

 

Alameda CTC uses LOS standards as defined in the 

1985 Highway Capacity Manual (HCM 1985), the 

nationally accepted guidelines published by the 

Transportation Research Board. Alameda CTC re-

evaluated the applicability of these standards in 2005 

and again in 2013. The 2013 showed that using a more 

recent version of the HCM would hinder the ability to 

compare past performance trends, important for 

determining conformity with CMP legislation. The HCM 

2000 and 2010 both require a density-based, rather than 

speed-based LOS methodology for freeways and 

changed speed classifications for arterials, which would 

hinder the ability to compare past performance trends 

important for determining conformity with the CMP. 

Based on this review, Alameda CTC continues to use  

the speed-based LOS methodology in the HCM 1985 to 

monitor freeways and existing roadway classifications for 

arterials for the Tier 1 roadway network, which is subject 

to the conformity process. Since the Tier 2 network is 

monitored for informational purposes only and is not 

comparable to any previous performance data, LOS 

has been reported using the methodologies in both the 

HCM1985 and HCM2000 since the 2014 LOS Monitoring 

Study. 

Alameda CTC conducts an LOS monitoring study every 

two years. The last study was conducted in the spring of 

2018, and the next will be in 2020. The 2018 LOS 

Monitoring study was the first to include the expanded 

Tier 2 network and a transit monitoring network, making 

it the first multimodal monitoring study. 

Multimodal Performance 

Element 

The CMP must contain performance measures that 

evaluate how freeways, highways, and roads function. 

The CMP describes the frequency, routing, and 

coordination of transit services within Alameda County 

and establishes performance measures that support 

mobility, air quality, land use, and economic objectives. 

The performance element, consistent with legislation, 

includes performance measures for all modes. However, 

only the auto LOS standards trigger a deficiency plan 

under the CMP. 

Combined with LOS standards, the multimodal 

performance element provides a basis for evaluating 

whether the transportation system is achieving the 

broad mobility and congestion management goals in 

the CMP. These include developing the Capital 

Improvement Program, analyzing land use impacts, and 

preparing deficiency plans to address problems. 

These performance measures help comprehensively 

evaluate the performance of the countywide 

multimodal transportation system and measure progress 

towards agency goals. Alameda CTC prepares an 

annual transportation system Performance Report.  

Local agencies are encouraged to provide data to MTC 

or to maintain their own database of maintenance 

needs on the MTS. However, there is no compliance 

requirement for local agencies or transit operators 

related to the multimodal performance element. 

The most recent performance report, the 2018 

Performance Report for fiscal year 2017-18, is  

available on the Alameda CTC website and will be 

updated in November 2019. 

Travel Demand 

Management Element 

Travel demand management (TDM) measures seek to 

reduce pressure on existing roadway infrastructure and 

parking capacity by using incentives and disincentives 

to influence travel choice. Ideally, TDM measures 

reduce both peak-period vehicle trips and total vehicle 

miles traveled which reduces reducing congestion, 

carbon emissions, improves public health, and widens 

viable transportation choices. 

The most effective TDM programs include some form of 

financial incentive, either through pricing parking, 

subsidizing transit fares, ridesharing, etc. TDM strategies 

can provide a cost-effective way to meet regional 

Page 44Page 44



 

ALAMEDA CTC  ●  CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019  |  5 

Chapter ES | Executive Summary 

sustainability and mobility goals. By making the most 

efficient possible use of available system capacity, they 

complement the region’s investments in high-

occupancy vehicle lanes, express lanes, transit systems, 

first- and last-mile solutions, multimodal infrastructure 

improvements and other alternatives to single- 

occupant driving. 

The Commission adopted a Countywide 

Comprehensive TDM Strategy in May 2013 that provides 

an inventory of the broad range of TDM programs and 

activities present in Alameda County and recommends 

a strategy for better integrating, supporting, and 

building on these existing efforts, including 

implementation of the regional commute benefit 

program and the Guaranteed Ride Home Program. 

These programs are designed to make the most efficient 

use of existing facilities. The TDM element also 

incorporates strategies to integrate air quality planning 

requirements with transportation planning and 

programming. Funding generally comes from the 

Transportation Fund for Clean Air (from motor vehicle 

registration fees) and from the federal Surface 

Transportation Program and Congestion Mitigation and 

Air Quality Program. Alameda County’s TDM element 

represents a fiscally realistic program that effectively 

complements the overall CMP. 

A balanced TDM element requires actions that local 

jurisdictions, Alameda CTC, BAAQMD, Caltrans, MTC, 

and local transit agencies undertake. As required by 

state law, the Alameda County TDM program promotes 

alternatives to single-occupant vehicle travel (e.g., 

carpools, vanpools, transit, bicycles, park-and-ride lots); 

promotes improvements in the jobs-housing balance 

and transit-oriented developments; promotes other 

strategies, including flexible work hours, telecommuting, 

and parking management programs; and considers 

parking “cash out” programs (paying employees who 

do not use parking). 

Chapter 5, “Travel Demand Management Element” 

includes a variety of tools available to local 

governments for facilitating TDM. To be found in 

conformance with this element of the CMP, local 

jurisdictions must adopt and implement the  

Required Program by September 1 of each year. 

Land Use Analysis Program 

The CMP incorporates a program to analyze the impact 

of land use decisions, made by local jurisdictions, on the 

regional transportation systems. The intent of this 

legislatively required component of the CMP is to: 

 Coordinate local land use and regional 

transportation-facility decisions; 

 Assess the impacts of development in other 

communities; and 

 Promote information sharing between local 

governments when a decision made by one 

jurisdiction impacts another. 

While the Alameda CTC’s Land Use Analysis Program 

was initially developed as a program to meet the CMP 

legislative mandate, the growing focus at all levels of 

governments on improved coordination between land 

use and transportation planning has resulted in  

the program’s evolution. In this context, the 

Alameda CTC’s Land Use Analysis Program  

(Chapter 6) currently includes: 

 Legislatively required review of land use actions of 

local jurisdictions by Alameda CTC to ensure that 

impacts on the regional transportation system are 

disclosed and mitigation measures are identified; 

 Land use projections from the Regional Planning 

Agency for use in countywide model database by 

local jurisdictions;  

 Planning initiatives and programs that foster 

transportation and land use connections; and 

 Strategic monitoring of transportation-land use 

coordination performance measures. 

Although land use remains the purview of local 

governments, Alameda CTC reviews impacts to the 

regional transportation network and can act to withhold 

Page 45Page 45



 

 

6  | ALAMEDA CTC  ●  CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019 

Alameda CTC | Congestion Management Program 

 

the gas tax subventions if local agencies do not 

conform to the requirements of the CMP. 

The CMP requires local jurisdictions to regularly: 

 Forward to Alameda CTC all Notices of Preparation, 

Notices of Availability of Draft and Final 

Environmental Impact Reports, and Environmental 

Impact Statements, and Final dispositions of General 

Plan amendments. 

 Analyze large development projects according to 

the guidelines in Chapter 6. Land Use Analysis 

Program of the CMP, including the use of the 

Alameda Countywide Travel Demand Model or an 

approved subarea model and disclosure of impacts 

to the MTS. 

 Work with Alameda CTC to mitigate development 

impacts on the regional transportation system. 

As part of the annual conformity process, Alameda CTC 

requires local jurisdictions to: 

 Demonstrate to Alameda CTC that the Land Use 

Analysis Program is being carried out. 

 Provide the Alameda CTC with 1) a list of land use 

development projects approved during the 

previous fiscal year; and 2) a copy of the most 

recent Housing Element Annual Progress Report 

submitted to the state Department of Housing and 

Community Development. Starting in 2014, 

Alameda CTC has used this information to develop 

a database of land use approvals for enhanced 

monitoring of transportation-land use coordination 

and planning.  

During travel demand model updates: 

 Provide an update (prepared by the jurisdiction’s 

planning department) of the anticipated land use 

changes likely to occur using the most recent 

MTC/Association of Bay Area Government forecast 

for a near-term and long-term horizon year. This land 

use information should be provided in a format 

compatible with the Countywide Travel Demand 

Model. 

Many action items identified in past CMP updates for a 

further enhanced Land Use Analysis Program will 

continue to be valid unless modified by any potential 

legislative efforts. Therefore, Alameda CTC continues  

to carry them forward, so that based on the resource 

availability and coordination with other efforts of 

Alameda CTC, they can be implemented. 

Alameda CTC will modify the Land Use Analysis  

Program when legislative actions are finalized. 

Database and Travel 

Demand Model 

Alameda CTC has developed a uniform land use 

database for use in the countywide travel model.  

The database and travel demand model bring to the 

congestion management decision-making process a 

uniform technical basis for analysis. This includes 

consideration of the benefits of transit service and TDM 

programs, as well as projects that improve congestion  

on the CMP network. The model is also intended to assist 

local agencies in assessing the impacts of new 

development on the transportation system.  

The most recent update to the Countywide Travel 

Demand Model was completed in May 2018. It 

incorporates land use assumptions based on the 

Sustainable Communities Strategy and RTP, Plan Bay 

Area 2040. Projections of socioeconomic variables 

were incorporated for the traffic analysis zones defined 

for Alameda County. By aggregating the projections 

made for each zone, Alameda CTC produced 

projections of socioeconomic characteristics for 

unincorporated areas of the county, the 14 cities, and 

for the four planning areas.  

 See Chapter 7, “Database and Travel Demand 

Model” for details.  

Page 46Page 46



 

ALAMEDA CTC  ●  CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019  |  7 

Chapter ES | Executive Summary 

Capital Improvement 

Program 

The Capital Improvement Program reflects 

Alameda CTC’s efforts to maintain or improve the 

performance of the multimodal transportation system  

for the movement of people and goods and to mitigate 

regional transportation impacts identified through the 

Land Use Analysis Program. 

Per federal requirements, Alameda CTC considers 

various multimodal methods to improve the existing 

system, such as traffic operations systems, arterial  

signal timing, parking management, transit transfer 

coordination, and transit marketing programs.  

Projects selected for the Capital Improvement Program 

are consistent with the assumptions, goals, policies, 

actions, and projects identified in PBA 2040. 

Starting in 2013, Alameda CTC adopted a Strategic 

Planning and Programming Policy that consolidates 

existing planning and programming processes to 

improve the efficiency and effectiveness of future policy 

decisions on transportation investments. This policy 

resulted in the Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP).  

Alameda CTC's CIP serves three purposes: 

 Translates long-range plans into short-range 

implementation by focusing on project/program 

delivery over a five-year programming window  

with a two-year allocation plan. 

 Serves as Alameda CTC’s strategic plan for voter-

approved transportation funding (such as 1986 

Measure B, 2000 Measure B, 2010 Vehicle 

Registration Fee, and 2014 Measure BB) as  

required by the respective legislation for each 

funding program. 

 Establishes a comprehensive and consolidated 

programming and allocation plan for fund sources 

under Alameda CTC’s authority for capital 

improvements, operations, and maintenance 

projects and programs. 

Each year, Alameda CTC’s CIP financial assumptions 

are updated to include the latest revenue projections. 

New projects and programs are considered through 

updates of the CIP, generally occurring every two years.  

Every two years, as needed, Alameda CTC 

comprehensively updates the CIP to review existing CIP 

projects and to open a nomination window for new 

projects. The biennial update occurs on odd number 

fiscal years and represents a shift of the programming 

window to add the next two fiscal years. Biennial CIP 

updates also include review of existing projects and 

programs to determine whether to recommend 

continuing or postponing funding and delaying, 

removing, or reincorporating projects/programs. 

Alameda CTC may recommend additional funding  

to continue existing approved projects.  

Projects submitted during the nomination window that 

meet the Commission-adopted screening criteria will be 

evaluated and prioritized for funding consideration. The 

full update will involve notifying project sponsors of the 

enrollment period for adding new projects and 

programs to the CIP, and the subsequent review  

and approval of project and program submittals  

to be included in the updated CIP. 

The CMP’s Capital Improvement Program also includes 

the list of projects for the State Transportation 

Improvement Program (STIP) for Alameda County, as 

required by the CMP legislation. The 2020 STIP projects 

will be presented to the Alameda CTC Commission for 

approval in October 2019 for a total funding request of 

$34.7 million. This list, once approved, will be forwarded 

to MTC as part of the 2019 CMP submittal for inclusion 

in to the region’s Regional Transportation Improvement 

Program (RTIP). Upon approval, MTC will forward the 

region’s RTIP projects list to the California Transportation 

Commission for adoption into the 2020 STIP.  

Page 47Page 47



 

 

8  | ALAMEDA CTC  ●  CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019 

Alameda CTC | Congestion Management Program 

 

Program Conformance and 

Monitoring 

Alameda CTC is responsible for ensuring local 

government conformance with the CMP and annually 

monitors the implementation of four elements: LOS 

standards on CMP network, travel demand 

management including implementation of the  

Required Program, the Land Use Analysis Program,  

and the Capital Improvement Program. Alameda CTC 

ensures local agencies are in conformance with CMP 

requirements for these elements. 

To assist local jurisdictions, Alameda CTC provides  

LOS standards resources (Chapter 3, “Level of Service 

Standards”); travel demand management resources 

and countywide programs to facilitate implementation 

of the Required Program (Chapter 5, “Travel Demand 

Management Element”); and a database and 

Countywide Travel Demand Model (Chapter 7, 

“Database and Travel Demand Model”). Alameda CTC 

has also developed a Land Use Analysis Program 

(Chapter 6) for implementation by local agencies, 

which remain responsible for approving, disallowing, or 

altering projects and land use decisions. The program 

must be able to determine land development impacts 

on the regional transportation system/MTS and 

formulate appropriate mitigation measures 

commensurate with the magnitude of the  

expected impacts. 

In addition, Alameda CTC is required to prepare and 

biennially update a Capital Improvement Program (see 

Chapter 8, “Capital Improvement Program”) aimed at 

maintaining or improving transportation service levels. 

Each city, the county, transit operators, and Caltrans 

provide input for these biennial updates. 

As part of Alameda CTC’s annual monitoring, if it finds a 

local jurisdiction in non-conformance with the CMP, it 

will notify the local jurisdiction, which then has 90 days to 

remedy the area(s) of non-conformance. If the local 

jurisdiction fails to provide a remedy within the stipulated 

time, it may lose local, state, and/or federal funding (see 

Chapter 9, “Program Conformance and Monitoring” for 

more information). 

Deficiency Plans 

CMP legislation requires preparation of deficiency plans 

when a CMP roadway segment does not meet the 

adopted level of service standard, which is LOS E for 

Alameda County CMP roadways, or is not otherwise 

exempt. Local jurisdictions must develop a deficiency 

plan to achieve the adopted LOS standards at the 

deficient segment or intersection, or to improve the LOS 

and contribute to significant air-quality improvements.  

Local governments are responsible for preparing and 

adopting deficiency plans by working with 

Alameda CTC, appropriate local jurisdictions, and 

regional agencies including local transit providers 

regarding the deficient roadway segment as detailed  

in Chapter 10, “Deficiency Plans.” 

Conclusions and Future  

Considerations 

The CMP has several interrelated elements intended to 

foster better coordination among decisions about land 

development, transportation, and air quality. Several 

conclusions can be reached about the CMP relative to 

the requirements of law and its purpose and intent 

(Chapter 11, “Conclusions and Future Considerations”). 

Legislative efforts are anticipated that will reform and 

update the CMP guidelines and requirements. Once 

legislation is amended, Alameda CTC will update its 

approach to future CMPs to align with the updated 

requirements.  

 

 

Page 48Page 48



Attachment C 

     2019 CMP CONFORMITY FINDINGS 

Land Use Analysis, Site Design, Payment of Fees and Deficiency Plans 

Land Use Analysis Program TDM Element Fees LOS Element 

Jurisdiction 
GPA & NOP 

Submittals 

Land Use 

Forecast 

Review* 

TDM 

Checklist 

Payments up 

to 4th Quarter 

FY 18/19 

Deficiency 

Plan Progress 

Reports or 

Concurrence 

Meets All 

Requirements 

Alameda County Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Alameda Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

City of Albany Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Berkeley Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

City of Dublin Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Emeryville Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Fremont Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Hayward Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Livermore Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Newark Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Oakland Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

City of Piedmont Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Pleasanton Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of San Leandro Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

City of Union City Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a Yes 

N/A indicates that the city is not responsible for any deficiency plan in the past fiscal year. 

* This requirement has been met through jurisdictions review of land use allocation in the most recent travel demand model

update.

6.7C

Page 49Page 49



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 50Page 50



 
 
 

 

Memorandum  6.8 

 

DATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Tess Lengyel, Deputy Executive Director of Planning and Policy 

SUBJECT: Legislative Positions and Receive an Update on Federal, State, and Local 

Legislative Activities 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve policy positions and receive an 

update on federal, state, and local legislative activities. 

Summary 

The September 2019 legislative update provides information on federal and state 

legislative activities. 

Background 

The Commission approved the 2019 Legislative Program in December 2018. The 

purpose of the legislative program is to establish funding, regulatory, and 

administrative principles to guide Alameda CTC’s legislative advocacy. The final 

2019 Legislative Program is divided into six sections: Transportation Funding; Project 

Delivery and Operations; Multimodal Transportation, Land Use, and Safety; Climate 

Change and Technology; Goods Movement; and Partnerships. The program is 

designed to be broad and flexible to allow Alameda CTC the opportunity to pursue 

legislative and administrative opportunities that may arise during the year, and to 

respond to political processes in the region as well as in Sacramento and 

Washington, DC.  

Each month, staff brings updates to the Commission on legislative issues related to 

the adopted legislative program, including recommended positions on bills as well 

as legislative updates. 

  

Page 51Page 51



 

Federal Update 

On July 30, 2019, the Senate Environment and Public Works (EPW) Committee passed 

the America’s Transportation Infrastructure Act of 2019 (ATIA), a five-year, $287 

billion highway transportation reauthorization proposal as summarized in Attachment 

A.  Alameda CTC staff will provide a verbal update on any further federal actions on 

advancing a federal surface transportation bill. 

State Update 

Alameda CTC staff will provide an update on state activities at the Commission 

meeting reflecting the final actions on bills Alameda CTC has supported or opposed 

during the first year of this two-year session.  Attachment B includes a summary of 

bills with Alameda CTC bill positions. 

Platinum Advisors, Alameda CTC’s state lobbying firm, provided the following 

summary of state activities.  

End Of Session:  The Legislature returned on August 12th from summer recess for the 

remaining five weeks of session.  They have until September 13th to move legislation 

to the Governor.  Bills that do not reach the governor’s desk will still have the 

opportunity to be addressed next year. About 870 total bills were considered by the 

fiscal committees by the end of August, and most of these bills were on the 

respective Suspense Files. After fiscal bills are dispensed with, the remaining two 

weeks of the legislative year will be focused on floor session.  

Legislators, staff, and lobbyists are primarily focusing on amendments, fiscal 

committees, and working with the Administration to ensure that once bills reach 

them, they will be as non-controversial as possible. High profile issues left to be 

determined include a firearm excise tax, the gig economy, oversight of medical 

exemptions for vaccinations, and a possible PG&E securitization measure to assist 

them in paying off debt.  

Regional Housing Authority:  Prior to the summer recess AB 1487 was substantially 

amended to include the structure for the San Francisco Bay Area Regional Housing 

Finance Act, but substantive provisions were removed.  This change was made in 

order to move the bill forward while negotiations within the region continued.  AB 

1487 were being finalized during the last weeks of August.   

Assemblyman Chui’s staff indicated that the amendments Alameda CTC requested 

in late July were consistent with the amendments being drafted.  These changes 

include intent language that the bill will address the jobs-housing imbalance, and 

adding a requirement that ABAG’s Executive Board must concur with any changes 

made by MTC on actions initially adopted by ABAG.  According the rules, the last 

day to amend AB 1487 is September 6th; however, that could be pushed back to 

Page 52Page 52



 

September 10th at the latest in order to comply with the 72 hour in print rule. Below 

are the amendments approved at the July Alameda CTC Commission meeting. 

Alameda CTC’s proposed bill amendments support the MTC/ABAG Support if 

Amended position that incorporates their Ad Hoc Committee recommendations as 

shown in Attachment C and the two items listed below: 

1. Add language to the findings portion of the bill acknowledging the severe 

imbalance between jobs and housing and the intent for the funding in the bill 

to help address this problem.   

2. Require that ABAG be the lead agency by adding language to the bill 

requiring that, where action of both ABAG and MTC is required, the ABAG 

Executive Board (EB) acts before MTC acts.  Should there be any difference in 

the subsequent action taken by MTC, the ABAG EB would have to approve 

that change.  No second action by the ABAG EB would be required if the 

position taken by MTC is the same as that taken by ABAG.  

Local Partnership:  SB 277 (Beall) would require 85% of SB 1 Local Partnership Program 

(LPP) funds to be allocated by formula, and 15% for a small county competitive 

program.  Under current CTC guidelines half the LPP funds are allocated by formula 

and half are reserved for a competitive program.  Current law provides the CTC 

administrative control over LPP funds.   

Given that this measure would limit the CTC’s administrative control over the LPP, it is 

not without controversy.  Recently the Carpenters Union has expressed concerns 

with the bill, and the Department of Finance (DOF) has adopted an oppose position.  

The DOF analysis states, “This bill circumvents the Commission's guideline 

development process, a public process through which the Commission solicits 

stakeholder input on proposed program guidelines and adopts the guidelines that 

most effectively implement the program.”  SB 277 is currently on the Assembly 

Appropriations Suspense File.  Amendments are being negotiated and the bill’s fate 

will be known at the August 30th Suspense File hearing. 

Starting with Cycle 3 of the LPP, SB 277 directs the CTC to adopt guidelines and 

implement the apportionment formula specified in the bill as follows:   

 15% of LPP funds is set aside in the Small Counties and Uniform Developer Fees 

Competitive Subaccount.  This competitive program is for eligible entities 

located in a county with a population of less than 750,000, or entities that 

administer a voter approved uniform developer fee. 

 85% of LPP funds would be allocated to the Local Partnership Formula 

Subaccount.  The funds would be split into a southern and northern California 

pots.  The north-south split would be based on the proportional share of the 

statewide total of voter approved sales tax, parcel/property tax and toll 

Page 53Page 53



 

revenue.  The north-south categories are based on the STIP definition where 

all counties from Kern and San Louis Obispo Counties south are in the southern 

group, and all remaining counties are in the northern group. 

o The southern allocation formula distributes the funds to eligible entities 

with 75% of the funds allocated based on its proportional share of the 

southern population, and 25% distributed based on the entity’s 

proportional share of voter approved transportation sales tax revenue. 

o The northern allocation formula distributes the funds to eligible entities 

through two pots.  Of the total amount of revenue in the northern 

share, eligible entities that administer voter approved bridge tolls and 

parcel/property taxes shall receive it proportional share of the northern 

fund.  For eligible entities that administer a voter approved sales tax, 

these entities’ proportional share is based on 75% of the entities 

proportional of the northern population and 25% based on the entity’s 

proportional share of sales tax revenue. 

SB 277 defines an “eligible entity” as an entity that administers a local voter 

approved transportation tax, and the CTC shall apportion the funds to eligible 

entities.  SB 277 also outlines how an entity will receive its formula share by dictating 

to the CTC that each entity shall submit its list of projects and the CTC shall approve 

that list, unless a project is found not consistent with the eligibility requirements.  This 

process is similar to how cities and counties get their SB 1 local streets and roads 

funds. 

Clean Trucks:  The California Air Resources Board started the process of developing 

regulations to transition medium and heavy-duty trucks to zero emission 

technologies.  However, the scope of this undertaking is broader than anticipated.  

As expected, the new regulation would place zero emission vehicle production 

requirements on truck manufacturers, but it would also impose reporting 

requirements on private and government agencies, including state, local and 

federal entities.  The reporting element seeks to gather information on the size and 

usage of public and private fleets, and the operating characteristics of the truck 

facilities.  This information would be used to guide CARB on the development of 

future regulations.  These future regulations will likely target the transition of fleets 

operating in urban areas to zero emission fleets. 

Draft language on the reporting requirements was released at a workshop on 

August 21st.  CARB is seeking comments on the proposed reporting requirements as 

well as the manufacturer requirements.  The deadline to submit commits is 

September 21st.  The formal regulatory process is will commence in October with the 

release of the staff report and the first hearing before the CARB Board is expected in 

December.  Adoption of the regulation is anticipated to occur in mod-2020.  The 

reporting requirement language can be found at: 

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2019-08/190821draftregle_0.pdf 

Page 54Page 54

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2019-08/190821draftregle_0.pdf


 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with the requested action. 

Attachments: 

A. Federal Surface Transportation Bill Summary 

B. Status of Bills with Alameda CTC Positions 

C. MTC/ABAG Amendments on AB1487 

  

Page 55Page 55



This page intentionally left blank 

Page 56Page 56



Attachment A: Federal Surface Transportation Bill Summary by Simon & Company 

Simon and Company, Inc. 

Intergovernmental Affairs 

Special Report 

simoncompany.com 

Special Report: Senate EPW Committee Releases America's Transportation 

Infrastructure Act of 2019 

July 29, 2019 

Senate EPW Committee Releases America's Transportation Infrastructure 

Act of 2019 

Senate Committee on Environment and Public Works (EPW) Chairman 

John Barrasso and Ranking Member Tom Carper introduced the 

America’s Transportation Infrastructure Act of 2019.  

The law would become effective October 1, 2020, following the expiration 

of the Fixing America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act of 2015. The five-

year bill would authorize $287 billion for spending from the Highway Trust 

Fund (HTF) from Fiscal Years (FY) 2021 through 2025, including $259 billion 

6.8A

Page 57Page 57



for formula programs to be distributed to states. It largely maintains the 

current formula allocation to states, while it provides some increased 

flexibility for eligible activities. This benchmark represents a 27 percent 

increase from funding levels authorized by the FAST Act. 

Notably, the bill creates several new discretionary grant programs with 

funding to support: bridge repair and replacement; improved safety 

outcomes; projects that enhance resiliency; the deployment of 

alternative fuels infrastructure; congestion mitigation efforts; and pilots to 

support new and emerging technologies. The reauthorization includes a 

climate title to help reduce emissions from the transportation sector for the 

first time. We have included information on those provisions and other 

legislative highlights below for your review. 

Safety Outcomes 

The bill creates a new $6.6 billion discretionary grant program to improve 

the condition and safety of the nation's bridges by rehabilitating or 

replacing those that are structurally deficient. States, local, and tribal 

entities could apply. At least 50 percent of this funding will be reserved for 

bridge projects with a total project cost of at least $100 million. 

The legislation also provides $500 million in supplemental formula funding 

annually to support projects that improve safety outcomes and lower 

fatalities, which would be part of the existing Highway Safety 

Improvement Program. 

The bill creates a new $250 million competitive grant program for projects 

that reduce vehicular collisions with wildlife. 

Lastly, the legislation would authorize the Secretary of Transportation 

to establish a grant program to provide $5 million annually to local 

government entities for bollard installation projects. These installation 

projects are intended to prevent pedestrian injuries and mitigate the risk 

of acts of terrorism in heavily trafficked pedestrian areas. 

INFRA Grants & Freight 

This legislation would increase funding for Nationally Significant Freight 

and Highway Projects, also known as the "INFRA" Discretionary Grant 

Program, to $5.5 billion over the five-year authorization. It includes reforms 

such as transparency requirements for project selection and grant 

administration. At least 15 percent of those funds would be directed to 

Page 58Page 58



small projects. It creates a pilot for projects offering higher levels of 

nonfederal state and local match. 

Additionally, the legislation would increases the maximum number of 

highway miles that can be designated by a State. The new maximum 

would increase from 75 to 150 miles for critical urban freight corridors and 

150 to 300 miles for critical rural freight corridors. States with lower 

population-density will have a maximum of 600 miles. 

STBG & TAP 

The bill maintains the 55 percent share of Surface Transportation Block 

Grant (STBG) funding for sub-allocation to metropolitan areas. It creates 

newly eligible activities and projects including the construction of wildlife 

crossing structures, rural barge landings, dock, and waterfront 

infrastructure projects, and certain privately or majority-privately owned 

ferry boats and terminals. It also increases the set-aside of Transportation 

Alternatives Program (TAP). Small communities will benefit from greater 

access to TAP funding. 

Alternative Fuel Infrastructure 

The bill establishes a new discretionary grant program that will provide $1 

billion over 5 years to states and localities to deploy alternative fuel 

infrastructure. Eligible activities would include building hydrogen, natural 

gas, and electric vehicle fueling infrastructure along designated highway 

corridors. 

It also requires the White House Council on Environmental Quality to lead 

an interagency working group to develop a strategy to support the 

transition of federal vehicle fleets to hybrid-electric vehicles, plug-in 

electric drive vehicles, and alternative-fueled vehicles. 

Resiliency Projects 

The bill creates a new grant program to enhance resiliency of roads and 

bridges, providing $4.9 billion over 5 years. The formula and discretionary 

(competitive) funding would enhance protection from natural disasters 

like wildfires, hurricanes, flooding, and mudslides. It will include both 

formula and discretionary grant funding. Formula funding would be 

distributed to states based on current formula share. The discretionary 

portion would provide $1 billion over five years or $200 million annually for 

resiliency projects. These projects may include those designed to improve 

resilience in coastal states and improve access to emergency evacuation 

routes. 

Page 59Page 59



It will require the Secretary to work with the Chief of the US Forest Service 

at the US Department of Agriculture to develop an interagency strategy 

for the maintenance of roads, trails, and bridges in the National Forest 

System. 

It would create a pilot to provide up to $5 million annually for local 

governments to develop multimodal disaster preparedness and response 

plans. 

Carbon Emissions & Congestion Relief 

The bill provides $3 billion in new funding for states over five years for 

projects that reduce highway-related carbon emissions, to be distributed 

based on current formula shares. An additional $500 million in 

supplemental funding will be available over 5 years for lowering per 

capita emissions. 

The legislation creates a five-year $370 million discretionary grant program 

to reduce idling and emissions at port facilities. 

It provides supplemental formula and competitive grants for States for 

improvements that will reduce on-road mobile sources of carbon. This bill 

provides $600 million and $100 million of HTF spending annually for formula 

and competitive grants respectively. 

The legislation will provide $200 million in discretionary grants for units of 

State and local government to advance innovative, multimodal solutions 

to reduce congestion in most congested metropolitan areas. The bill 

authorizes another new $200 million program to help states reduce traffic 

congestion, over five years. 

It reauthorizes the Diesel Emissions Reduction Act (DERA) program and it 

authorizes the Utilizing Significant Emissions with Innovative Technologies 

(USE IT) Act to support carbon capture, utilization, and sequestration 

research. 

TIFIA Credit Assistance 

It updates the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 

1998 (TIFIA) to increase utilization and transparency in the vetting process 

for projects. It also expands eligibility to include airport projects and 

transit-oriented development (TOD) projects. 

Project Delivery 

The legislation would codify the Trump Administration’s “One Federal 

Policy,” which has been well received. It would establish a two-year goal 

Page 60Page 60



for completion of environmental reviews of highway projects. There would 

be a 90-day timeline for related project authorizations. One 

environmental document and record of decision would be signed by all 

participating agencies, and the Department of Transportation would 

oversee the process through the management of an accountability and 

tracking system. The Secretary will be required to utilize all available 

flexibilities available under current law that serve the public interest. 

The bill would require the Secretary to develop a template for Federal-

State stewardship and oversight agreements developed in accordance 

with section 106 of title 23, United States Code. The framework would 

undergo a robust engagement process with public comment opportunity. 

It would require the Secretary to issue a 15 day notice prior to issuance of 

a waiver for the Buy American requirement for Federal-aid projects. 

Planning and Performance 

The legislation will provide additional consideration for metropolitan 

transportation planning requirements to enhance coordination between 

Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs). The bill will encourage MPOs 

to make use of social media and web-based tools to encourage public 

participation in the planning process. 

The legislation will eliminate the fiscal constraint requirement for Long 

Range Transportation Plans for any years beyond the 4-year State 

Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP) timeframe. As you know, Long 

Range Transportation Plans are required to be fiscally constrained or 

limited to transportation projects that could be completed with the level 

of funding that is reasonably expected to be available. This provision 

eliminates that requirement for the years of the 20-year horizon beyond 

the first 4 years. 

Workforce Development 

States would be encouraged to develop a voluntary human capital plan 

for short- and long-term personnel and workforce needs with updates 

every 5 years. It would provide greater flexibility to States to address 

surface transportation workforce development, training, and education 

needs to address current workforce gaps. It will also change an existing 

grant program for educational institutions and State DOTs to provide 

hands-on career opportunities to meet current and future 

workforce needs. 

Page 61Page 61



 

 

Research and Development 

The bill creates a pilot program to be administered by the Department to 

provide data on transportation access to destinations including, but not 

limited to centers of employment, education, training, government, and 

health care and child care services.  It also requires the Department to 

conduct a study on travel demand data from States and MPOs to 

compare forecasts with observed travel. 

It requires the Secretary to work with the Transportation Research Board 

(TRB) to recommend roadway infrastructure upgrades and uniform 

policies necessary to facilitate the safe deployment of autonomous 

vehicles and automated driving systems. TRB would also oversee the study 

of safety benefits from vehicle-to-infrastructure connectivity technologies. 

It authorizes a $12.5 million data integration pilot program focused on the 

integration of real-time information, including weather conditions, 

roadway conditions, and information from emergency responders. 

It authorizes a $25 million emerging technology research pilot program to 

conduct research on advanced and additive manufacturing 

technologies, as well as research into activities to reduce the impact of 

automated driving systems and advanced driver automation systems 

technologies on pavement and infrastructure performance, as well as 

improve transportation infrastructure design. 

It increases funding for the Technology and Innovation Deployment 

Program to support new and innovative construction technologies for 

smarter, accelerated project delivery. 

Next Steps 

For more information, please see the Chairman's press release, the bill text, 

a section-by-section summary, and a fact sheet on the legislation.  

The House Transportation and Infrastructure (T&I) Committee will likely 

release its draft proposal in response to this development following the 

August recess. We will continue to monitor next steps in this process. 

 

 

    

 

Page 62Page 62

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/Y9z2CNkELVtJx1Fy6_Pd?domain=simoncompany.us11.list-manage.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/GELICOYEMWclXotwXqPa?domain=simoncompany.us11.list-manage.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/al2NCPNM70t9mqSQ0Yb9?domain=simoncompany.us11.list-manage.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/HffOCQWNnYugqmt5pKYx?domain=simoncompany.us11.list-manage.com


Attachment B:  Alameda CTC Bill Positions Bill Status 

Bills Subject Position 

Two-Year Bills: Bills that did not pass through first house 

AB 11 

(Chiu D)  

Community 

Redevelopment 

Law of 2019. 

Current law dissolved redevelopment agencies as of 

February 1, 2012, and designates successor agencies to 

act as successor entities to the dissolved 

redevelopment agencies. This bill, the Community 

Redevelopment Law of 2019, would authorize a city or 

county, or two or more cities acting jointly, to propose 

the formation of an affordable housing and 

infrastructure agency by adoption of a resolution of 

intention that meets specified requirements.   

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

AB 148 

(Quirk-Silva D) 

Regional 

transportation 

plans: 

sustainable 

communities 

strategies. 

Current law requires certain transportation planning 

agencies to prepare and adopt a regional 

transportation plan directed at achieving a 

coordinated and balanced regional transportation 

system. Current law requires the regional transportation 

plan to include, if the transportation planning agency is 

also a metropolitan planning organization, a 

sustainable communities strategy. This bill would require 

each sustainable communities strategy to identify areas 

within the region sufficient to house an 8-year 

projection of the emergency shelter needs for the 

region, as specified.     

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

AB 659 

(Mullin D)  

Transportation: 

emerging 

transportation 

technologies: 

California Smart 

City Challenge 

Grant Program. 

Would establish the California Smart City Challenge 

Grant Program to enable municipalities to compete for 

grant funding for emerging transportation technologies 

to serve their transportation system needs, and would 

specify certain program goals. The bill would require 

the commission to form the California Smart City 

Challenge Workgroup on or before July 1, 2020, to 

guide the commission on program matters, as 

specified. The bill would require the commission, in 

consultation with the workgroup, to develop guidelines 

on or before March 1, 2021, for the program, which 

would not be subject to the Administrative Procedure 

Act, and would authorize the commission to revise 

them as necessary.     

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

AB 847 

(Grayson D) 

Would require the Department of Housing and 

Community Development, upon appropriation by the 

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

6.8B

Page 63Page 63

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Alv%2b%2bzlWa%2fsJSAM%2bWf%2bp%2bHKgy9q2EELw5MX7xvlJZXIc4HTpx4Y%2fqBsUlbJQyl16
https://a17.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=lytV01flDydJR8SvUYrCXT6hinLiS%2fSEV8eBqDIISy2WFOZCAdanEcv9BQwkZSfK
https://a65.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=qtdEV6%2b2mZUQAAR2i7l%2binD1WG2BpkBR6VlrS5s9iT5%2fiAS1O9lynBgEpME2ImdR
https://a22.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=jPaUSgLo%2b51hQIi8stSXKXcMsGqtROxspiBddv7DoSD49TCUJzSkKvKO44x7XKyQ
https://a14.asmdc.org/


Housing: 

transportation-

related impact 

fees grant 

program. 

Legislature, to establish a competitive grant program to 

award grants to cities and counties to offset up to 100% 

of any transportation-related impact fees exacted 

upon a qualifying housing development project, as 

defined, by the local jurisdiction.   ( 

Amended:   3/27/2019)  

AB 1350 

(Gonzalez D)  

Youth Transit 

Pass Pilot 

Program. 

Would create the Youth Transit Pass Pilot Program upon 

the appropriation of moneys from the Greenhouse Gas 

Reduction Fund by the Legislature, and would require 

the Department of Transportation to administer the 

program. The bill would require the department to 

award available moneys to eligible participants, as 

defined, to provide free transit passes to persons under 

the age of 25 through new or existing transit pass 

programs, as specified.    ( Amended:   3/26/2019)  

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

AB 1648 

(Levine D)  

Housing: school 

employees: 

affordable 

rental housing. 

Would define affordable rental housing for the 

purposes of the Teacher Housing Act of 2016 to mean a 

rental housing development with a majority of its rents 

restricted to levels that are affordable to persons and 

families whose income does not exceed 200 percent of 

area median income, as specified, and located on real 

property owned by the school district.     

Alameda 

CTC -  

AB 1717 

(Friedman D)  

Transit-Oriented 

Affordable 

Housing 

Funding 

Program Act. 

Would establish the Transit-Oriented Affordable Housing 

Funding Program, to be administered by the California 

Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA). The bill would 

authorize the city council of a city, or the board of 

supervisors of a city and county, to participate in the 

program by enactment of an ordinance establishing a 

transit-oriented affordable housing district, as 

provided.      

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

SB 50 

(Wiener D)  

Planning and 

zoning: housing 

development: 

incentives. 

Would authorize a development proponent of a 

neighborhood multifamily project located on an 

eligible parcel to submit an application for a 

streamlined, ministerial approval process that is not 

subject to a conditional use permit. The bill would 

define a “neighborhood multifamily project” to mean a 

project to construct a multifamily structure on vacant 

land, or to convert an existing structure that does not 

require substantial exterior alteration into a multifamily 

structure, consisting of up to 4 residential dwelling units 

and that meets local height, setback, and lot 

coverage zoning requirements as they existed on July 

1, 2019.      

Alameda 

CTC – Watch 

position, and 

provided 

comments on 

legislative 

language via 

a letter 

Page 64Page 64

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ItbV06nTdI4xwGtndqFiOiDV96pBEsJLt8qSeA8ulFoV1UN4qVq3vi7gRHEFy1OT
https://a80.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=WppN6eOOJS3TvOVrLMdx%2bTZBr6ca534xqQzb%2f0pNXNZNxsTDQs6E8qYm4U1Kb4d%2f
https://a10.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=a96mb4WhsyM9Ov42gvLWWMkjKs2YBN4X7%2bF48X2qv7EfJcpvM3lUbi7TDwtRMM6U
https://a43.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=W36%2bSZLpYs2wsAhQlBW0yZ4V7MPGSJY%2bNuHr%2fbrx6Zq01jhlaz8S9Ojz2kD9rcGK
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/


Bills Continuing through this year’s legislative process 

AB 252 

(Daly D)  

Department of 

Transportation: 

environmental 

review process: 

federal 

program. 

Current federal law requires the United States Secretary 

of Transportation to carry out a surface transportation 

project delivery program, under which the 

participating states may assume certain responsibilities 

for environmental review and clearance of 

transportation projects that would otherwise be the 

responsibility of the federal government. Current law, 

until January 1, 2020, provides that the State of 

California consents to the jurisdiction of the federal 

courts with regard to the compliance, discharge, or 

enforcement of the responsibilities it assumed as a 

participant in the program. This bill would extend the 

operation of these provisions indefinitely.    

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

AB 1226 

(Holden D)  

State highways: 

property leases: 

assessment. 

Would require the Department of Transportation to 

assess the feasibility of constructing facilities above 

highways built below grade in urban areas that would 

be made available and leased to a city, county, or 

other political subdivision or another state agency for 

affordable housing, transitional housing, emergency 

shelter, feeding program, or wraparound services 

purposes, or any combination of these purposes, and 

would require the department, on or before January 1, 

2021, to submit that assessment to the Governor and 

the fiscal and policy committees of the Legislature that 

oversee transportation programs.    

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

AB 1486 

(Ting D)  

Surplus land. 

Current law prescribes requirements for the disposal of 

surplus land by a local agency. Current law defines 

“local agency” for these purposes as every city, 

county, city and county, and district, including school 

districts of any kind or class, empowered to acquire 

and hold real property. This bill would expand the 

definition of “local agency” to include sewer, water, 

utility, and local and regional park districts, joint powers 

authorities, successor agencies to former 

redevelopment agencies, housing authorities, and 

other political subdivisions of this state.    

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

AB 1487 

(Chiu D)  

San Francisco 

Bay area: 

housing 

Current law provides for the establishment of various 

special districts that may support and finance housing 

development, including affordable housing special 

beneficiary districts that are authorized to promote 

affordable housing development with certain property 

tax revenues that a city or county would otherwise be 

Alameda 

CTC – Support 

and seek 

amendments 

Page 65Page 65

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=LXAraQJj6Db86jNWho%2fwORzgqhN5d0J2eAVxafBa7pKC4%2fEvQphU08q7S%2f%2b%2f74zK
https://a69.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Cc1LwDQsheAANz39uFPFFr%2fBfve6haccfnMCm2prWgqN5wR1xgJgWSXwSW3Dcuet
https://a41.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=9IFMyemfhzOwJku1WmMZBdVKdX5xvMQ8xaTg6iO69Fec8tQFkOJ%2bt9tdxcyIxIDd
https://a19.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=yZdpHj6wwVi7izw51oxiPXPTEei8p5GpI%2bNltuFZfViVtQJSVHxaJVhh6%2fiHfnHl
https://a17.asmdc.org/


development: 

financing. 

entitled to receive. This bill, the San Francisco Bay Area 

Regional Housing Finance Act, would establish the 

Housing Alliance for the Bay Area (hereafter the entity) 

and would state that the entity’s purpose is to increase 

affordable housing in the San Francisco Bay area, as 

defined, by providing for enhanced funding and 

technical assistance at a regional level for tenant 

protection, affordable housing preservation, and new 

affordable housing production.      

ACA 1 

(Aguiar-

Curry D)  

Local 

government 

financing: 

affordable 

housing and 

public 

infrastructure: 

voter approval. 

The California Constitution prohibits the ad valorem tax 

rate on real property from exceeding 1% of the full cash 

value of the property, subject to certain exceptions. 

This measure would create an additional exception to 

the 1% limit that would authorize a city, county, city 

and county, or special district to levy an ad valorem tax 

to service bonded indebtedness incurred to fund the 

construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or 

replacement of public infrastructure, affordable 

housing, or permanent supportive housing, or the 

acquisition or lease of real property for those purposes, 

if the proposition proposing that tax is approved by 55% 

of the voters of the city, county, or city and county, as 

applicable, and the proposition includes specified 

accountability requirements.      

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

SB 5 

(Beall D)  

Affordable 

Housing and 

Community 

Development 

Investment 

Program. 

Would establish in state government the Affordable 

Housing and Community Development Investment 

Program, which would be administered by the 

Affordable Housing and Community Development 

Investment Committee. The bill would authorize a city, 

county, city and county, joint powers agency, 

enhanced infrastructure financing district, affordable 

housing authority, community revitalization and 

investment authority, transit village development 

district, or a combination of those entities, to apply to 

the Affordable Housing and Community Development 

Investment Committee to participate in the program 

and would authorize the committee to approve or 

deny plans for projects meeting specific criteria.    

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

if Amended 

SB 127 

(Wiener D)  

Transportation 

funding: active 

transportation: 

Would establish an Active Transportation Asset Branch 

within the Transportation Asset Management Office of 

the department and require the Transportation Asset 

Management Plan program manager to develop and 

meaningfully integrate performance measures into the 

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

and Seek  

Amendments 

Page 66Page 66

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Aef2WTO%2fzKhPH%2b%2bQ%2bhF963VUN8OjkS1fBPfYWyxv60PTNxLJ4sbwth84iZNrPqIU
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=PjdVdV17RS%2b5OF91KT%2bZ8qqeVm3WVFxfXVrZ%2btuF8BFfGbp4tMPZVm7jRzIprAsA
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=URzDaLYP8tlUa2l2DMEtM1B5%2bLUHrYk4W0BCs9nKNk8FSCa%2bngZCEWPyvh2a2shr
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/


complete 

streets. 

asset management plan as specified, and to establish 

interim goals, objectives, and actions to meet the 

department’s transportation mode shift goals, as 

specified. The bill would require the California 

Transportation Commission to give high priority to 

increasing safety for pedestrians and bicyclists and to 

the implementation of bicycle and pedestrian 

facilities.     

SB 128 

(Beall D)  

Enhanced 

infrastructure 

financing 

districts: bonds: 

issuance. 

Current law authorizes the legislative body of a city or a 

county to establish an enhanced infrastructure 

financing district, with a governing body referred to as 

a public financing authority, to finance public capital 

facilities or other specified projects of communitywide 

significance. Current law requires a public financing 

authority to adopt an infrastructure financing plan and 

hold a public hearing on the plan, as specified. Current 

law authorizes the public financing authority to issue 

bonds for these purposes upon approval by 55% of the 

voters voting on a proposal to issue the bonds. Current 

law requires the proposal submitted to the voters by the 

public financing authority and the resolution for the 

issuance of bonds following approval by the voters to 

include specified information regarding the bond 

issuance. This bill would instead authorize the public 

financing authority to issue bonds for these purposes 

without submitting a proposal to the voters.    

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

SB 137 

(Dodd D)  

Federal 

transportation 

funds: state 

exchange 

programs. 

Current federal law apportions transportation funds to 

the states under various programs, including the 

Surface Transportation Program and the Highway 

Safety Improvement Program, subject to certain 

conditions on the use of those funds. Current law 

establishes the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 

Program to address deferred maintenance on the state 

highway system and the local street and road system, 

and funds that program from fuel taxes and an annual 

transportation improvement fee imposed on vehicles. 

This bill would authorize the Department of 

Transportation to allow the above-described federal 

transportation funds that are allocated as local 

assistance to be exchanged for Road Maintenance 

and Rehabilitation Program funds appropriated to the 

department.     

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

and Seek 

Amendments 

Page 67Page 67

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=%2bmnxBxI3eYSJxGLTKZQLklB2ojWEAhqZWFSKGTYBxHV5PIjSYRCVeaK2VsCMSmCH
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5ICfDVjfDDP64jsna5Tih2bkgIw1tUFSC4iR2tNe%2fSxahEnskjmImbWKVbMqfVEp
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/


SB 211 

(Beall D)  

State Highways: 

Leases 

Existing law vests the Department of Transportation with 

full possession and control of the state highway system, 

including associated property. Existing law authorizes 

the department to lease on a right of first refusal basis 

specified airspace under freeways, and real property 

acquired for highway purposes, that is not excess 

property, to specified local entities for purposes of 

emergency shelters or feeding programs, or other 

specified purposes, for a lease amount of $1 per month 

and a payment of an administrative fee not to exceed 

$500 per year, as specified.  This bill would authorize the 

department to lease on a right of first refusal basis any 

airspace under a freeway, or real property acquired for 

highway purposes for purposes of an emergency 

shelter or feeding program. 

Alameda 

CTC - Support 

SB 328 

(Portantino D)  

Pupil 

attendance: 

school start 

time. 

Would require the school day for middle schools and 

high schools, including those operated as charter 

schools, to begin no earlier than 8:00 a.m. and 8:30 

a.m., respectively, by July 1, 2022, or the date on which 

a school district’s or charter school’s respective 

collective bargaining agreement that is operative on 

January 1, 2020, expires, whichever is later, except for 

rural school districts. To the extent the bill imposes new 

duties on school districts and charter schools, the bill 

would impose a state-mandated local program.      

Alameda 

CTC - Oppose 

 

Page 68Page 68

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB211http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB211
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB211http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB211
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Jw1uBH0vv%2fWKfswULR%2b9CVeRX4JvdIL0qTVXzN1UbgVlBkfikubYATLLVrCujPFW
http://sd25.senate.ca.gov/


Summary of ABAG Executive Board’s Proposed Amendments to AB 1487 (Chiu)  

At the ABAG Executive Board meeting on July 18, the board adopted a “Support if Amended” 
position on AB 1487 by a vote of 22-3. Their amendments incorporated the Ad Hoc committee’s 
recommendation, with three revisions:   

1. Provide a direct allocation to the 3 biggest cities. (NOTE: ALAMEDA CTC DID NOT
INCLUDE THIS ITEM IN ITS BILL RECOMMENDATION; ONLY THE TWO BELOW)

2. Add language to the findings portion of the bill acknowledging the severe imbalance
between jobs and housing and the intent for the funding in the bill to help address this
problem.

3. Require that ABAG be the lead agency by adding language to the bill requiring that,
where action of both ABAG and MTC is required, the ABAG EB acts before MTC
acts.  Should there be any difference in the subsequent action taken by MTC, the
ABAG EB would have to approve that change. No second action by the ABAG EB
would be required if the position taken by MTC is the same as that taken by ABAG.

6.8C

Page 69Page 69



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 70Page 70



I 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

July 24, 2019 Agenda Item Sc 

AB 1487 (Chiu): Bay Area Regional Housing Funding 

Subject: 

Background: 

AB 1487 (Chiu): Bay Area Regional Housing Funding 

At the July 12, 2019 joint ABAG Legislation Committee and MTC 

Legislation Committee meeting, staff reported on the status of AB 1487 

(Chiu). 

The Chair of the Legislation Committee directed the Executive Director 

to forward this item to the Commission with the direction for staff to 

include a support if amended position on this bill. 

Specifically, the amendments need to be consistent with the positions as 

outlined in the summary sheet dated July 12, 2019 and Attachment A 

describing the recommendations of the ABAG-MTC AB 1487 Ad Hoc 

Committee to the joint ABAG Legislation Committee and MTC 

Legislation Committee (see attachments). 

Also included is the bill as currently held, and to be amended, in the 

Senate Appropriations Committee, as well as an email Committee 

Member Pat Eklund, Councilmember, City of Novato, distributed at the 

joint committee meeting. 

Issues: For consideration by the Commission. 

Recommendation: The Commission is requested to support if amended AB 1487 (Chiu). 

Attachments: A. Summary Sheet, Joint MTC Legislation Committee and ABAG 

Legislation Committee, July 12, 2019 (and attachments) 

B. Bill Text 

C. Eklund Email 

Reviewed: 
~~ 

Therese W. McMillan 

Page 71Page 71



Metropolitan Transportation Commission and Association of Bay Area Governments 
Joint MTC Legislation Committee and ABAG Legislation Committee 

July 12, 2019 Agenda Item 5a 

AB 1487 (Chiu): Bay Area Regional Housing Funding   

Subject:  This bill would authorize a regional housing funding measure for affordable housing 
production, preservation, and protection of tenants from displacement to be placed on 
the ballot in the Bay Area with funds administered by MTC and ABAG.  
 

Background:  Unlike transportation, which has long had access to substantial regional funding 
through bridge tolls and federal and state funds distributed at the regional level, 
affordable housing is reliant upon private, local, state and federal funding, including 
state and federal tax breaks. Given the Bay Area faces an estimated $2.5 billion annual 
affordable housing funding shortfall, a new flexible fund source to help close the 
funding gap for housing projects especially in those jurisdictions that have less 
resources available at the local level would benefit the entire Bay Area.  
 

Discussion:   As originally proposed, AB 1487 (Chiu) would have established the Housing Alliance 
for the Bay Area (HABA) to oversee new funding for affordable housing in the nine-
county region.  
 
In May, ABAG and MTC took a “seek amendment” position on AB 1487 as follows:  
 
Issue Concern 

Addressed 
Notes 

Revenue - Exclude sales tax 
from revenue options 
 

 Author has agreed and will be 
reflected in amendments 

Start-up Funding - Ensure 
no new responsibilities are 
assigned to MTC or ABAG 
without a guaranteed source 
of ongoing funding and bill 
includes a provision 
allowing for dissolution of 
HABA if not enough 
revenue is generated to be 
meaningful 

 In addition, the FY 2019-20 Budget 
will provide at least $25 million to 
ABAG for flexible housing planning 
work 
 
Proposed amendments will give 
ABAG and MTC authority to 
determine whether to place on ballot 
and set tax rates, thereby 
determining what level of revenue is 
‘meaningful’ 

Split Board - Ensure the bill 
doesn’t require MTC staff 
report to a newly structured 
board 

 Author has agreed not to form HABA 
and instead to split up duties between 
MTC and ABAG 

Revenue Distribution - 
Develop a distribution 
formula that distributes 
more than 25 percent of any 
employer-based revenue to a 
regional pool 

 Author has agreed to bill language 
which provide that “at least 50 
percent” of head tax shall be 
distributed to counties, with up to 50 
percent for regional pool 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8c - Attachment A

Page 72Page 72



Joint MTC Legislation Committee and ABAG Legislation Committee 

July 12, 2019 

Agenda Item Sa 

Page 2 of 2 

Recommendation: 

Bill Positions: 

Attachments: 

Ad Hoc Committee Discussions 

Another component of the MTC and ABAG boards' actions on AB 1487 called for the 
formation of a joint ad hoc committee to work with the author on governance and 
other issues. The membership on the Ad Hoc Committee on AB 1487 (appointed by 
the MTC Chair and ABAG President) include for MTC: Vice Chair Alfredo Pedroza, 
Jim Spering, Amy Worth, Libby Schaaf and Damon Connolly; and for ABAG: 
President David Rabbit, Vice President Jesse Arreguin, Cindy Chavez, Julie Pierce 
and Warren Slocum. 

The committee met three times, including with Assemblymember Chiu on a number of 
important matters related to governance of this process within the constraints of our 
existing regional governmental structures, primarily that no new board would be 

created. Discussions also addressed revenue distribution frameworks. A summary is 
included as Attachment A. 

Amendments to AB 1487 released on July 5th are largely consistent with the 
discussion of the ad hoc committee though not entirely complete, as a number of items 
need to be included in a later draft of the bill. Staff was still combing through the most 
recent draft bill language at the time this memo was finalized, but is aware of further 
changes needed for the timely use of fund provisions, at a minimum. 

The July Joint MTC and ABAG Legislation Committee meeting will be an 
opportunity to continue the discussion and to consider forwarding AB 1487 to the 
Commission and the ABAG Executive Committee for their deliberation. 

AB 1487 is up against a final hearing deadline for 2019 as the session is set for 
summer break on July 12 th

• As of this writing it remains uncertain if the bill will be 
scheduled for a hearing in the Senate Governance & Finance Committee on July 10th, 

or if it will receive a waiver to allow it to be heard in August. 

Information Item 

See attached 

Attachment A: ABAG-MTC AB 1487 Ad Hoc Committee Recommendations 
Attachment B: Bill Positions 

Therese W. McMillan 

Page 73Page 73



Joint MTC Legislation Committee and ABAG Legislation Committee Attachment A 
July 12, 2019  Agenda Item 5a 
Page 1 of 3 
 

1 
 

ABAG-MTC AB 1487 Ad Hoc Committee Recommendations   

June 28, 2019 

 

Governance  

Rather than establishing a new regional entity with a new board, AB 1487 should be amended 
to rely upon the existing governance structures, strengths and areas of expertise of MTC and 
ABAG, as outlined in the table below.  

A shared arrangement for our two agencies has precedent in state law (Government Code 
65080 (b)(2)(C)) which assigned different roles to each agency relative to the development of 
the sustainable communities strategy (Plan Bay Area). Likewise, MTC agreed to give ABAG a 
formal role in the selection process for the new MTC Executive Director (who currently serves 
as the ABAG Executive Director).  

Summary of Proposed Decision-Making Responsibilities in AB 1487 

 ABAG Executive 
Board 

MTC 

Developing ballot expenditure plan  
(including setting tax rates and revenue sources, 
setting minimum shares for 3Ps, criteria, 
potentially minimum shares at county level)  

√ √ 

Project selection/ programming of funds for 
specific purposes  

√ √ 

Commercial Linkage Fee Study & Expenditure 
Plan  

√ √ 

Placement of measure on ballot  
 

 √ 

Financial administration   
(including collecting revenue, authorizing 
payments and issuing bonds)  

 √ 

 
Option to Adjust in Future  
We recommend the bill add a provision requiring MTC and the ABAG Executive Board to 
revisit the division of roles five years after the bill takes effect. To the extent it can work from a 
legal standpoint, the bill would ideally grant the agencies the authority to take formal action to 
modify the roles to one another if agreed to by both bodies. The bill should also provide a 
statement of legislative intent to transfer this responsibility to a successor agency to MTC and 
ABAG if one is established in future legislation.  

  

Page 74Page 74



Joint MTC Legislation Committee and ABAG Legislation Committee Attachment A 
July 12, 2019  Agenda Item 5a 
Page 2 of 3 
 

2 
 

Expenditures & Revenue  
 

We spent a lot of time on how the funds are distributed in terms of usage and in terms of county 
versus region. Below is our proposal:   
 
1. Splitting up the 3Ps:  

The regionwide and county required minimums (“at least” floors) for the different components 
of the 3Ps should be the same, as follows:  

 Regionwide Minimum County Minimum  
Production 50% 50% 
Preservation 15% 15% 
Protection 5% 5% 
Incentive Funds for local 
governments  

5% NA 

 

• There should be no caps on the 3P shares. 
• Retain flexibility in bill now to modify the regionwide 3P shares (subject to board action 

and 30 day notice), but require a 55% vote requirement of both bodies to make changes.  
 

2. Region vs. County Split of Funds   

The bill should specify that the head tax should be distributed with at least 50% of the funds 
remaining in the county of origin based on revenue, leaving up to 50 percent available to be 
spent regionwide, while the other taxes in the bill should be distributed so that at least 75% of 
revenue goes to the county of origin based on revenue, leaving up to 25% for a regional fund.  

The bill should allow the ABAG Executive Board and MTC to revisit this periodically and 
modify it but subject to a very high bar.  

3. Distribution of local funds to and within a county 

We agreed that the county share funds should go to the county – to be administered at the 
county level, leaving details about how the funds are distributed up to each county in 
coordination with their cities (subject to the minimum shares and potential details added in the 
ballot measure language) with one exception – big cities.  

For the first five years, the four biggest cities in the region should get a direct allocation of their 
county’s share based on their share of the county’s RHNA. This can be extended at the option 
of the ABAG EB and MTC. Counties may want to also use RHNA in some manner for 
distributing within their county, but the bill should not mandate a formula distribution for 
smaller cities as this could result in funds not being put to use as efficiently as on a first-come, 
first-served basis for qualifying projects within each county.     

  

Page 75Page 75



Joint MTC Legislation Committee and ABAG Legislation Committee Attachment A 
July 12, 2019  Agenda Item 5a 
Page 3 of 3 
 

3 
 

4. Timely Use of Fund Provisions  

We agreed that the bill shouldn’t mandate a specific deadline by which counties have to 
commit or expend their share of the funds. However, to encourage that funds are put to use as 
swiftly as possible, the bill should include annual reporting requirements about use of the funds 
by counties and the regional agencies. The bill should also provide for evaluation of each 
county’s use of funds and delivery of projects at least once every five years, and permit the 
ABAG EB and MTC with the authority to jointly assess and establish deadlines applicable to 
the county funds, considering, among other factors, best practices deployed over that period by 
the counties and cities. 

We suggested that timely use of fund requirements could be applied to specific projects, but we 
have not discussed the exact number of years or the appropriate benchmarks. Funds for projects 
that miss a timely use of funding deadline should return to the original fund (county or 
regional) from where they originated.  
 
5. Commercial Linkage Fee 
 
We would like the bill to broaden where the fee revenue can be spent (not just in the local 
jurisdiction where it was imposed), consistent with whatever the legal nexus study determines. 
Also, we support the offset provision in bill now, which reduces the rate of the regional linkage 
fee in any jurisdiction that already has a local commercial linkage fee. 
   
6. Revenue Sources  

 
As adopted by the MTC and the ABAG Executive Board’s position on AB 1487, we would like 
the sales tax removed as one of the funding options in the bill. We understand removing the 
sales tax from AB 1487 does not mean that the sales tax is off the table as a funding option that 
might be considered in a broader Bay Area transportation and housing “mega measure” that 
would require separate legislative authorization and may be pursued legislatively and on the 
ballot in 2020 or beyond.  
 
Other  
 
1. Land Acquisition & Assembly  
We recommend removing this aspect of the bill since neither MTC nor ABAG have experience 
or skill set in this regard. The regional funds can instead help support local agencies which do 
have such expertise in this work.  
 
 

Page 76Page 76



Joint MTC Legislation Committee and ABAG Legislation Committee Attachment B 
July 12, 2019  Agenda Item 5a 
 
AB 1487 (Chiu) Bill Positions  
 
SUPPORT 

• PICO California 
• Silicon Valley Community Foundation 
• Non-Profit Housing Association of Northern California 
• Bay Area Council 
• Burbank Housing Development Corporation 
• Greenbelt Alliance 
• TMG Partners 
• Community Housing Development Corporation 
• SPUR 
• Habitat for Humanity East Bay/Silicon Valley 
• Silicon Valley at Home 
• California Community Builders 
• Hamilton Families 
• California YIMBY 
• TechEquity Collaborative 
• Chan Zuckerberg Initiative 
• Enterprise Community Partners, Inc. 
• Urban Displacement Project, UC-Berkeley 
• Ensuring Opportunity Campaign to End Poverty in Contra Costa County 
• Bay Area Housing Advocacy Coalition 

Source: Senate Housing Committee, 6/13/2019 - SENATE Housing (Based on text dated 
5/16/2019)  
 

OPPOSE  

• California Taxpayers Association 
• Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Association 
• Coalition for San Francisco Neighborhoods 
• Alameda County Transportation Commission 

 

Page 77Page 77



CA SENATE CA ASSEMBLY

AB 1487 (Chiu)

Governor’s Signature

Current Status:
Senate Appropriations

Senate Appropriations

if approved

if approvedSenate Floor

Assembly Appropriations

if approved

if approved

Assembly Floor

if amended
and approved,

referred back to both

if approved, back to if approved

Senate Housing

Senate Governance 
and Finance

Housing and 
Community Development

Assembly Local 
Government

Joint MTC Legislation Committee and ABAG Legislation Committee 
July 12, 2019

Handout 
Agenda Item 5a

Page 78Page 78



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 1487

SHARE THIS: Date Published: 07/11/2019 09:00 PM

Bill Information >> Bill Search >> Text

PDF | Add To My Favorites | Track Bill  | Version:  

AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing. (2019-2020)

AMENDED  IN  SENATE  JULY 11, 2019

AMENDED  IN  SENATE  JULY 03, 2019

AMENDED  IN  ASSEMBLY  MAY 16, 2019

AMENDED  IN  ASSEMBLY  APRIL 29, 2019

AMENDED  IN  ASSEMBLY  APRIL 04, 2019

AMENDED  IN  ASSEMBLY  MARCH 26, 2019

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2019–2020 REGULAR SESSION

Introduced by Assembly Member Chiu
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Mullin and Wicks)

(Coauthor: Senator Wiener)

February 22, 2019

An act to add Title 6.8 (commencing with Section 64500) to the Government Code, relating to housing.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 1487, as amended, Chiu. San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

Existing law provides for the establishment of various special districts that may support and finance housing
development, including affordable housing special beneficiary districts that are authorized to promote
affordable housing development with certain property tax revenues that a city or county would otherwise be
entitled to receive.

This bill, the San Francisco Bay Area Regional Housing Finance Act, would establish the Bay Area Housing

skip to content  home  accessibility  FAQ  feedback  sitemap  login 

 Quick Search:
 

Home Bill Information California Law Publications Other Resources My Subscriptions My Favorites

Text Votes History Bill Analysis Today's Law As Amended  Compare Versions Status Comments To Author

AGENDA ITEM 8c - Attachment B

Page 79Page 79

http://www.facebook.com/sharer.php?u=http%3A//leginfo.legislature.ca.gov%3A443/faces/billNavClient.xhtml%3Fbill_id=201920200AB1487&t=20192020AB-1487&
http://twitter.com/home?status=20192020AB-1487 http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov:443/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487&
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billSearchClient.xhtml
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billSearchClient.xhtml
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billPdf.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487&version=20190AB148793AMD
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billVotesClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billVotesClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billHistoryClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billHistoryClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billAnalysisClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billAnalysisClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billVersionsCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billVersionsCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487


Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

Finance Authority (hereafter the authority) and would state that the authority’s purpose is to raise,
administer, and allocate funding for affordable housing in the San Francisco Bay area, as defined, and provide
technical assistance at a regional level for tenant protection, affordable housing preservation, and new
affordable housing production. The bill would provide that the governing board of the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission serve as the governing board of the authority. The bill would authorize the
authority to exercise various specified powers, including the power to raise revenue and allocate funds
throughout the San Francisco Bay area, subject to applicable voter approval requirements and other specified
procedures, as provided. The bill would also require the board to provide for annual audits of the authority and
financial reports, as provided. The bill would include findings that the changes proposed by this bill address a
matter of statewide concern rather than a municipal affair and, therefore, apply to all cities within the San
Francisco Bay area, including charter cities.

The bill would authorize the authority to, among other things, raise and allocate new revenue, incur and issue
indebtedness, and allocate funds to the various cities, counties, and other public agencies and affordable
housing projects within its jurisdiction to finance affordable housing development projects, subject to specified
procedures, preserve and enhance existing affordable housing, and fund tenant protection programs, as
specified, in accordance with applicable constitutional requirements. In this regard, the bill would authorize
the entity to impose various special taxes, including a parcel tax, and certain business taxes, within its
jurisdiction and to issue bonds, subject to specified procedures. The bill would also authorize the executive
board of the Association of Bay Area Governments to impose a commercial linkage fee, as defined, and
require a city or county in the San Francisco Bay area that has jurisdiction over the approval of a commercial
development project, as defined, to collect that fee as a condition of that approval and remit the amount of
fee to the authority, as provided. The bill would require the authority to ratify the commercial linkage fee
adopted by the executive board of the Association of Bay Area Governments. The bill would require that
revenue generated by the authority pursuant to these provisions be used for specified housing purposes and
require the authority to distribute those funds as provided.

This bill would make legislative findings and declarations as to the necessity of a special statute for the San
Francisco Bay area.

By adding to the duties of local officials with respect to (1) providing staff for the authority and (2) elections
procedures for revenue measures on behalf of the authority, this bill would impose a state-mandated local
program.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs
mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that, if the Commission on State Mandates determines that the bill contains costs
mandated by the state, reimbursement for those costs shall be made pursuant to the statutory provisions
noted above.

Vote: majority   Appropriation: no   Fiscal Committee: yes   Local Program: yes  

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Title 6.8 (commencing with Section 64500) is added to the Government Code, to read:

TITLE 6.8. San Francisco Bay Area Regional Housing Finance
PART 1. Formation of the Bay Area Housing Finance Authority and General Powers
CHAPTER  1. General Provisions

64500. This title shall be known, and may be cited, as the San Francisco Bay Area Regional Housing Finance
Act.

64501. The Legislature finds and declares the following:

(a) The San Francisco Bay area is facing the most significant housing crisis in the region’s history, as countless
residents are contemplating moving, spend hours driving every day, are one paycheck away from an eviction,
or experience homelessness.

Page 80Page 80



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

(b) The San Francisco Bay area faces this crisis because, as a region, it has failed to produce enough housing
at all income levels, preserve affordable housing, protect existing residents from displacement, and address
the housing issue regionally.

(c) The housing crisis in the San Francisco Bay area is regional in nature and too great to be addressed
individually by the region’s 101 cities and 9 counties.

(d) However, the current process is anything but regional; instead each city and county is each responsible for
their own decisions around housing.

(e) The San Francisco Bay area faces an annual funding shortfall of two billion five hundred million dollars
($2,500,000,000) in its efforts to address the affordable housing crisis.

(f) Regional funding is necessary to help address the housing crisis in the San Francisco Bay area by delivering
resources and technical assistance at a regional scale, including:

(1) Providing critically needed funding to affordable housing projects across the San Francisco Bay area.

(2) Providing staff support to local jurisdictions that require capacity or technical assistance to expedite the
preservation and production of housing.

(3) Funding tenant services, such as emergency rental assistance and access to counsel, thereby relieving
local jurisdictions of this cost and responsibility.

(4) Monitoring and reporting on progress at a regional scale.

64502. For purposes of this title:

(a) “Authority” means the Bay Area Housing Finance Authority established pursuant to Section 64510.

(b) “Board” means the governing board of the Bay Area Housing Finance Authority.

(c) “Executive board” means the executive board of the Association of Bay Area Governments.

(d) “San Francisco Bay area” means the entire area within the territorial boundaries of the Counties of
Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano, and Sonoma, and the City and County
of San Francisco.

(e)“Lower income households” has the same meaning as that term is defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health
and Safety Code.

(f)“Low- or moderate-income households” has the same meaning as “persons and families of low or moderate
income,” as defined in Section 50093 of the Health and Safety Code.

64503. The Legislature finds and declares that providing a regional financing mechanism for affordable housing
development and preservation in the San Francisco Bay area, as described in this section and Section 64501,
is a matter of statewide concern and is not a municipal affair as that term is used in Section 5 of Article XI of
the California Constitution. Therefore, this title applies to all cities within the San Francisco Bay area, including
charter cities.

CHAPTER  2. The Bay Area Housing Finance Authority and Governing Board

64510. (a) (1) The Bay Area Housing Finance Authority is hereby established with jurisdiction extending
throughout the San Francisco Bay area.

(2) The authority is a public instrumentality and shall be governed by the same board that governs the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission. The authority shall be a separate legal entity from the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission.

(b) The formation and jurisdictional boundaries of the authority are not subject to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg
Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (Division 3 (commencing with Section 56000) of Title 5).

Page 81Page 81



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

(c) The authority’s purpose is to raise, administer, and allocate funding and provide technical assistance at a
regional level for tenant protection, affordable housing preservation, and new affordable housing production.

(d) The authority shall be staffed by the existing staff of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission or any
successor agency, with the understanding that additional staff with expertise in affordable housing finance will
be needed to administer the funding authorized in this chapter.

(e) It is the intent of the Legislature that the powers granted to the authority and the executive board under
this title shall be transferred to a future regional agency if an agency is established to replace the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission and the Association of Bay Area Governments and integrate regional
transportation and housing funding and policy decisions within the San Francisco Bay area under one
governing board, subsequent to a robust public engagement process at the regional level.

64511. (a) (1) The executive board shall review and approve projects authorized by this chapter prior to
review, approval, and allocation by the authority.

(2) The executive board shall form an advisory committee comprised of nine representatives with knowledge
and experience in the areas of affordable housing finance and development, tenant protection, and housing
preservation to assist in the development of funding guidelines and the overall implementation of the
program.

(b) The board shall select from its members a chair, who shall preside over meetings of the board, and a vice
chair from its members, who shall preside in the absence of the chair.

(c) (1) A member of the board appointed pursuant to this section may receive a per diem for each board
meeting that the member attends. The board shall set the amount of that per diem for a member’s
attendance, but that amount shall not exceed one hundred dollars ($100) per meeting. A member shall not
receive a payment for more than two meetings in a calendar month.

(2) A member may waive a payment of per diem authorized by this subdivision.

(d) (1) Members of the board are subject to Article 2.4 (commencing with Section 53234) of Chapter 2 of Part
1 of Division 2 of Title 5.

(2) The authority shall be subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of
Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5), the California Public Records Act (Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250)
of Division 7 of Title 1), and the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Title 9 (commencing with Section 81000)).

(e)(1)Five years after the voters approve an initial ballot measure pursuant to Section 64521, the authority
and the executive board shall review the implementation of the measure. The review shall include the
following:

(A)An analysis of the expenditures to date.

(B)The number of affordable housing units produced and preserved at different household income levels.

(C)The tenant protection services provided, and the roles of the executive board and the authority.

(2)The executive board and the authority may, upon mutual concurrence, as a part of the review described in
this subdivision elect to transfer or delegate a responsibility authorized in this title to the executive board or
the authority, as applicable, except for the provisions of Chapter 3.

64512. A member of the board shall exercise independent judgment on behalf of the interests of the residents,
the property owners, and the public as a whole in furthering the intent and purposes of this title.

64513. (a) The time and place of the first meeting of the board shall be at a time and place within the San
Francisco Bay area fixed by the chair of the board.

(b) After the first meeting described in subdivision (a), the board shall hold meetings at times and places
determined by the board.

Page 82Page 82



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

64514. (a) The board may make and enforce rules and regulations necessary for governing the authority, the
preservation of order, and the transaction of business.

(b) In exercising the powers and duties conferred on the authority by this title, the board may act by
resolution.

3.Powers of the Bay Area Housing Finance Authority

64520.In implementing this title, the authority may do all of the following:

(a)Subject to the approval of the executive board, place a measure on the ballot to raise revenue and allocate
funds throughout the San Francisco Bay area, as provided in Part 2 (commencing with Section 64600).

(b)Apply for and receive grants from federal and state agencies.

(c)Solicit and accept gifts, fees, grants, and allocations from public and private entities.

(d)Deposit or invest moneys of the authority in banks or financial institutions in the state, as provided in
Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 53600) of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5.

(e)Sue and be sued, except as otherwise provided by law, in all actions and proceedings, in all courts and
tribunals of competent jurisdiction.

(f)Engage counsel and other professional services.

(g)Enter into and perform all necessary contracts.

(h)Enter into joint powers agreements pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Chapter 5 (commencing
with Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title 1).

(i)Hire staff, define their qualifications and duties, and provide a schedule of compensation for the
performance of their duties.

(j)Use staff provided by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission.

(k)Collect data on housing production and monitor progress on meeting regional and state housing goals.

(l)Provide support and technical assistance to local governments in relation to producing and preserving
affordable housing.

(m)Provide public information about the authority’s housing programs and policies.

(n)Any other express or implied power necessary to carry out the intent and purposes of this title.

64521.(a)Subject to the approval of the executive board before voter approval, if the authority proposes a
measure pursuant to Part 2 (commencing with Section 64600) that will generate revenues and that requires
voter approval pursuant to the California Constitution, the board of supervisors of the county or counties in
which the authority has determined to place the measure on the ballot shall call a special election on the
measure. The special election shall be consolidated with the next regularly scheduled statewide election and
the measure shall be submitted to the voters in the appropriate counties, consistent with the requirements of
Articles XIII A, XIII C, and XIII, or Article XVI of the California Constitution, as applicable.

(b)(1)For the purpose of placement of a measure on the ballot, the authority is a district, as defined in Section
317 of the Elections Code. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a measure proposed by the authority
that requires voter approval shall be submitted to the voters of the counties, as determined by the authority,
in accordance with the provisions of the Elections Code applicable to districts, including the provisions of
Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 9300) of Division 9 of the Elections Code.

(2)Because the authority has no revenues as of the effective date of this section, the appropriations limit for
the authority shall be originally established based on receipts from the initial measure that would generate
revenues for the authority pursuant to subdivision (a), and that establishment of an appropriations limit shall
not be deemed a change in an appropriations limit for purposes of Section 4 of Article XIII B of the California

Page 83Page 83



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

Constitution.

(c)The authority shall file with the board of supervisors of each county in which the measure shall appear on
the ballot a resolution of the board requesting consolidation, and setting forth the exact form of the ballot
question, in accordance with Section 10403 of the Elections Code.

(d)The legal counsel for the authority shall prepare an impartial analysis of the measure. The impartial
analysis prepared by the legal counsel for the authority shall be subject to review and revision by the county
counsel of the county that contains the largest population, as determined by the most recent federal decennial
census, among those counties in which the measure will be submitted to the voters.

(e)Each county included in the measure shall use the exact ballot question, impartial analysis, and ballot
language provided by the authority. If two or more counties included in the measure are required to prepare a
translation of ballot materials into the same language other than English, the county that contains the largest
population, as determined by the most recent federal decennial census, among those counties that are
required to prepare a translation of ballot materials into the same language other than English shall prepare
the translation, or authorize the authority to prepare the translation, and that translation shall be used by the
other county or counties, as applicable.

(f)Notwithstanding Section 13116 of the Elections Code, the elections officials of the counties where the
measure proposed by the authority is placed on the ballot shall mutually agree to use the same letter
designation for the measure.

(g)The county clerk of each county shall report the results of the special election to the authority. If two-thirds
of all voters voting on the question at the special election vote affirmatively, or a different approval threshold
required by the California Constitution at the time the election is held, the measure shall take effect in the
counties in which the measure appeared on the ballot within the timeframe specified in the measure.

(h)(1)Notwithstanding Section 10520 of the Elections Code, for any election at which the authority proposes a
measure pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 64520 that would generate revenues, the authority shall
reimburse each county in which that measure appears on the ballot only for the incremental costs incurred by
the county elections official related to submitting the measure to the voters with proceeds from the measure,
or if the measure fails, with any eligible funds transferred to the authority from the Association of Bay Area
Governments or the Metropolitan Transportation Commission or other public or private entity.

(2)For purposes of this subdivision, “incremental costs” include all of the following:

(A)The cost to prepare, review, and revise the impartial analysis of the measure that is required by
subdivision (d).

(B)The cost to prepare a translation of ballot materials into a language other than English by any county, as
described in subdivision (e).

(C)The additional costs that exceed the costs incurred for other election races or ballot measures, if any,
appearing on the same ballot in each county in which the measure appears on the ballot, including both of the
following:

(i)The printing and mailing of ballot materials.

(ii)The canvass of the vote regarding the measure pursuant to Division 15 (commencing with Section 15000)
of the Elections Code.

64522.The authority shall not do either of the following:

(a)Regulate or enforce local land use decisions.

(b)Acquire property by eminent domain.

4.Financial Provisions

64530.The board shall provide for regular audits of the authority’s accounts and records and shall maintain
accounting records and shall report accounting transactions in accordance with generally accepted accounting

Page 84Page 84



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

principles adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board of the Financial Accounting Foundation
for both public reporting purposes and for reporting of activities to the Controller.

64531.The board shall provide for annual financial reports. The board shall make copies of the annual financial
reports available to the public.

2.Financing Activities of the Bay Area Housing Finance Authority

1.General Provisions

64600.The authority may do all of the following:

(a)(1)Raise and allocate new revenue through the following funding mechanisms:

(A)Special taxes, subject to voter approval, as provided in Article 1 (commencing with Section 64610) of
Chapter 2, as follows:

(i)A parcel tax, as provided in Section 64610.

(ii)A gross receipts business license tax, as provided in Section 64611.

(iii)A special business tax, as provided in Section 64612.

(B)A commercial linkage fee, as provided in Article 2 (commencing with Section 64620) of Chapter 2.

(C)Bonds, as provided in Article 3 (commencing with Section 64630) of Chapter 2.

(2)Any funding mechanism or combination of funding mechanisms authorized pursuant to paragraph (1) that
requires voter approval pursuant to the California Constitution or this part may be placed on the ballot in all or
a subset of the nine counties in the San Francisco Bay area, but in no case shall it be placed on the ballot in
fewer than four counties. A measure placed on the ballot in a subset of those nine counties shall apply only in
those counties in which the measure was submitted to the voters.

(3)It is the intent of the Legislature that the funding measures authorized by this subdivision distribute the
responsibility of addressing the affordable housing needs of the region across commercial developers,
businesses above a certain size, taxpayers, and property owners within the region.

(b)Incur and issue indebtedness and assess fees on any debt issuance and loan products for reinvestment of
fees and loan repayments in affordable housing production and preservation.

(c)Allocate funds to the various cities, counties, and other public agencies and affordable housing developers
for housing projects approved by the executive board within its jurisdiction, as provided in Chapter 3
(commencing with Section 64650), to finance affordable housing development, preserve and enhance existing
affordable housing, and fund tenant protection programs, pursuant to this title, in accordance with applicable
constitutional requirements.

2.Revenue

1.Special Taxes

64610.(a)Subject to Section 4 of Article XIII A of the California Constitution, and approval by the executive
board before the measure is placed on the ballot, the authority may impose, by resolution, a parcel tax within
the San Francisco Bay area pursuant to the procedures established in Article 3.5 (commencing with Section
50075) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 1 of Title 5, Section 64521, and any other applicable procedures
provided by law.

(b)“Parcel tax” means a special tax imposed upon a parcel of real property at a rate that is determined
without regard to that property’s value and that applies uniformly to all taxpayers or all real property within
the jurisdiction of the local government. “Parcel tax” does not include a tax imposed on a particular class of
property or taxpayers.

(c)The authority shall provide notice of any parcel tax imposed pursuant to this section in the manner
specified in Section 54930.

Page 85Page 85



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

64611.(a)(1)The authority may impose, subject to approval by the executive board before placement on the
ballot, by resolution, a special tax, measured by gross receipts, for the privilege of engaging in any kind of
lawful business transacted in the San Francisco Bay area pursuant to the procedures established in Article 3.5
(commencing with Section 50075) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 1 of Title 5, Section 64521, and any other
applicable procedures provided by law.

(2)The resolution imposing a special tax pursuant to this subdivision may provide for the following:

(A)Variable rates based on the business sector of each person subject to the tax.

(B)Exemptions for small businesses.

(C)Collection of the tax by suit or otherwise.

(b)If the authority levies a special tax pursuant to subdivision (a) upon a business operating both within and
outside the authority’s taxing jurisdiction, the authority shall levy the tax so that the measure of tax fairly
reflects that proportion of the taxed activity actually carried on within the taxing jurisdiction.

(c)A special tax levied pursuant to subdivision (a) shall not apply to any nonprofit organization that is
exempted from taxes by Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 23701) of Part 11 of Division 2 of the Revenue
and Taxation Code or Subchapter F (commencing with Section 501) of Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, or the successor of either, or to any minister, clergyman, Christian Science
practitioner, rabbi, or leader of any religious organization that has been granted an exemption from federal
income tax by the United States Commissioner of Internal Revenue as an organization described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or a successor to that section.

64612.(a)(1)Subject to concurrence of the executive board before the measure is placed on the ballot, the
authority may impose, by resolution, a special tax measured by the number of employees employed by the
taxpayer for the privilege of engaging in any kind of lawful business activity transacted in the San Francisco
Bay area pursuant to the procedures established in Article 3.5 (commencing with Section 50075) of Chapter 1
of Part 1 of Division 1 of Title 5, Section 64521, and any other applicable procedures provided by law.

(2)The resolution imposing a special tax pursuant to this subdivision may provide for collection of the tax by
suit or otherwise.

(b)If the authority levies a special tax pursuant to subdivision (a) upon a business operating both within and
outside the authority’s taxing jurisdiction, the authority shall levy the tax so that the measure of tax fairly
reflects that proportion of the taxed activity actually carried on within the taxing jurisdiction.

(c)A special tax levied pursuant to subdivision (a) shall not apply to any nonprofit organization that is
exempted from taxes by Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 23701) of Part 11 of Division 2 of the Revenue
and Taxation Code or Subchapter F (commencing with Section 501) of Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, or the successor of either, or to any minister, clergyman, Christian Science
practitioner, rabbi, or leader of any religious organization that has been granted an exemption from federal
income tax by the United States Commissioner of Internal Revenue as an organization described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or a successor to that section.

64613.An action to determine the validity of any special taxes levied pursuant to this article may be brought
pursuant to Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 860) of Title 10 of Part 2 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

2.Commercial Linkage Fee

64620.As used in this article:

(a)“Commercial development project” means any project involving the issuance of a permit by an underlying
land use jurisdiction for construction or reconstruction that is undertaken within the San Francisco Bay area
for the development of land for commercial use, but does not include any project involving solely a permit to
operate.

(b)“Commercial linkage fee” means a monetary exaction, other than a tax or special assessment, established
for a broad class of projects by legislation of general applicability that is charged to an applicant in connection

Page 86Page 86



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

with the approval of a commercial development project by an underlying land use jurisdiction for the purpose
of addressing the need for additional housing development necessitated by that commercial development
project, as determined pursuant to the nexus study undertaken pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 64621.

(c)“Underlying land use jurisdiction” means any of the following entities, as applicable, that has jurisdiction
over the approval of a commercial development project:

(1)The following counties:

(A)The County of Alameda.

(B)The County of Contra Costa.

(C)The County of Marin.

(D)The County of Napa.

(E)The County of San Mateo.

(F)The County of Santa Clara.

(G)The County of Solano.

(H)The County of Sonoma.

(2)A city that is located within the territorial boundaries of any of the counties specified in paragraph (1).

(3)The City and County of San Francisco.

64621.(a)(1)The executive board may establish, increase, or impose a commercial linkage fee within the San
Francisco Bay area by enactment of a resolution, in accordance with the requirements of this article, that is in
addition to any fee, as defined in Section 66000, that is levied by an underlying land use jurisdiction. The
board shall ratify, by resolution, any commercial linkage fee or modification to a commercial linkage fee
adopted by the executive board.

(2)(A)A commercial linkage fee may be established, increased, or imposed pursuant to this article by
resolution of the executive board that provides for either of the following:

(i)A variable rate fee assessed on a commercial development project within the San Francisco Bay area that
establishes a higher fee in jurisdictions with a greater imbalance between job creation and new housing
development and a lower fee or no fee in jurisdictions with lesser imbalance between job creation and new
housing development.

(ii)A flat fee assessed on all commercial development projects within the San Francisco Bay area.

(B)A resolution establishing or revising the fee shall provide that the amount of the fee required to be paid
shall be reduced by the amount that the applicant is required to pay, if any, for a commercial linkage fee
imposed by the relevant underlying land use jurisdiction.

(b)Before establishing, increasing, or imposing a commercial linkage fee, the executive board shall prepare a
regional jobs and housing nexus study in order to support the necessity and amount of the fee.

(c)In any action to establish, increase, or impose a commercial linkage fee, the executive board shall do all of
the following:

(1)Identify the purpose of the commercial linkage fee.

(2)Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the fee’s use and the type of commercial
development project on which the fee is imposed, based on the regional nexus study prepared pursuant to
subdivision (b).

(3)Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the need for housing and the type of commercial
development project on which the fee is imposed, based on the regional nexus study prepared pursuant to

Page 87Page 87



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

subdivision (b).

(4)Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the cost of the
housing necessitated by the commercial development project that is attributable to the development on which
the fee is imposed, based on the regional nexus study prepared pursuant to subdivision (b).

64622.(a)A commercial linkage fee established, increased, or imposed pursuant to this article shall not exceed
the reasonable cost of providing the housing necessitated by the commercial development project for which
the commercial linkage fee is imposed, as determined in the regional nexus study pursuant to subdivision (b)
of Section 64621.

(b)It is the intent of the Legislature in adding this section to codify existing constitutional and decisional law
with respect to the imposition of development fees and monetary exactions on developments by local
agencies. This section is declaratory of existing law and shall not be construed or interpreted as creating new
law or as modifying or changing existing law.

64623.(a)Before adopting a resolution establishing or imposing a new commercial linkage fee or approving an
increase in an existing commercial linkage fee pursuant to this article, the executive board shall hold a public
hearing, at which oral or written presentations can be made, as part of a regularly scheduled meeting. Notice
of the time and place of the meeting, including a general explanation of the matter to be considered, shall be
published in accordance with Section 6062a.

(b)Any costs incurred by the executive board in conducting the hearing required pursuant to subdivision (a)
may be recovered as part of the commercial linkage fee that is the subject of the hearing.

64624.(a)Except as otherwise provided in subdivision (c), if the executive board adopts a resolution or other
legislative enactment establishing or imposing a new commercial linkage fee or approving an increase in an
existing commercial linkage fee, the board shall adopt a resolution concurring with the establishment,
imposition, or increase of the fee and each underlying land use jurisdiction shall, as a condition of approving a
commercial development project for which it receives an application for a conditional use permit or other
discretionary or ministerial approval, require an applicant to pay the amount of commercial linkage fee
established, imposed, or increased by the executive board and the authority pursuant to this article. The
underlying land use jurisdiction shall provide notice to the applicant that does all of the following:

(1)Notifies the applicant that the executive board and the authority have established, increased, or imposed a
commercial linkage fee pursuant to this article.

(2)States the amount of commercial linkage fee established, increased, or imposed by the executive board
and the authority.

(3)States that the applicant may protest the commercial linkage fee, as provided in Section 64625, and
notifies the applicant that the 90-day period for that protest and the 180-day period for filing an action
specified in subdivision (c) of Section 64625 has begun.

(b)Each underlying land use jurisdiction shall collect and, after deduction of any actual and necessary
administrative costs incurred by the underlying land use jurisdiction, remit the amount of commercial linkage
fee established, increased, or imposed pursuant to this article to the authority. An underlying land use
jurisdiction shall remit the amounts required by this subdivision on or before the last day of the month next
succeeding each calendar quarterly period.

(c)If any amount of commercial linkage fee established, increased, or imposed pursuant to this article is found
to be invalid pursuant to Section 64625, each underlying land use jurisdiction shall immediately cease
collection of the commercial linkage fee.

64625.(a)Any party may protest the imposition of a commercial linkage fee imposed on a commercial
development project by the executive board and the authority pursuant to this article as follows:

(1)The party shall pay the total amount of commercial linkage fee required by the resolution enacted pursuant
to Section 64621, or providing satisfactory evidence of arrangements to pay the commercial linkage fee when
due, in accordance with Section 64624.

Page 88Page 88



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

(2)Serving a written notice on the board and the legislative body of the relevant underlying land use
jurisdiction that contains all of the following information:

(A)A statement that the required payment is tendered or will be tendered when due under protest.

(B)A statement informing the board and legislative body of the underlying land use jurisdiction of the factual
elements of the dispute and the legal theory forming the basis for the protest.

(b)Compliance by any party with subdivision (a) shall not be the basis for an underlying land use jurisdiction
to withhold approval of any map, plan, permit, zone change, license, or other form of permission, or
concurrence, whether discretionary, ministerial, or otherwise, incident to, or necessary for, the commercial
development project. This section does not limit the ability of an underlying land use jurisdiction to ensure
compliance with all applicable provisions of law in determining whether or not to approve or disapprove a
commercial development project.

(c)(1)A protest filed pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be filed at the time of approval or conditional approval of
the commercial development project or within 90 days after the date of the imposition of the commercial
linkage fee to be imposed on a commercial development project.

(2)Any party who files a protest pursuant to subdivision (a) may file an action to attack, review, set aside,
void, or annul the imposition of the commercial linkage fee imposed on a commercial development project
within 60 days after the delivery of the notice required by subdivision (a) of Section 64624. Thereafter,
notwithstanding any other law, all persons shall be barred from any action or proceeding or any defense of
invalidity or unreasonableness of the imposition. Any proceeding brought pursuant to this subdivision shall
take precedence over all matters of the calendar of the court except criminal, probate, eminent domain,
forcible entry, and unlawful detainer proceedings.

(d)(1)If the court grants a judgment to a plaintiff invalidating, as enacted, all or a portion a resolution
establishing, increasing, or imposing a commercial linkage fee, the court shall direct the authority to refund
the unlawful portion of the payment, plus interest at an annual rate equal to the average rate accrued by the
Pooled Money Investment Account during the time elapsed since the payment occurred, or to return the
unlawful portion of the exaction imposed.

(2)If an action is filed within 120 days of the date at which a resolution to establish or modify a commercial
linkage fee to be imposed on a commercial development project takes effect, the portion of the payment or
exaction invalidated shall also be returned to any other person who, under protest pursuant to this section
and under that invalid portion of that same resolution as enacted, tendered the payment or provided for or
satisfied the exaction during the period from 90 days prior to the date of the filing of the action which
invalidates the payment or exaction to the date of the entry of the judgment referenced in paragraph (1).

(e)The imposition of a commercial linkage fee occurs, for the purposes of this section, when it is imposed or
levied on a specific commercial development project.

64626.(a)In any judicial action or proceeding to validate, attack, review, set aside, void, or annul any
resolution providing for the establishment, increase, or imposition of a commercial linkage fee pursuant to this
article in which there is an issue whether the fee is a special tax within the meaning of Section 50076, the
executive board and the authority shall have the burden of producing evidence to establish that the
commercial linkage fee does not exceed the reasonable cost of providing the housing necessitated by the
commercial development project for which the commercial linkage fee is imposed, as determined in the
regional nexus study pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 64621.

(b)A party may only initiate any action or proceeding pursuant to subdivision (a) if both of the following
requirements are met:

(1)The commercial linkage fee was directly imposed on the party as a condition of project approval, as
provided in Section 64624.

(2)At least 30 days before initiating the action or proceeding, the party requests that the executive board
provide a copy of the documents, including, but not limited to, the regional nexus study prepared pursuant to

Page 89Page 89



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

subdivision (b) of Section 64621, that establish that the commercial linkage fee does not exceed the
reasonable cost of providing the housing necessitated by the commercial development project for which the
commercial linkage fee is imposed. In accordance with subdivision (b) of Section 6253, the executive board
may charge a fee for copying the documents requested pursuant to this paragraph.

(c)For purposes of this section, costs shall be determined in accordance with fundamental fairness and
consistency of method as to the allocation of costs, expenses, revenues, and other items included in the
calculation.

64627.(a)Any person may request an audit in order to determine whether any fee or charge levied by the
executive board and the authority exceeds the amount necessary to cover the reasonable cost of providing the
housing necessitated by the commercial development project for which the commercial linkage fee is imposed,
as determined in the regional nexus study pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 64621. If a person makes
that request, the executive board and the authority may retain an independent auditor to conduct an audit to
determine whether the commercial linkage fee is reasonable, but is not required to conduct the audit if an
audit has been performed for the same fee within the previous 12 months.

(b)If an audit pursuant to this section determines that the amount of any commercial linkage fee or charge
does not meet the requirements of this article, the executive board and the authority shall adjust the fee
accordingly.

(c)The authority shall retain an independent auditor to conduct an audit only if the person who requests the
audit deposits with the authority the amount of the executive board’s and the authority’s reasonable estimate
of the cost of the independent audit. At the conclusion of the audit, the authority shall reimburse unused
sums, if any, or the requesting person shall pay the authority the excess of the actual cost of the audit over
the sum which was deposited.

(d)Any audit conducted by an independent auditor pursuant to this section shall conform to generally accepted
auditing standards.

(e)This section shall not be construed as granting any additional authority to any local agency to levy any fee
or charge which is not otherwise authorized by another provision of law, nor shall its provisions be construed
as granting authority to any local agency to levy a new fee or charge when other provisions of law specifically
prohibit the levy of a fee or charge.

64628.Any action by the executive board and the authority or interested person under this article shall be
brought pursuant to Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 860) of Title 10 of Part 2 of the Code of Civil
Procedure.

3.Bonds

64630.The board may, by majority vote, initiate proceedings to issue bonds pursuant to this chapter by
adopting a resolution stating its intent to issue the bonds.

64631.The resolution adopted pursuant to Section 64630 shall contain all of the following information:

(a)A description of the facilities or developments to be financed with the proceeds of the proposed bond issue.

(b)The estimated cost of the facilities or developments, the estimated cost of preparing and issuing the bonds,
and the principal amount of the proposed bond issuance.

(c)The maximum interest rate and discount on the proposed bond issuance.

(d)The date of the election on the proposed bond issuance and the manner of holding the election.

(e)A determination of the amount of tax revenue available or estimated to be available, for the payment of
the principal of, and interest on, the bonds.

(f)A finding that the amount necessary to pay the principal of, and interest on, the proposed bond issuance
will be less than, or equal to, the amount determined pursuant to subdivision (e).

64632.(a)Except as otherwise provided in subdivision (b), the clerk of the board shall publish the resolution

Page 90Page 90



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

adopted pursuant to Section 64630 once a day for at least seven successive days in a newspaper published in
each county in the San Francisco Bay area at least six days a week, or at least once a week for two successive
weeks in a newspaper published in a county less than six days a week.

(b)If there are no newspapers meeting the criteria specified in subdivision (a), the resolution shall be posted
in three public places within each county in the San Francisco Bay area for two succeeding weeks.

64633.(a)The authority shall submit the proposal to issue bonds to the voters who reside within the San
Francisco Bay area in accordance with Section 64521 and this section.

(b)Ballots for the special election authorized by subdivision (a) may be distributed to qualified electors by mail
with return postage prepaid or by personal service by the election official. The official conducting the election
may certify the proper mailing of ballots by an affidavit, which shall be exclusive proof of mailing in the
absence of fraud. The voted ballots shall be returned to the election officer conducting the election not later
than the hour specified in the resolution calling the election. However, if all the qualified voters have voted,
the election shall be closed.

64634.(a)Bonds may be issued if two-thirds of the voters voting on the proposition vote in favor of issuing the
bonds.

(b)If the voters approve the issuance of the bonds as provided by subdivision (a), the board shall proceed
with the issuance of the bonds by adopting a resolution that shall provide for all of the following:

(1)The issuance of the bonds in one or more series.

(2)The principal amount of the bonds that shall be consistent with the amount specified in subdivision (b) of
Section 64631.

(3)The date the bonds will bear.

(4)The date of maturity of the bonds.

(5)The denomination of the bonds.

(6)The form of the bonds.

(7)The manner of execution of the bonds.

(8)The medium of payment in which the bonds are payable.

(9)The place or manner of payment and any requirements for registration of the bonds.

(10)The terms of call or redemption, with or without premium.

(c)If any proposition submitted to the voters pursuant to this part is defeated by the voters, the authority
shall not submit, or cause to be submitted, a similar proposition to the voters for at least one year after the
first election.

(d)Every two years after the issuance of bonds pursuant to this section, the authority shall contract for an
independent financial and performance audit. The audit shall be conducted according to guidelines established
by the Controller. A copy of the completed audit shall be provided to the Controller, the Director of Finance,
and to the Joint Legislative Budget Committee.

64635.The board may, by majority vote, provide for refunding of bonds issued pursuant to Section 64634.
However, refunding bonds shall not be issued if the total net interest cost to maturity on the refunding bonds
plus the principal amount of the refunding bonds exceeds the total net interest cost to maturity on the bonds
to be refunded.

64636.(a)The authority or any person executing the bonds issued pursuant to Section 64634 shall not be
personally liable on the bonds by reason of their issuance. The bonds and other obligations of the authority
issued pursuant to Section 64634 are not a debt of any city or county, the Association of Bay Area
Governments, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission or any of its affiliated entities, or of the state or of

Page 91Page 91



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

any of its political subdivisions, other than the authority, and neither a city or county nor the state or any of
its political subdivisions, other than the authority, shall be liable on the bonds, and the bonds or obligations
shall be payable exclusively from funds or properties of the authority. Bonds issued pursuant to Section 64634
shall contain a statement to this effect on their face.

(b)If any member of the boards whose signature appears on bonds issued pursuant to Section 64634 ceases
to be a member of the board before delivery of the bonds, that member’s signature shall be as effective as if
the member had remained in office.

64637.(a)The bonds issued pursuant to Section 64634 may be sold at discount not to exceed 5 percent of par
at public sale. At least five days before the sale, notice shall be published, pursuant to Section 6061, in a
newspaper of general circulation and in a financial newspaper published in the City and County of San
Francisco and in the City of Los Angeles. The bonds may be sold at not less than par to the federal
government at private sale without any public advertisement.

(b)Bonds issued pursuant to Section 64634 are fully negotiable.

64638.An action to determine the validity of bonds issued pursuant to Section 64634 may be brought
pursuant to Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 860) of Title 10 of Part 2 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

3.Expenditures

64650.(a)Revenue generated pursuant to this part shall be used for the construction of new affordable
housing, affordable housing preservation, tenant protection programs, and general funds made available to
local jurisdictions as an incentive to achieve or reward for achieving affordable housing benchmarks to be
established by the authority and executive board as follows:

(1)Subject to funding eligibility and adjustment pursuant to paragraph (2), the authority shall distribute the
revenues derived from any special tax imposed pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with Section 64610) of
Chapter 2 and the proceeds of bonds issued pursuant to Article 2 (commencing with Section 64620) of
Chapter 2 for the region in a manner that achieves the following minimum shares over a five-year period
commencing after revenue is approved by voters as follows:

(A)A minimum of 50 percent for production of housing units affordable to lower income households. Funding
for production programs may be used for either of the following:

(i)To finance the development and construction of affordable housing for at least 55 years.

(ii)To acquire land for the purpose of building affordable housing.

(B)A minimum of 5 percent for tenant protection programs. The authority, with concurrence of the executive
board, shall prioritize nonbond proceeds revenue sources for tenant protection programs to meet the
minimum requirement of this subparagraph. Funding for tenant protection programs may be used for any of
the following:

(i)Legal aid, including representation in eviction proceedings, preeviction legal services, and legal education
and awareness for communities.

(ii)Providing emergency rental assistance for lower income households. Rental assistance provided pursuant to
this clause shall not exceed 48 months for each assisted household, and rent payments shall not exceed two
times the current fair market rent for the local area, as determined by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development pursuant to Part 888 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

(iii)Providing relocation assistance for lower income households.

(iv)Collection and tracking of information related to displacement risk and evictions in the region.

(C)A minimum of 15 percent for preservation of housing affordable to low- or moderate-income households.
Funding for preservation programs may be used to acquire, rehabilitate, and preserve existing affordable
housing units, in order to prevent the loss of affordable housing.

(D)A minimum of 5 percent and a maximum of 10 percent for general funds awarded to a local government

Page 92Page 92



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

that achieves affordable housing benchmarks established by the authority and executive board. Subject to any
limitations on the funding source, including limitations on the use of bond proceeds, eligible expenditures
pursuant to this subparagraph include, but are not limited to the following:

(i)Staffing costs to help accelerate the production of housing in a jurisdiction.

(ii)Infrastructure needs associated with increased housing production, including, but not limited to,
transportation, schools, and parks.

(iii)Homeless shelters, infrastructure to support those shelters, and supportive services and related programs
that serve the homeless.

(2)Subject to consultation with the advisory committee and a 55 percent approval of the executive board, the
authority may, by a 55 percent vote, change the distribution requirements in subparagraph (A), (B), (C), or
(D) of paragraph (1) if the executive board and the authority adopt a finding pursuant to this paragraph that
the region’s needs differ from those requirements. The finding shall be placed on a meeting agenda of the
executive board and the authority for discussion at least 30 days before either the executive board or the
authority adopt the finding.

(3)The authority shall distribute the revenues derived from a commercial linkage fee established, increased, or
imposed pursuant to Article 2 (commencing with Section 64620) of Chapter 2 to each city or county in a
manner that is consistent with the nexus fee adopted by the executive board. A city or county that receives
revenues pursuant to this paragraph shall use that revenue solely for the production of housing units
necessitated by a commercial development project on which the fee was imposed, as determined by the
executive board pursuant to Section 64621.

(b)Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (3) of subdivision (a), the authority may allocate funds directly
to a city, a county, a public entity, or a private project sponsor.

(c)(1)Subject to paragraph (3) of subdivision (a), the authority shall distribute funds received through the
funding measures authorized in Sections 64610 and 64611 as follows:

(A)At least 75 percent of the revenue received shall be allocated to the county of origin for expenditure in that
county. Each county board of supervisors shall determine the appropriate entity within their county to
administer the funds. Counties may use up to 3 percent of these funds for administrative purposes to assist
with the delivery of the expenditure plan in their county.

(B)Up to 25 percent of the revenue received shall be collected by the authority for expenditures consistent
with the purposes set forth in subdivision (a) and shall be eligible to be spent in any county in which the
measure is in effect. These funds can also be leveraged and grown for reinvestment in affordable housing.

(2)Subject to paragraph (3) of subdivision (a), the authority shall distribute funds received through the
funding measure authorized in Section 64512 as follows:

(A)At least 50 percent of the revenue received shall be allocated to the county of origin. Each county board of
supervisors shall determine the appropriate entity within their county to administer the funds allocated to their
county. Counties may use up to 3 percent of these funds for administrative purposes to assist with the
delivery of the expenditure plan in their county.

(B)Up to 50 percent of the revenue received shall be collected by the authority for expenditures consistent
with the purposes set forth in subdivision (a) and shall be eligible to be spent in any county in which the
measure is in effect.

(3)For funds distributed pursuant to subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1) and subparagraph (A) of paragraph
(2), counties shall provide a direct allocation to a city in their county if it is one of the three largest cities in
the nine-county region, as determined on the basis of the most recent population estimate by the Department
of Finance. The allocation shall be based on the city’s share of the county’s regional housing need allocation
for very low, low-, and moderate-income households.

(4)The executive board and the authority shall, in consultation with the advisory committee, adopt a regional

Page 93Page 93



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

expenditure plan for the use of any available funds pursuant to subparagraph (B) of paragraph (1) and
subparagraph (B) of paragraph (2) by July 1 of each year. The expenditure plan shall set forth the share and
estimated funding amount to be spent on each of the categories as established in subdivision (a), indicate the
household income levels to be served within each category of expenditures, and estimate the number of
affordable housing units to be built or preserved.

(5)Each county shall submit an expenditure plan to the authority as follows:

(A)The expenditure plan shall be submitted by July 1 of each year.

(B)To be deemed complete, the expenditure plan shall specify the proposed allocation of funds for the next 12
months, as follows:

(i)The proposed share of revenues to be allocated to the construction of new affordable housing, affordable
housing preservation, and tenant protection programs. The plan shall include a minimum allocation of 50
percent towards construction of new affordable housing, 15 percent towards affordable housing preservation,
and 5 percent towards tenant protection programs, unless the county adopts a finding and the executive
board and the authority concur that those minimum targets are inconsistent with subdivision (a) or are
otherwise not feasible or are otherwise not the best use of funds to achieve the county’s regional housing
need allocation.

(ii)The plan shall include a description of any specific project or program proposed to receive funding,
including the location, amount of funding, and anticipated outcomes.

(iii)Commencing with the second year, each county shall include in its expenditure plan a report on its
allocations and expenditures to date of projects funded and the extent to which the minimum targets in
subdivision (a) were achieved.

(6)If the authority determines, by a vote of its board, that a county has not submitted a complete expenditure
plan pursuant to the requirements of subparagraph (B) of paragraph (2), the authority may, by a vote of its
board, withhold allocation of revenues to a county until the county submits a complete expenditure plan.

(7)The authority shall post each completed expenditure plan on its internet website.

(8)A county may request the authority to administer its share of the funds pursuant to paragraphs (1) and
(2). If the authority agrees to administer the funds, it shall develop and adopt an annual expenditure plan that
shall be jointly approved by the authority and the executive board, and projects allocated according to that
plan shall be subject to the same timelines described in paragraph (9).

(9)After funds administered by a county pursuant to subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1) and subparagraph (A)
of paragraph (2) are committed to a specific project, they shall remain available for expenditure for three
years. However, the authority may authorize expenditure beyond three years pursuant to guidelines that shall
be reviewed and adopted by the executive board and the authority. The authority and the executive board
may adopt further guidelines designed to expedite the use of these funds.

(10)Funds allocated to a city pursuant to paragraph (3) shall be committed to a specific project within five
years of receipt. Once committed to a specific project, funds shall be remain available for expenditure for an
additional three years. However, the authority may authorize expenditure beyond those additional three
years. The authority may require that any funds allocated to a city pursuant to paragraph (3) that are not
committed to a specific project within three years shall be transferred to the authority for use in any county in
which the measure appeared on the ballot.

(d)The authority shall be entitled to up to 3 percent of funds for program administration.

64651.The authority shall monitor expenditures in coordination with local jurisdictions.

64652.To ensure oversight and accountability, the authority shall provide an annual report on allocations and
expenditures under its control, which shall include a tracking of projects funded and the extent to which the
minimum targets in subdivision (a) of Section 64650 were achieved.

SEC. 2. The Legislature finds and declares that a special statute is necessary and that a general statute

Page 94Page 94



Bill Text - AB-1487 San Francisco Bay area: housing development: financing.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1487[7/12/19, 3:20:45 PM]

cannot be made applicable within the meaning of Section 16 of Article IV of the California Constitution
because of the uniquely severe shortage of available funding and resources for the development and
preservation of affordable housing and the particularly acute nature of the housing crisis within the nine
counties of the San Francisco Bay area region.

SEC. 3. If the Commission on State Mandates determines that this act contains costs mandated by the state,
reimbursement to local agencies and school districts for those costs shall be made pursuant to Part 7
(commencing with Section 17500) of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government Code.

Page 95Page 95



Pat Eklund 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Pat Eklund <peklund@novato.org> 
Monday, July 8, 2019 6:10 PM 
assemblymember.chiu@assembly.ca.gov; David.Chiu@asm.ca.gov 

Erin.Baum@asm.ca.gov; senator.moorlach@senate.ca.gov; senator.Beall@senate.ca.gov; 
Senator.Hertzberg@senate.ca.gov; External_eklund; Senator Mike McGuire; 
Scott.weiner@senate.ca.gov; Jim.Nielsen@senate.ca.gov; 
Melissa.Hurtado@senate.ca.gov; assemblymember.levine@assembly.ca.gov 
Questions on AB 1487 

Assembly member Chiu. After reviewing the latest changes to AB 1487, there are a few questions and 
clarifications needed prior to the hearing scheduled for Wednesday, July 10, 2019. 

1) What are the powers of the Authority, as defined, and what are the powers of the Executive Board? What 
happens when there is a disagreement? How are those differences reconciled? 

2) Why does this bill empower the Metropolitan Transportation Commission to 'serve as the governing board 
of the authority'? Shouldn't the Executive Board who currently has the legal authority for housing, be the 
entity to serve as the governing board of the authority? 

3) Section 64511(a)(l) states: "The executive board shall review and approve projects authorized by this 
chapter prior to review, approval, and allocation by the authority." Why doesn't the Executive Board make 
the decisions since they are the Council of Governments with legal authority over housing issues? 

4) Does this bill empower the new authority to legally buy and sell property including land. If so, which 
sections provide that authority? 

5) If local governments are collecting a commercial linkage fee that is imposed by the Executive Board and/or 
the authority, where is the provision for local governments to be reimbursed for the costs associated with 
collecting and dispersing the commercial linkage fee to the authority? 

6) This bill empowers the authority to place a revenue measure on the ballot to institute a parcel tax. Please 
clarify whether this parcel tax would be on commercial and/or residential properties? 

thanks for providing additional clarification on these issues. 

Pat Eklund, Council Member 
City of Novato 
415-883-9116 

1 
Item 8.b., Attachment Eklund Email

AGENDA ITEM 8c - Attachment C

Page 96Page 96



 
 

Memorandum  6.9 

 

DATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Trinity Nguyen, Director of Project Delivery 

Kanda Raj, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: GoPort-Freight Intelligent Transportation System Project (PN 1442.000): 

Approve Cooperative Agreement with the Port of Oakland for the 

construction phase for a not-to-exceed amount of $2.4 million 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission authorize the Executive Director to execute a 

cooperative agreement with the Port of Oakland for a not-to-exceed amount of $2.4 

million for the construction of a joint Traffic Management Center /Emergency Operation 

Center (TMC/EOC), a component of the GoPort - Freight Intelligent Transportation  

System project. 

Summary 

The Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) is the project sponsor 

and implementing agency for the GoPort Project which includes a program of projects to 

improve truck and rail access to the Port of Oakland (Port), one of the nation’s most vital 

seaports. GoPort consists of three project components, namely: The Freight Intelligent 

Transportation Systems (FITS), 7th Street Grade Separation East (7SGSE), and 7th Street 

Grade Separation West (7SGSW). This program of major capital projects will substantially 

improve the safety, efficiency and reliability of truck and rail access to the Oakland Port 

Complex. It will greatly reduce shipping costs and improve the competitiveness of the Port 

and also generate benefits that extend beyond the Port area, such as reduced regional 

congestion and emissions and substantial job creation. It will also provide critical bicycle 

and pedestrian connectivity to the Bay Trail system. This item focuses exclusively on the 

FITS Program that includes a suite of Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) projects. 

The FITS project will be the first component of the GoPort Program to begin construction. 

The FITS project consists of the deployment of fifteen (15) advanced and innovative 

demonstration technologies that seek to improve the efficiency, safety, operations, 

circulation and reliability of truck and rail access throughout the seaport.  

Page 97Page 97



 

The cost of the FITS project is $30.6 million, with a total estimated construction cost of $24 

million as shown in Table A. Both Alameda CTC and the Port of Oakland have successfully 

competed in competitive grant opportunities and collectively received $24 million in 

external funding to close the construction funding gap. Alameda CTC leveraged $6.6 

million of its local Measure BB funds to secure $9.7 million in federal funding from the 

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) under the Fiscal Year (FY) 2017 Advanced 

Transportation and Congestion Management Technologies Deployment (ATCMTD) 

Program and $12.4 million in state funding from the California Transportation Commission 

(CTC) under the 2018 Trade Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP). Additionally, the Port 

was successfully awarded $1.8 million from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

(DHS) under the FY 2017 Port Security Grant Program (PSGP) for the construction of a joint 

TMC/EOC and Radio Frequency Identification Device (RFID).  

In consideration of funding requirements, schedule, and work type, the delivery strategy 

as shown in Table B was developed for the construction phase of the FITS project. 

In January 2019, the Commission authorized the execution of a cooperative agreement 

(co-op) with the Port for up to $1.0 million as a match to the $1.8 million of PSGP funds 

obtained by the Port for the construction of Package No. 1 -TMC/EOC and Package No. 

2 -RFID.  Port advertised these two contracts in April 2019 and when the bids were opened 

in mid-June 2019, the combined total of the two lowest responsive bidders was $6.1 

million.  The bids have been evaluated and staff believes the bids are an accurate 

reflection of current construction costs, which have more than doubled in recent years 

due to significant increases in materials, labor and overall construction demand.  

Since the bid opening, staff has evaluated several different scenarios and strategies to 

ensure that all the FITS project components can be delivered within the current project 

budget.  All strategies contain the recommendation to make no changes to Package No. 

1.  The current bid for Package No. 1 will expire on October 31, 2019.  The amount required 

for Port to move forward with the award of Package No. 1 is $3.2 million.  The authorized 

PSGP funds for Package No. 1 is $824,000, leaving a shortfall of $2.4 million which staff 

proposes to be funded with TCEP funds. Upon Commission approval, Port will seek approval 

from its Board in October 2019. 

Background 

Over the past decade, significant state, local and private-sector investments have been 

made as part of the redevelopment of the Oakland Army Base (OAB) to modernize and 

expand rail facilities, warehousing, and transloading facilities to support the on-going 

productivity and efficiency of the Port as one of the top ten busiest container ports in the 

nation, handling 99 percent of regional containerized goods in Northern California.  In 

addition, the Port of Oakland is a major export port in the United States, supporting a 

balance of imports and exports. 

As a critical global gateway providing access to the Pacific Rim, the Port has significant 

infrastructure deficiencies that, if not addressed, will limit the economic competitiveness of 

the Port. The Port’s roadway network is greatly strained by arrivals of increasingly large ocean 

Page 98Page 98



 

liners. Significant truck traffic congestion and idling lead to shipping delays, increased 

emissions, and unsafe truck maneuvers. In addition, the Port lacks integrated traffic 

management capabilities to respond to incidents or implement operational strategies. 

Alameda CTC, in cooperation with the Port proposes to construct a package of landside 

transportation improvements within the Port, which are critical to the San Francisco Bay 

regional economy. These three independent, inter-related and synergistic projects to 

improve truck and rail access to the Oakland Port Complex are summarized below and is 

the basis of the GoPort Project. 

 FITS – A suite of demonstration technology projects along West Grand Avenue, 

Maritime Street, 7th Street, Middle Harbor Road, Adeline Street, and Embarcadero 

West that are intended to improve truck traffic flows, increase the efficiency of 

goods movement operations, and enhance the safety and incident response 

capabilities throughout the seaport.  

 7th Street Grade Separation Project – 

o 7SGSE: Replace existing railroad underpass between I - 880 and Maritime 

Street to increase clearance for trucks and improve the current shared 

pedestrian / bicycle pathway. 

o 7SGSW: Realign and grade separate the intersection near 7th Street and 

Maritime Street and construct a rail connection underneath to improve the 

intermodal access and minimize conflicts between rail, vehicles, pedestrians, 

and bicyclists. 

The FITS project is the first of the three GoPort projects to begin construction. 

Implementing the advanced technology aspects of the FITS project will effectively 

manage traffic throughout the seaport area and will be integral to managing traffic 

during construction of the two 7th Street grade separation projects. The FITS project will 

reduce congestion, queuing and truck idling by providing real time information to trucks 

and other vehicles entering the Port and reducing conflicts at the signals and rail 

crossings. Real time data also enables users to find available heavy-duty truck parking at 

designated spots rather than idling and queueing on the streets, search for alternative 

routes to enter/exit the Port and avoid delays due to at-grade crossings or any  

traffic incidents.  

The FITS project was included in the 2002 OAB Redevelopment Environmental Impact 

Report (EIR) and the 2012 OAB EIR Addendum. Both state-level California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) documents were approved by the City of Oakland as the Lead 

Agency and the Port of Oakland as the Responsible Agency. Alameda CTC has worked 

collaboratively with Caltrans and the Port of Oakland to obtain federal-level National 

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) clearance through a Categorical Exclusion (CE) from 

Caltrans in October 2018. Construction funding was authorized by CTC and FHWA in May 

2019 and July 2019 respectively. 

Cost/Funding: 

The current estimate for the FITS project is estimated to be $30.6 million as  

summarized below: 

Page 99Page 99



 

Table A: Funding Summary 

Phase 

Fund Source  

(x $1,000) 

Measure BB ATCMTD TCEP PSGP Total 

Environmental $2,500 - - - $2,500 

Design $4,100 - - - $4,100 

Construction - $9,720 $12,456 $1,824 $24,000 

Total $6,600 $9,720 $12,456 $1,824 $30,600 

 

The cost of the FITS project is $30.6 million, with a total estimated construction cost of $24 

million as shown in Table A. Both Alameda CTC and the Port of Oakland have successfully 

competed in competitive grant opportunities and collectively received $24 million in 

external funding to close the construction funding gap. Alameda CTC leveraged $6.6 

million of its local Measure BB funds to secure $9.7 million in federal funding from the 

FHWA under the Fiscal Year (FY) 2017 Advanced Transportation and Congestion 

Management Technologies Deployment (ATCMTD) Program and $12.4 million in state 

funding from the CTC under the 2018 TCEP. Additionally, the Port was successfully 

awarded $1.8 million from the U.S. DHS under the FY 2017 PSGP.  

Delivery Strategy: 

In cooperation with the Port, the FITS delivery strategy was determined by funding 

requirements, project schedule, and maximizing resource availability. Four construction 

packages will complete the construction and integration of FITS project elements, as 

listed below: 

 

Several agreements are required between Alameda CTC and others to successfully 

implement the FITS project. The project team has been coordinating with various 

agencies on funding agreements, cooperative agreements, permits, and memorandums 

of understanding (MOU). The Project will include signal coordination and center to center 

communication with Caltrans. A MOU between the Port and Caltrans is required for data 

Table B: Construction Contract Package  Implementing 

Agency 

Package No. 1:  Joint Traffic Management Center /Emergency 

Operation Center (TMC/EOC) 

Port of Oakland 

Package No. 2:  Radio Frequency Identification Device (RFID) Port of Oakland 

Package No. 3:  Port of Oakland – Freight Intelligent 

Transportation System (FITS) 

Alameda CTC 

Package No. 4:  System Integration/GoPort Application/Smart 

Parking System 

Alameda CTC 

Page 100Page 100



 

sharing, in order to facilitate traffic and incident management in and near the Port  

of Oakland. 

The Port must implement the first two FITS contract packages, listed above as required by 

the DHS to receive the PSGP funds. Port advertised Packages No. 1 and 2 and when the 

bids were opened in mid-June 2019, the low bids greatly exceeded the engineer’s 

estimate.  The amounts required to award Packages No. 1 and 2 are $2.8 million and $3.3 

million, respectively, resulting in a new total construction cost of $6.1 million.  The total 

construction amount budgeted for the two packages is $2.5 million. Project staff believes 

the bids are a relatively accurate reflection of current construction costs, which have 

more than doubled in recent years due to significant increases in materials, labor and 

overall construction demand. 

Since the bid opening, Alameda CTC and Port staff have evaluated several scenarios 

and strategies to ensure that the FITS project can be delivered within the current project 

budget including: 

 Discussions with Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) on the possibility 

of reprogramming the entire $1.8 million in PSGP-17 funds for constructing the 

TMC/EOC and allowing the RFID component to be delivered by Alameda CTC as 

part of the FITS construction package or a separate construction package.  If 

approved, it is anticipated that the cost to construct the RFID components will be 

reduced.  The amount will be determined by the results of Package No. 3 which 

contains similar elements; however, in a larger scale.   

 Discussions with FHWA on scope reductions that will not impact the overall 

performance of the FITS project. 

Regardless of the outcome of FEMA’s response, staff concludes that the best option for 

Package No. 1 is to proceed with the award to the low bid.  The current bid for the 

TMC/EOC will expire on October 31, 2019.  Therefore, to ensure compliance with the PSGP-17 

grant as currently approved, staff requests that the Commission authorize a not-to-exceed 

maximum amount of $2.4 million for an agreement with the Port for construction package 

no. 1 (TMC/EOC) and authorize its Executive Director to execute any revisions to the 

maintenance and operations cooperative agreement to be consistent with approvals 

authorized by the funding agencies. TCEP funds are included in the Project Financial Plan to 

fund the entire $2.4 million cooperative agreement commitment. 

Fiscal Impact: The actions will authorize the encumbrance of $2.4 million in state funds for 

subsequent expenditure, and budget is included in the Alameda CTC Adopted FY 2019-20 

Capital Program Budget. 

Attachment: 

A. Freight Intelligent Transportation Project Fact Sheet 

Page 101Page 101



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 102Page 102



CAPITAL PROJECT FACT SHEET PN: 1442000

The Alameda County Transportation Commission 

(Alameda CTC), in partnership with the City of Oakland 

and the Port of Oakland (Port), proposes to implement 

the Global Opportunities at the Port of Oakland (GoPort) 

Program, a package of landside transportation 

improvements within and near the Port. The Freight 

Intelligent Transportation System (FITS) project is a suite of 

demonstration information technology projects along 

West Grand Avenue, Maritime Street, 7th Street, Middle 

Harbor Road, Adeline Street, and Embarcadero West, 

that are intended to improve truck traffic flows, increase 

the efficiency of goods movement operations, and 

enhance the safety and incident response capabilities 

throughout the seaport.

The purpose of this project is aimed at traffic 

management and operations of arterial roadways in the 

Port environment and disseminating traveler information 

and data to users and stakeholders.

GoPort Freight Intelligent 
Transportation System Project

PROJECT OVERVIEW

JULY 2019

PROJECT NEED
• Support regional economic development and Port

growth potential.

• Provide common platform to receive critical
information on Port conditions, queue lengths, and
incident alerts.

• Develop an ITS communication network that serves
future needs

• Reduce truck idling that causes negative impacts to
neighboring communities

PROJECT BENEFITS
• Improves safety, efficiency and reliability of truck

and rail access to the Oakland Port Complex

• Provides real-time traveler information to users

• Improves traffic and incident management within
the Port, its terminals and access routes

• Reduces congestion, truck idling and
related emissions

• Improves Port competitiveness

(For illustrative purposes only.)

6.9A

Page 103Page 103



COST ESTIMATE BY PHASE ($ X 1,000)

PE/Environmental $2,500

Final Design (PS&E) $4,100

Construction $24,000

Total Expenditures $30,600

SCHEDULE BY PHASE

PE/Environmental Fall 2016 Summer 2018

Final Design Fall 2018 Early 2019

Right-of-Way Fall 2018 Early 2019

Construction Fall 2019 Late 2021

Measure BB $6,600

Federal (ATCMTD)1 $9,720

Federal (PSGP)2 $1,824

State (SB 1 TCEP)3 $12,456

Total Revenues $30,600

FUNDING SOURCES ($ X 1,000)

Note: Information on this fact sheet is subject to periodic updates.

Alameda County Transportation Commission    1111 Broadway, Suite 800    Oakland, CA  94607    510.208.7400    www.AlamedaCTC.org

City of Oakland, Port of Oakland, Federal Highway Administration, 
California Transportation Commission, California Department of 
Transportation, U.S. Department of Homeland Security and the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission

GOPORT FREIGHT INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM

Begin

PARTNERS AND STAKEHOLDERS

STATUS
Implementing Agency: Alameda CTC

Current Phase: Construction

• California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) clearance through 
the 2002 Oakland Army Base Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
and the 2012 addendum.

• National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) clearance through a 
Categorical Exclusion (CE) was completed on August 31, 2018.

• State and federal construction funds fully authorized in June 2019.

Freight ITS operations overview.

End

1 Advanced Transportation and Congestion Management 
Technologies Deployment (ATCMTD).
2 Port Security Grant Program (PSGP).
3 Senate Bill 1 Trade Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP).

GoPort mobile application.

Congestion, bottlenecks, and trucks queuing at the Port of Oakland.

Page 104Page 104



Page 105Page 105



Howard Matis  

Commission/Committee Experience: What is your previous experience on a 
public agency commissioner committee? Please also note if you are currently a 
member of any commissions or committees. 
 

City of Oakland Parks and Recreation Board, Commissioner 2006-2012. 

I am not on any current commissions or committees.  That is why I want to be one. 
 
II. Statement of Qualifications: Provide a brief statement indicating why you are 
interested in serving on BPAC and why you are qualified for this appointment. 
 
I have been working since the 1990’s on the Pedestrian and Bicycle improvements in my area 
with Caltrans and the City of Oakland.  I have been the prime driver on these projects.  I am a 
board member of the Fourth Bore Coalition.  My accomplishments include: 

• Full sidewalk access from the Claremont Hotel to my neighborhood. 
• A pedestrian crossing at Uplands on Tunnel Road. 
• Bike lanes on Broadway by Highway 24 and a safe way to enter Broadway by Keith 

Avenue. 
• Bike lanes going uphill from the Claremont Hotel to Hiller Drive 
• Hiking path from North Oakland Sports Complex to Skyline Blvd (I am a small player on 

this project) 
• Ramps on the sidewalks on Hiller Drive. 

Projects that will be funded in a month or two pending the vote of the Oakland City Council: 
• A safe way for cyclists and pedestrians to cross the street at Hiller Drive light on Tunnel 

Road by Hiller Light 
• Cycle lanes from Hiller Drive to Caldecott Condominiums. 

Projects that are proposed I am working on to get funded. 
• Sidewalks from Hiller Drive light to Parkwood Condominiums 
• A pedestrian and bicycle bridge from the Hiller Light to Lake Temescal 
• Pedestrian path on upper Broadway. 
• Bike lane going downhill on Tunnel Road by Highway 13 

 
I want to serve on the Committee/Commission so that I can advance those projects that need a 
little push to be.  Please note the first bullet point above is fully designed and just needs some 
funding. 
 
It is my goal to make the North Oakland and Berkley Hills pedestrian and cycle friendly.  
 
III.  Relevant Work or Volunteer Experience: Please list your current employer or 
relevant volunteer experience including organization, address, position and 
dates. 
 

Page 106Page 106



Howard Matis  

I am currently retired from Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory.  At this time, I am an 
“Affiliated Scientist”. 
 
North Hills Phoenix Association, One of the founders in 1991, Treasurer 1993-2008, Webmaster 
1998-2008.  Introduced the organization digital tools. Created community email lists and 
developed the first website. 

City of Oakland Parks and Recreation Board, Commissioner 2006-2012. 

Fourth Bore Coalition, Treasurer 2007-present.  Obtained millions of dollars for pedestrian and 
bike paths for our neighborhood. 

California Clean Money, 2016-present.  Active member fighting to reduce the influence of money 
on politics. Data entry lead. 

Through the Looking Glass, 2017-present.  Member of the board of directors. 

OpenOakland, 2017-present.  Created app to show the Oakland City Council meetings to the 
public - http://oaklandcouncil.net  
 

Community 
Awards 

1991 Montclair Soccer Club Presidential Award 

1994 Outstanding Award in Support of Youth Soccer 

2008 University of Chicago Sydney A. Rosen Award 

2008 Hero Award from the City of Oakland 

2013 Massapequa High School Hall of Fame 

 
 
IV. Specific Bicycle and/or Pedestrian Experience: List any specific interest, involvement or 
expertise you have related to bicycle and/or pedestrian issues. 
 
I described above some of the pedestrian and bike projects that I advocated and got pushed 
through in North Oakland.  There are some others that are stalled and need to be pushed.  I 
have had meetings with Caltrans and the City of Oakland. 
 
I am moderate cyclist.  I bike maybe 1,000 miles a year in the Berkeley and Oakland Hills.  I want 
to join the Commission/Committee so I can advance these popular projects and others in our 
area. 

Page 107Page 107



Page 1 of 3 

Howard S. Matis 

Work: 
 

 
 

 
Home: 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Professional 
Experience 

 
2017 – Present – Consultant to University of California, Berkeley – Berkeley, 
CA 

• Nuclear Physics research using a High Flux neutron generator. 
2012 – Present – Consultant to Lawrence Berkeley National Lab – Berkeley, CA 

• Continuing education outreach. 
• Leading the Contemporary Physics Education Project to e-commerce on 

Amazon.com.  
• CERN luminosity detector at Large Hadron Collider. 
• Consultant to SBIR/STTR proposals. 
• Panelist for NSF GRFP graduate fellowships and DOD NDSEG 

fellowships. 
• Detector development for a Dark Matter experiment.  

2014 – 2017              MTX/MYNOSYS – Berkeley, CA  
Consultant    

• Designed software to test medical devices for ophthalmic surgery. 

1983 – 2012                 Lawrence Berkeley National Lab – Berkeley, CA 
Staff Physicist 

• Bevalac Scientific Liaison Officer (1983-1988).  Reestablished the Bevalac Users 
Organization.  Scientific Liaison for Bevalac experiments. 

• Integration Physicist for the STAR experiment at RHIC (1993-1999).  
Responsible for designing and coordinating the infrastructure of a $40 million 
dollar detector.  Member of STAR Operational Committee (1993-2000). 

• Past research included deep-inelastic muon scattering at Fermilab, searches for 
rare muon decays at LAMPF, studies of dileptons from the Bevalac (DLS 
experiment), investigation of the nuclear equation of state (EOS experiment), 
and various searches for free-fractional charge at CERN, Fermilab, and BNL. 

• Member of LBNL Amanda team that deployed a digital photon detector for 
neutrinos at the South Pole.  IceCube, a next generation high-energy neutrino 
detector at the South Pole. 

• Studying Heavy-Ion Collisions using the STAR Detector – Brookhaven National 
Laboratory (BNL), Upton, NY.  Building a high-resolution vertex detector in 
STAR using CMOS technology.   Subsystem manager for Silicon Strip detector 
that is part of the new STAR vertex detector. 

• Built, tested, and simulated the luminosity detector that is being used at the 
Large Hadron Collider (LHC) at CERN – Geneva, Switzerland. 

1978 – 1983              Los Alamos National Laboratory  – Los Alamos, NM 
Postdoctoral Fellow/Staff Member    

• Designed experiment for searches for rare decays of muons.  Acted as Co-

Page 108Page 108



CV of Howard S. Matis 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Spokesman. 

1976 – 1978              University of Chicago – Chicago, IL 
Postdoctoral Fellow    

• Co-author of pioneering paper on quark structure of the proton. 
• Searched for rare decays of muons. 

 

Selected Additional 
Professional Activities 

Awarded the 2017 “Excellence in Physics Education” from the American 
Physical Society – selected as president of Contemporary Physics Education 
Project. 

American Physical Society (APS) – Fellow. 

American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS) – Fellow. 

American Physical Society – California Section.  Vice Chair (2006-2007), Chair 
Elect (2008), Chair (2009), Past Chair (2010). 

American Physical Society–Division of Nuclear Physics.  Home page committee 
(1998-2001).  Education committee (2000-2007).  DNP Mentor Award 
committee (2007). 

Contemporary Physics Education Project.  President (2012–present), Vice-
President for Nuclear Physics (1997-2012). Board of Directors (1998-present). 
Leader of a group that produced widely used wall chart on nuclear physics for high 
school and college students.  Editor for accompanying text: Nuclear Science—A 
Teacher’s Guide to the Nuclear Science Wall Chart. 

LBNL Nuclear Science Division Education Committee.  Chairman (1993-
1998).  Developed curriculum entitled ABC’s of Nuclear Science.  This includes text 
and demonstrations.  Created widely used web site, abc.lbl.gov for the use of high 
school and college students. 

American Institute of Physics, William F. and Edith R. Meggers Project 
Award, 1996.  This project, cosmic.lbl.gov has lead to an inexpensive cosmic ray 
detector that is used throughout the world. 

North California Chapter of the Society for Technical Communication.  
Distinguished Award - 2000. 

Outstanding Performance Award, Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory 1991, 
1997, 2002. 

U.S. Department of Energy, Office of Science, Outstanding Mentor Award, 
2008. 

Service award from the American Physical Society California Section, 2011. 

Education 
1970 - 1976 The University of Chicago, Chicago, IL 
Physics - Ph.D. (1976) and S.M. (1971) 

1966 - 1970 Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, Troy, NY 
Physics - B.S. (1970) 

Page 109Page 109



CV of Howard S. Matis 

Page 3 of 3 

Selected Papers of 
more than 600  

A Determination of the Quark and Gluon Moments of the Nucleon.   H.L. 
Anderson, H.S. Matis, L.C. Myrianthopoulos, Phys.Rev.Lett.40: 1061, 1978 (Joint 
author). 

Using an active pixel sensor in a vertex detector.   H.S. Matis et al. Nucl. 
Instrum. Meth. A549: 130-136, 2005 (Principal author). 

A proposed STAR microvertex detector using Active Pixel Sensors with some 
relevant studies on APS performance.   S. Kleinfelder et al. 2006 Nucl. Instrum. 
Meth.A565: 132-138, 2006 (Principal author).  

The IceCube Data Acquisition System: Signal Capture, Digitization, and 
Timestamping.  R. Abbassi et al., Nuclear Instruments & Methods A601, 294 
(2009) (Principal author). 

“The BRAN luminosity detectors for the LHC”, H. S. Matis et al., PAC11 
proceedings, MOP202. Nuclear Instruments & Methods A848, 114 (2017). 
(Principal author) 

Community Activities 
 

North Hills Phoenix Association, One of the founders in 1991, Treasurer 1993-
2008, Webmaster 1998-2008.  Introduced the organization digital tools. Created 
community email lists and developed the first website. 

City of Oakland Parks and Recreation Board, Commissioner 2006-2012. 

Fourth Bore Coalition, Treasurer 2007-present.  Obtained millions of dollars for 
pedestrian and bike paths for our neighborhood. 

California Clean Money, 2016-present.  Active member fighting to reduce the 
influence of money on politics. Data entry lead. 

Through the Looking Glass, 2017-present.  Member of the board of directors. 

OpenOakland, 2017-present.  Created app to show the Oakland City Council 
meetings to the public - http://oaklandcouncil.net 

Community Awards 1991 Montclair Soccer Club Presidential Award 

1994 Outstanding Award in Support of Youth Soccer 

2008 University of Chicago Sydney A. Rosen Award 

2008 Hero Award from the City of Oakland 

2013 Massapequa High School Hall of Fame 

 

Page 110Page 110



Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, May 16, 2019, 5:30 p.m. 7.1

1. Call to Order

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) Chair Matt Turner called the meeting

to order at 5:30 p.m.

2. Roll Call

A roll call was conducted and all members were present with the exception of Liz Brisson,

Jeremy Johansen, and Ben Schweng.

Ben Schweng arrived during item 3.0 and Liz Brisson arrived during item 5.1. Liz Brisson left

during item 5.3.

3. Public Comment

Kelly Abreu provided a public comment. He stated that many major barriers to biking and

walking are freeways and there are many gaps in the bicycle network, including the hills

east of Union City and Niles Canyon (SR-84).

4. BPAC Meeting Minutes

4.1. Approve February 21, 2018 BPAC Meeting Minutes

David Fishbaugh made a motion to approve this item. Dave Murtha seconded the 

motion. The motion passed with the following votes: 

Yes: Fishbaugh, Hill, Marleau, Murtha, Schweng, Turner 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

Absent: Brisson, Johansen 

5. Regular Matters

5.1. Transportation Development Act Article 3 Project Review

Chris Marks provided a description of the Transportation Development Act, Article 3 

(TDA 3) funding program, including the BPAC’s requested role as the review body for 

jurisdictions without a local BPAC. Mr. Marks described the allocations of TDA 3 funds 

for Alameda County and the City of Hayward as provided by agency staff.  

Dave Murtha mentioned that for the last few years, the City of Hayward has had 

ongoing problems with intersections for pedestrians. He suggested that the City of 

Hayward generate a report of completed intersection improvements. Carolyn 

Clevenger said that Alameda CTC staff will pass this on to staff at the City  

of Hayward. 

Page 111Page 111



 

Ben Schweng suggested that the City of Hayward would benefit from having a local 

BPAC. Matt Turner stated that the unincorporated Eden area would also benefit 

from having their own BPAC. 

 

The Committee expressed concerns about approving the requested TDA 3 

allocations without staff available to answer questions about the proposed use of 

the funds. Ms. Clevenger suggested that BPAC approve the proposed allocations 

and Alameda CTC could work with the two jurisdictions to provide an update at the 

September 5, 2019 BPAC meeting. She noted that representatives from Hayward 

and Alameda County can be asked to present to the BPAC for future  

TDA 3 allocations. 

 

David Fishbaugh made a motion to approve the requested funding allocations for 

both the City of Hayward and the Alameda County Public Works Agency with the 

provision that both jurisdictions provide detailed information on past improvements 

funded through TDA Article 3 at the planned September meeting, and that agency 

staff be prepared to make a presentation prior to future requests approved by the 

Countywide BPAC. Dave Murtha amended to motion to recommend that the City 

of Hayward to consider establishing a local BPAC. Matt Turner amended the motion 

to also recommend that Alameda County establish a BPAC for the Eden Area. Matt 

Turner seconded the motion with the amendments. The motion passed with the 

following votes: 

 

Yes: Brisson, Fishbaugh, Hill, Marleau, Murtha, Schweng, Turner 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

Absent: Johansen 

 

5.2. East 14th St./Mission Blvd. and Fremont Blvd. Multimodal Corridor Project 

Aleida Andrino-Chavez, Alameda CTC, and Laurence Lewis with Kittleson presented 

this item. Ms. Andrino-Chavez noted that the East 14th St./ Mission Blvd. and Fremont 

Blvd. serves as a north-south corridor that connects the communities in central and 

southern Alameda County to regional transportation networks and employment and 

activity centers in Alameda, Santa Clara, and San Mateo Counties. This corridor 

provides access to economic, educational, social, and recreational opportunities, 

and to regional transportation systems including freeways, BART and Amtrak. Ms. 

Andrino-Chavez requested input from BPAC on the proposed concepts for near-, 

mid-, and long-term improvements. 

 

Ben Schweng questioned the bus ridership data provided for the corridor. Ms. 

Andrino-Chavez noted there are more transit riders in the northern part of the 

corridor than there are on the south.  

 

Liz Brisson asked if cross-sectional drawings are being developed for the proposed 

improvements. Ms. Andrino-Chavez stated that they will be brought at a future 

meeting once more analysis has been done to refine the concepts. 

 

Page 112Page 112



 

Ben Schweng expressed concerns about the proposed mobility hubs, especially 

at the BART stations along the corridor. He noted many BART stations are prone to 

crime and may decay quickly. Ms. Andrino-Chavez stated that the project team 

will work out the logistics with the respective jurisdiction(s) to avoid  

community blight.  

 

David Fishbaugh commented that the newer Warm Spring BART Station has a 

better chance of providing a viable mobility hub versus a BART Station that’s 

been around longer. 

 

Dave Murtha commented that he is pleased that bicycle parking is high on the 

list of improvements and that they would be secure lockers and not open bike 

racks. Mr. Lewis said that they received feedback from the stakeholders to 

provide secure lockers rather than racks. 

 

Liz Brisson asked how people for the focus groups were recruited and if the focus 

groups were representative of demographics on the corridor. Ms. Andrino-

Chavez stated that the focus groups consisted of members of the community, 

transit riders, Bike East Bay representatives, the Paratransit Advisory and Planning 

Committee members and members of the Chamber of Commerce. 

 

David Fishbaugh asked how the multimodal corridor planning effort is connected 

with current development and active planning at the local level along the 

corridor. Ms. Andrino-Chavez stated that some of the focus groups included 

affordable housing developers and planning staff involved in local planning. She 

noted that in the next phase there will be open forums as well. 

 

David Fishbaugh commented that the microtransit hub concept will create a 

sense of urbanization and increase the demand for transportation. Mr. Lewis 

stated that the team looked at planned development and priority development 

areas and many of the areas around the BART stations are already in line with 

local development plans. 

 

Feliz Hill asked when the project team will start to identify funding sources for the 

improvements. Laurence Lewis said they are looking at improvement benefits 

now and funding opportunities will be identified once the resources needed have 

been identified. 

 

Public comment was heard by Kelly Abreu regarding bicycle lanes along the 

corridor and the need to connect downtown Fremont and Milpitas in Santa Clara 

County as Milpitas is has significant job-rich areas. He also said that the traffic 

signal at Ohlone college needs retiming.  

 

This item is for information only. 

 

  

Page 113Page 113



 

5.3. Countywide Active Transportation Plan: Major Barrier Concepts 

Aleida Andrino-Chavez and Chris Marks provided an update and requested the 

Committee to provide input on the Countywide Active Transportation Plan (CATP) 

noting this was the last of five opportunities to provide input on the CATP. As part of 

the CAPT development, staff presented typical conceptual designs as examples on 

how to solve major barriers to bicycle travel at seven locations in Alameda County.  

The seven locations are:  An alignment for the on-street connection between the 

Ohlone Greenway and the East Bay Greenway, the Adams Street Bridge between 

Albany and El Cerrito, Hesperian Boulevard at Interstate 880, Hesperian Boulevard at 

the Union Pacific Railroad Tracks, Stevenson Boulevard at Interstate 880, Paseo 

Padre at Riverwalk Drive, and Foothill Boulevard-San Ramon Boulevard at  

Interstate 580. 

 

Ohlone Greenway/East Bay Greenway Connector 

Dave Murtha asked if all the facilities mapped for design concept would be 

implemented. Chris Marks noted the route options were based off the improvements 

already planned by each city. He added that no specific timeline for the design 

concept exists however, so it is difficult to know which projects will be implemented 

or not.  

 

Liz Brisson asked if the planned network is part of Oakland and Berkeley bicycle plans 

and the role Alameda CTC would have implementing the design concept. Carolyn 

Clevenger said that the concepts were developed to further the conversation but 

there is no implementation plan at this point. 

 

Ben Schweng commented that he did not like the first alternative and noted that 

fewer people live along that route and there is not enough traffic. Dave Murtha and 

Liz Brisson commented that routes 2A, 2B, or 2C have more people on both sides of 

the routes and that 2B goes through a number of commercial areas, which would 

be destinations for shorter biking trips.  

 

Adams Street Bridge 

Feliz Hill asked if there is auditory assistance near the Center for the Blind. Ms. 

Andrino-Chavez stated that the design concept does not yet include that level  

of detail. 

 

Dave Murtha asked if there is a grade separation between the Center for the Blind 

and the bicycle path on the bridge. Ms. Andrino-Chavez confirmed the design 

concept does include a grade separation. 

 

Hesperian Blvd at I-880 

Liz Brisson asked if the design concept includes physical separation for the 

proposed bike facilities for the Hesperian Boulevard at I-880 barrier concept from 

the auto lanes. Ms. Andrino-Chavez said the concept does include striping and 

she’s waiting to hear from the cities about any additional proposed protection 

along the planned bike lane. 

 

Page 114Page 114



 

David Murtha commented that Lewelling Blvd. may be a constraint as that portion 

of Lewelling Blvd. is very difficult for cyclists to traverse. He requested to extend the 

portion heading northwest going underneath the freeway. Mr. Marks said that the 

City of San Leandro has a proposed facility at that location to address that issue. 

 

Ben Schweng stated both lanes exiting the freeway on both sides are at an angle 

and stripping the lane should be considered and highlighted the need for better 

visibility of both off-ramps. Mr. Marks suggested staggered lanes in the design 

concept could create better visibility at Hesperian and Lewelling Blvd. 

 

This item is for information only. 

 

6. Organizational Meeting 

6.1. Election of BPAC Officers for FY 2019-20 

Dave Murtha made a motion to retain the current officers for the next year. Ben 

Schweng seconded the nomination. Matt Turner accepted the nomination of Chair 

and Kristi Marleau accepted the nomination of Vice Chair. The motion passed with 

the following votes: 

 

Yes: Fishbaugh, Hill, Marleau, Murtha, Schweng, Turner 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

Absent: Brisson, Johansen 

 

6.2. Approve the FY 2019-20 BPAC Calendar 

David Fishbaugh made a motion to approve this item. Ben Schweng seconded the 

motion. The motion passed with the following votes: 

 

Yes: Fishbaugh, Hill, Marleau, Murtha, Schweng, Turner 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

Absent: Johansen 

 

7. Member Reports 

David Fishbaugh requested an update on the BPAC reappointments and vacancies. Staff 

agreed to provide the members with their appointers contact information. 

Matt Turner stated that he attended the California Trails and Greenway Conference and 

the top two issues discussed were homelessness and dealing with railroad companies. 

7.1. BPAC Roster 

The committee roster is provided in the agenda packet for review purposes. 

8. Meeting Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for September 5, 2019 

at the Alameda CTC offices. 

Page 115Page 115



Alameda County Transportation Commission
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee

Roster and Attendance Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Suffix Last Name First Name City Appointed By Term 
Began

Re-
apptmt.

Term 
Expires

1 Mr. Turner, Chair Matt Castro Valley Alameda County
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 Apr-14 Mar-17 Mar-19

2 Ms. Marleau, Vice Chair Kristi Dublin Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-1 Dec-14 Jan-19 Jan-21

3 Ms. Brisson Liz Oakland Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-5 Dec-16 Dec-18 Dec-20

4 Mr. Fishbaugh David Fremont Alameda County
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 Jan-14 Mar-19 Mar-21

5 Ms. Hill Feliz G. San Leandro Alameda County
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 Mar-17 Jul-19 Jul-21

6 Mr. Johansen Jeremy San Leandro Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-3 Sep-10 Feb-18 Feb-20

7 Mr. Matis Howard Berkeley
Pending Commission Approval
Alameda County
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5

Sep-19 Sep-21

8 Mr. Murtha Dave Hayward Alameda County
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 Sep-15 Jun-19 Jun-21

9 Mr. Schweng Ben Alameda Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-2 Jun-13 Jul-19 Jul-21

10 Vacancy Transit Agency
(Alameda CTC)

11 Vacancy Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-4

Page 116Page 116



 
 

Memorandum 8.1 

 

DATE: September 19, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Carolyn Clevenger, Director of Planning 

Kristen Villanueva, Senior Transportation Planner 

Kate Lefkowitz, Asssociate Transportation Planner 

SUBJECT: Approve the Vision and Goals for the 2020 Countywide  

Transportation Plan 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve the vision and goals for the 2020 

Countywide Transportation Plan (2020 CTP).  

Summary 

As part of development of the 2020 CTP, staff briefed the Planning, Policy and Legislation 

Committee (PPLC) and Commission in January and July on the approach for the 2020 CTP 

and presented draft vision and goal statements in July. Staff presented slightly revised vision 

and goal statements to the Alameda County Technical Advisory Committee (ACTAC) on 

September 5, 2019. At the PPLC meeting on September 9, staff presented further revised 

vision and goal statements that reflected ACTAC’s comments. Committee members 

generally agreed with the changes and provided a few additional comments. The 

Committee moved to approve the vision and goals with their comments included. This 

memo summarizes comments from these meetings and presents revised recommended 

vision and goals for the 2020 CTP for approval. A detailed comment and response table 

summarizing input received at the July meetings is included in Attachment A. Comments 

received at the September meetings are summarized in Table 1 of this memo. 

Background 

Every four years, Alameda CTC prepares and updates the CTP, which is a long-range 

planning and policy document that guides future transportation decisions for all modes and 

users in Alameda County. The existing CTP was adopted in 2016, and is due for an update by 

2020. The CTP also informs and feeds into the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable 

Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS), the region’s long-range transportation plan called “Plan 

Bay Area.” The 2020 CTP will inform the current RTP/SCS update for Plan Bay Area 2050  

(PBA 2050). 

Page 117Page 117



Starting with the 2012 CTP, the CTPs have become increasingly multimodal and integrated 

with land use planning. While the 2020 CTP has a 2050 horizon year to be consistent with the 

PBA 2050 and will continue to be long-term in nature, it will also emphasize a 10-year near-

term horizon to articulate a set of projects, programs, and policies to focus on over a 10-year 

period. In this way, the CTP will be a tool to inform near-term activities and advocacy while 

also considering the county’s long-term transportation needs.  

At the January and July PPLC and Commission meetings, staff presented the proposed 

approach for the 2020 CTP. The 2020 CTP will have a 2050 horizon, be consistent with the 

regional transportation plan, Plan Bay Area 2050, and articulate a set of priority initiatives to 

address in a 10-year horizon. This will be done through the following components: 1) Vision 

and Goals, 2) Needs Assessment and Strategy Papers, 3) Project Submittals, 4) Gaps Analysis 

and Project Screening, and 5) Ongoing Engagement with Stakeholders, including close 

engagement with partner agencies and the Commission throughout Plan development as 

well as targeted public engagement. 

At the July meetings, Commissioners directed staff to incorporate specific issue areas 

relevant to their jurisdictions in the development of the 2020 CTP as well as provided 

suggestions for specific edits for the vision and goal statements. Attachment A includes a 

comment and response table from the July meetings. Discussion of revisions to the vision and 

goal statements is included in the next section.  

Revised Vision and Goal Statements 

Since the 2012 CTP, each CTP has a vision statement and set of goals that guide plan 

development and inform recommendations. The vision and goals for the previous two CTPs 

were developed through extensive agency and community engagement. As discussed at 

the July meetings, staff proposes to largely re-affirm the vision statement from the 2012 and 

2016 CTPs but to re-package the goals from the 2016 CTP into a streamlined list of four goals. 

A shorter list of goals has several benefits, including removing redundancies, integrating co-

benefits of goals and supporting more effective project prioritization. 

Overall, there was a generally positive reception to the proposed vision and goal statements 

as presented at the July meetings. Staff received a few suggestions to modify word choice 

from Commissioners in July and presented slightly revised vision and goal statements at the 

September meeting of ACTAC. ACTAC members provided several recommendations for 

edits and general comments. On September 9, members of PPLC provided additional 

comments.  

Table 1 summarizes comments received on the draft vision and goal statements in July and 

September. Staff incorporated these comments into the vision and goal statements to the 

extent reasonable. Tables 2 and 3 include the revised vision and goal statements that are 

recommended to the Commisison for approval. 

 

 

 

Page 118Page 118



Table 1. Summary of Comments Received on 2020 CTP Vision and Goals 

Month Meeting Comments 

July PPLC  Information item; no specific edits to vision and goals 

discussed at this meeting. Comments at the meeting focused 

on the overall CTP approach; see Attachment A for a 

summary of comments and responses. 

Commission  The vision statement should be more specific.  The word 

“people” and the outcomes of what the agency are trying to 

do are not mentioned in the vision statement. The words 

“premier transportation system” are unclear.  

 Goal #2: include “reducing reliance on single-occupant 

vehicles.”  

 Goal #3: Reframe the goal to be more proactive in terms of 

cities and people shaping technology.   

September ACTAC  The vision statement should include the words “safe” and 

“employees.”  

 Goal #1: Clarification on word “equitable.”  

 Goal #2: Add in “multimodal”, move single-occupant 

vehicles sooner in the statement for clarity, consider adding in 

“shared mobility.” 

 Goal #3: “Upgrade” only refers to existing infrastructure; 

Reword statement so it includes both new and upgrades to 

existing infrastructure. 

 Suggestion to add more emphasis on affordability of housing 

and connecting people to housing and density. 

PPLC  The goals should address interregional traffic/travel and its 

impact on Alameda County residents. 

 Goal #4: Underscore the importance of connecting housing, 

jobs and transportation but keep the focus on sustainable 

development within Alameda County. 

 

Table 2. Recommended Revised Vision Statement for the 2020 CTP 

Draft Vision Statement 

(July 2019) 

Alameda County will be served by a premier transportation system that 

supports a vibrant and livable Alameda County through a connected 

and integrated multimodal transportation system promoting 

sustainability, access, transit operations, public health and economic 

opportunities. 

Recommended Revised 

Vision Statement  

(September 2019) 

Alameda County residents, businesses and visitors will be served by a 

premier transportation system that supports a vibrant and livable 

Alameda County through a connected and integrated multimodal 

transportation system promoting sustainability, access, transit operations, 

public health and economic opportunities. 

 

Page 119Page 119



Table 3. Recommended Revised Goal Statements for the 2020 CTP 

Goal 

Draft Goal Statement  

(July 2019) 

Recomended Revised  

Goal Statement  

(September 2019) 

1. Accessible, 

Affordable  

and Equitable 

Improve and expand connected 

multimodal choices that are 

available for people of all abilities, 

affordable to all income levels and 

equitable. 

No change.  

2. Safe, Healthy  

and Sustainable 

Create safe facilities to walk, bike 

and access public transportation to 

promote healthy outcomes and 

support strategies that reduce 

adverse impacts of pollutants and 

greenhouse gas emissions 

generated by the transportation 

system. 

Create safe multimodal facilities to 

walk, bike and access public 

transportation to promote healthy 

outcomes and support strategies 

that reduce reliance on single-

occupant vehicles and minimize 

impacts of pollutants and 

greenhouse gas emissions. 

3. High Quality and  

Modern 

Infrastructure 

Upgrade infrastructure such that the 

system is of a high quality, reflects 

best practices in design, prepares 

communities for current and future 

technological evolution, and is well-

maintained and resilient. 

Deliver a transportation system that 

is of a high quality, well-maintained, 

resilient, and maximizes the benefits 

of new technologies for the public.  

4. Economic Vitality Support the growth of Alameda 

County’s economy and the 

vibrancy of local communities 

through a transportation system that 

is integrated, reliable, efficient, cost-

effective and high-capacity. 

Support the growth of Alameda 

County’s economy and vibrant 

local communities through a 

transportation system that is safe, 

reliable, efficient, cost-effective, 

high-capacity and integrated with 

sustainable transit-oriented 

development facilitating 

multimodal local, regional and 

interregional travel. 

Commission Engagement for Developing the 2020 CTP 

In response to Commission questions regarding Commissioner input on the CTP, the following 

table presents in greater detail a draft timeline of the major activities for the 2020 CTP that will 

specifically be discussed with Commissioners for input throughout the process. Note that 

transportation projects and strategies will be discussed with the Commissioners throughout 

the year at key development milestones in Summer 2019, Winter 2020, and Spring 2020, 

before a draft plan is released in July 2020.  

  

Page 120Page 120



Table 4. Draft 2020 CTP Development Timeline for Commission Involvement 

Timeline Draft Commission Topics related to 2020 CTP 

Winter 2019  CTP informational update on CTP development process and timeline 

(completed January 2019) 

Spring 2019  Commission Retreat to discuss and inform topic areas for 2020 CTP 

(completed May 2019) 

Summer 2019  Briefing and approval of regionally-significant projects for submission to 

MTC for PBA 2050 and for consideration in the 2020 CTP (completed 

June 2019) 

 Briefing on proposed approach to the 2020 CTP (completed July 2019) 

Fall 2019  Approval of vision and goal statement for the 2020 CTP 

 Presentations on policy areas for the 2020 CTP 

Winter 2020  Presentations on findings from Needs Assessment and Strategy Papers 

with discussion on projects and strategies to consider adding to the 

2020 CTP 

Spring 2020  Discussions on projects and programs for 10-year horizon and long-

term priorities with Commissioners in each Planning Area 

Summer 2020  Presentation on the draft 2020 CTP 

Fall 2020  Review and adoption of the final 2020 CTP 

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 

Attachment: 

A. Commission comments on CTP from July 2019 

 

Page 121Page 121



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 122Page 122



Attachment A 
2020 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) Approach and Draft Vision and Goals 

Alameda CTC Comment/Response from July 2019 Meetings of PPLC and Commission 

Comment/Response from July 8, 2019 PPLC Meeting 

# Comment Response 

1 

Regarding outreach, will you be continuing 

to conduct outreach throughout the 

county?  

Outreach will be conducted throughout the 

county, including specific outreach in each 

planning area. In addition, there will be 

intercept surveys and focus group meetings in 

Communities of Concern, which are spread 

across the county as part of the Community 

Based Transportation Plan effort.  

2 

Request that opportunities for content 

suggestions be brought to the Commission 

early in the process especially for project 

ideas. 

The CTP will be presented regularly to the 

Commission at key milestones throughout this 

and next year. In 2020, we will be meeting 

with Commissioners in different areas of the 

county to discuss project priorities particular 

to each area of the county.  

3 

Some project concepts to consider in the 

CTP include finishing express lanes all the 

way to the Bay Bridge and improving freight 

flow. 

These issues will be discussed during the 

Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis for the 

CTP and will be discussed with the 

Commission.  

4 

Issue areas to address in the CTP: data on 

TNC (i.e. Lyft, Uber) trips; cut-through traffic 

and apps that are directing the traffic at a 

county-level; better defining future mobility. 

These issues will be discussed within the Needs 

Assessment and Strategy Papers for the CTP 

especially in the Transit Strategy Paper and in 

the Technology Strategy Paper.  

5 

AC Transit has a high proportion of riders 

that are low-income and people of color. 

How does this relate to the Communities of 

Concern? Are you studying the needs on 

the ground and the needs of the provider? 

Community of Concern is an MTC distinction 

that identifies geographies of disadvantaged 

communities. The needs of these communities 

will be discussed in the Community Based 

Transportation Plans, which will be 

incorporated into the CTP  

7 
Affordability of transit is a big issue for all 

transit providers 
Comment noted. 

8 

In 2012 and 2016 CTPs, there were 

discussions of connected, access, 

affordable, and equitable. Remember 

these goals when considering the Tri Valley. 

It is a major commute corridor that needs a 

transit connection.  

These issues will be discussed during the 

Needs Assessment for the CTP including 

discussion of major transit investments in the 

County and connecting to the mega-region. 

9 

Timing is good for the outreach, especially 

with the Census and outreach in hard-to-

reach communities. Great opportunity to 

leverage that partnership with community 

members.  

Comment noted. 

8.1A

Page 123Page 123



 

 

 Comment/Response from July 8, 2019 PPLC Meeting 

# Comment  Response 

10 

The shorter list of goals for the CTP is fine as 

long as they include all of the elements 

from goals of the 2016 CTP.   

It is the intent of the shorter list of goals for the 

2020 CTP to cover the objectives of the longer 

list of goals from the previous two CTPs.  

11 

Land use plays a big role in how efficient 

the transportation system is. There are a 

large number of commuters traveling in one 

way in the morning and one way in the 

evening. If we balance the commutes, 

we’d have much more efficiency. Seems 

like that issue would be covered under 

economic vitality. 

These issues will be discussed in the Needs 

Assessment and Strategy Papers for the CTP. 

There will be a strategy paper on economic 

development that focuses on strategies to 

increase non-single occupant options for 

commuters as well as a policy discussion on 

transportation and land use.  

12 

The future of funding is going to change 

especially because of the increase in 

electric vehicles and reliance on gas tax. 

Skeptical about future regional funding if it 

will be associated with a sales tax.   

The CTP will include a discussion of potential 

future funding sources and revenues.  

13 

Looks like almost all of the City of Hayward is 

a Community of Concern. We would want 

to identify the projects in these communities 

to leverage funding.  

Comment noted.  

14 

TNC/Uber is surveying elected officials and 

the survey says they want to work with local 

governments to address concerns.   

Comment noted.  

 

 

Comments/Response from July 25, 2019 Commission Meeting 

# Comment  Response 

15 

Recommend bringing the project list and 

other plan elements early to the Commission 

to weigh in on what might be missing from 

the list before plan adoption.  

See response to Comment #2. 

16 

The CTP development schedule does not 

note which items will come to the 

Commission; we want to have opportunities 

to review and add to the project list.  

The September PPLC memo includes a more 

detailed schedule with Commission briefings 

identified. Staff will bring the Needs 

Assessment, Gap Analysis, and draft project 

lists to the Commission multiple times as part 

of CTP development.  

Page 124Page 124



 

 

Comments/Response from July 25, 2019 Commission Meeting 

# Comment  Response 

17 

In the past, MTC tends to focus on big ticket 

items in the RTP but smaller and more 

distributed investments can make a big 

difference so these should be highlighted in 

the CTP as well. 

 The CTP will include and highlight projects of 

a variety of sizes, including large and small 

projects and programs. The CTP includes a 

greater level of detail on projects and 

programs, which are for the most part 

included in the RTP but at a high level.   

18 

Related to the CTP goals, East County is not 

connected and has been paying for a 

transit system. This underscores the 

importance of Valley Link so that we have a 

connected transportation system.  

See response to Comment #8.  

19 

The vision statement should be more 

specific.  The word “people” and the 

outcomes of what the agency are trying to 

do are not mentioned in the vision 

statement. The words “premier 

transportation system” are unclear.  

See agenda item for revised language for the 

vision statement. Staff is proposing to add 

“residents, businesses and visitors” to the vision 

statement but to leave “premier 

transportation system.” The intent of the vision 

statement is to be broad and capture a 

variety of outcomes.  

20 

To the end of Goal statement #2, suggest 

adding “including reducing reliance on 

single occupant vehicles.” This intent should 

be explicitly worded in one of the goal 

statements and it fits within #2. 

See agenda item for revised language for 

Goal #2. 

21 

The word “multimodal” should be more 

specific for Goal #1. Multimodal could be a 

roadway with a sub-standard bike lane 

when the intent is to encourage bike use 

and not driving by themselves.  

Staff recommends leaving the goal statement 

unchanged since multimodal in this context 

could mean a variety of combinations of 

modes such as driving to access a transit 

station. The issue of bike lane design will be 

captured in Goal #2 that will prioritize high 

quality bike facilities.  

22 

The phrase in Goal #3 regarding “preparing 

communities for technological evolution” 

isn’t quite right. We want cities to be able to 

shape the upcoming technological 

evolution. 

See agenda item for revised language for 

Goal #3. 

 

Page 125Page 125



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 126Page 126


	Commission_Packet_20190926.pdf
	6.1_COMM_Commission_Meeting_Minutes_20190725v
	6.2_COMM_I-580_PC_BATA_RCSCAgmt-Amend_1_20190926
	6.3_COMM_I-580_PC_Caltrans_Coop_20190926
	6.4_COMM_I-580_PC_EL_Ops_Update_JuneJuly2019Stats_20190926
	6.4B_I-580 Heat Maps_201901-201906.pdf
	Westbound I-580 Corridor Speed Heat Maps
	Westbound I-580 Corridor Density Heat Maps
	Eastbound I-580 Corridor Speed Heat Maps
	Eastbound I-580 Corridor Density Heat Maps


	6.5_COMM_EnvironmentalDocReview_20190926
	6.6_COMM_I-580_DAA_Update_20190926
	6.6A_Attachment.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2


	6.7_COMM_2019_CMP_and_Conformity_Findings_20190926
	6.8_COMM_Sept2019_LegislativeUpdate_20190926
	6.8C2_AB 1487 (Chiu).pdf
	8c_AB 1487
	8c Attachment A: Legislation Committee Item 5a
	8c Attachment B: AB 1487 Bill Text
	8c Attachment C: Eklund Email



	6.9_COMM_FITS_20190926
	6.9A_PN1442000_7SGSP_FITS_FS_20190717.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2


	6.10_COMM_Community_Advisory_Appointments_20190926
	7.1_COMM_BPAC_Minutes_20190926
	8.1_COMM_CTP_Vision_and_Goals_final


	xsX2lkPTIwMTkyMDIwMEFCMTQ4NwA=: 
	billDetailTopNavBarId: 
	version: [20190AB148793AMD]
	ddbill_version: 

	billheaderinit_form: 
	billheaderinit_form:quick_search_select_id: [billNumber]
	billheaderinit_form:searchall: AB1 or ab 1 or ABX1-1
	billheaderinit_form:quick_search_submit: 




